BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
Reg. Office: Namrup, P.O. Parbatpur, Dist.: Dibrugarh, Assam — 786623
CIN - U24123AS2002G0I1006786
Website: www.bvfcl.com
Phone no: 0374-2500618, e-mail: rktiwari@bvfcl.com

Notice of 21°' AGM

Notice is hereby given that the 21" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Brahmaputra
Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited will be held through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio
Video means (O AVM) on Friday, 29" day of September, 2023 at 3.30 PM to transact the
following businesses:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

2.

3.

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended 31%* March, 2023, together with the Reports of Board of Directors,
Independent A udit and t he comments o f t he C omptroller & A uditor G eneral of In dia
(C & AG) thereon and to pass the following resolution with or without any modification(s)
as Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Annual Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended 31% March, 2023 along with the Director's Report, Independent
Audit Report and the comments of CR AG thereon be and ar e h ereby ap proved and
adopted.”

To re-appoint Shri Harvinder Singh (DIN - 08123352), Director of the Company, who
retires by rotation under Article No. 93(2) o f Articles of Association of the Company in
this me eting an d being e ligible, offers h imself fo r r e-appointmentan dt o p ass t he
following resolution with or without any modification(s) as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in pursuance of the provisions of Article No. 93(2) of Articles of
Association of the Company, Shri Harvinder Singh (DIN - 08123352), retiring Director of
the Co mpany, being e ligible, o ffers h imself f or r e-appointment, be an d i s h ereby
re-appointed as a Director of the Company."

To re-appoint Shri Niranjan Lal (DIN - 07965269), Director of the Company, who retires
by r otation u nder Article No. 93(2) of Articles of Association of the Company in this
meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and to pass the following
resolution with or without any modification(s) as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in pursuance of the provisions of Article No. 93(2) of Articles of
Association of the Company, Shri Niranjan Lal (DIN - 07965269), retiring Director of the
Company, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed
as a Director of the Company."
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4. To re-appoint Shri Satish Kumar Sharma (DIN - 01820665), Director of the Company, who

6.

retires by rotation under Article No. 93(2) of Articles of Association of the Company in
this me eting an d being e ligible, offers h imself fo r r e-appointmentan d t o p ass t he
following resolution with or without any modification(s) as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in pursuance of t he p rovisions of Article No. 93(2) of Articlesof
Association of the Company, Shri Satish Kumar Sharma (DIN - 01820665), retiring
Director o f t he Co mpany, b eing e ligible, o ffers himself fo r r e-appointment, beand is
hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company."

To re-appoint Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen (DIN - 09400040), Director of the Company, who
retires by rotation under Article No. 93(2) of Articles of Association of the Company in
this me eting an d being e ligible, offers h imself fo r r e-appointmentan d t o p ass t he
following resolution with or without any modification(s) as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in pursuance of the provisions of Article No. 93(2) of Articles of
Association of the Company, Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen (DIN - 09400040), retiring Director of
the Co mpany, being e ligible, o ffers h imself f or r e-appointment, be an di s h ereby
re-appointed as a Director of the Company."

To fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24
and, if though fit, to pass the following resolution with or without modification(s), as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audit Committee/ Board of Directors of the Company be and
are hereby authorised to review and approve such remuneration as it may decide for the
Statutory Auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the
Financial Year 2023-24 and the Statutory Auditors shall hold the office from the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS :

7.

Toconsideran dift houghtfit,t o passt hefo llowing r esolution, with o r wi thout
modification(s), as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, M/s. Subhadra Dutta & Associates,
Cost Accountants, Kolkata, as Cost Auditor of the Company appointed by the Board of
Directors of the Company to conduct the audit of the Cost Accounting Records of the
Company for the Financial Year ending 31* March, 2024, be paid the remuneration as
under :
i) A total professional fee payable Rs. 42,500/- (Rupees Forty Two Thousands Five
Hundred only) towards annual cost audit and quarterly cost review for three (03)
quarters i.e. June, September and December for the year 2023-24;
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ii) Conversion of Annual Cost Audit Report to XBRL format and uploading fee to MCA
portal for Rs. 7,500/- (Rupees Seven Thousand and Five Hundred Only) ;

iii) Reimbursement of travelling e xpenses by Airfare (E conomy class) (to & fro) to
Proprietor or 1(one) Partner and/or 1 (one) qualified staff, the reimbursement will
be in 2AC rail fare (to & fro) and to audit assistant 1(one), the reimbursement will
be in 3AC rail fare (to & fro) or as per actuals, whichever is less, on submission of
documentary evidence;

iv) Fooding and lodging to the audit team in BVFCL Guest House shall be provided free
of charge;

v) Local transport at the Namrup Railway Station/Bus Stand and Company’s Guest
House to place of work (to and fro), shall be provided by the company free of
charge. However, in respect of local transport charges at the originating
destination, the reimbursement (to and fro) shall be limited to auto charges @Rs.
200/- to Audit staff and Rs. 300/ - for P roprietor or P artner by T axi, or a ctual,
whichever is less on production of documentary evidence;

vi) Three set of hard copy of the audit report (Quarterly/ Annual) should be printed
and bind before submission for which no additional payment will be reimbursed by
BVFCL;

vii) All the charges/fees are excluding the applicable taxes, if any.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be andis
hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things and to take all such steps, as
may be necessary or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
R. K. Tiwari
Company Secretary
Place : Namrup, Assam
Date : 29" September, 2023
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To

Notes :

1.

2.

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
the items No. 7 (Special Business) is annexed hereto.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India vide General Circular no. 10/2022
dated December 28, 2022 read with General Circular no. 2/2022 dated May 05, 2022,
General Circular no. 02/2021 d ated January 13, 2021, G eneral Circular no. 20/2020
dated May 05, 2020, General Circular no. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and General
Circular no. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020 (hereinafter collectively referred to as “*MCA
Circulars”) has allowed the companies whose annual general meeting is due in the year
2023 to conduct annual general meeting through video conferencing (“VC”) or other
audio visual means (* OAVM”) till Se ptember 30, 2023. In pursuance of the applicable
provisions of the Act read with MCA Circulars, the Twenty First Annual General Meeting
of the Company ("AGM") is being convened and conducted through VC / OAVM, which
does not require physical presence of members at a common venue. The venue of AGM
shall be deemed to be the Registered Office of the Company at Namrup, Distt.
Dibrugarh, Assam, PIN -786623.

The meeting web link will be sent to all the members of the Company at their official
mail id. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before the
time scheduled for commencement of the meeting. Members can also join within 15
minutes of the commencement of meeting.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted
for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act,
2013.

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy
to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in
pursuance of Section 112 and Section 114 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives
of the members such as the President of India shall attend the AGM through VC/OAVM
and cast their votes through show of hands.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13,
2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.bvfcl.com.

Relevant documents referred to in the Notice are open for inspection by the members at
the registered office of the Company on all working days (that is, except Sundays and
Public Holidays) during business hours upto the date of the Meeting.

All Members of BVFCL

All the Directors on the BVFCL Board
Statutory Auditors of the Corporation
Secretarial Auditors of the Corporation
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
(Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item No. 7: Ratification of the Remuneration of the Cost Auditors of the
Company for the Financial Year 2023-24.

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the appointment and remuneration of
M/s. Subhadra Dutta & Associates, Cost Accountants, Kolkata, as Cost Auditors of the
Company in its 118" meeting held on 25" July, 2023 on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee of the BVFCL Board to conduct the audit of the Cost Accounting Records of the
Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. In accordance with the provisions of Section 148
and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 14 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, ratification for the remuneration payable to
the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2023-24 by way of the an Ordinary Resolution is
being sought from the members, as set out at item No. 7 of the Notice.

The Board accordingly recommends the passing of the proposed Ordinary Resolution for
approval of the members.

None of the Directors or Key managerial personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in
any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in passing of the said Ordinary
Resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
R. K. Tiwari
Company Secretary
Place : Namrup, Assam
Date : 29" September, 2023
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited

Dear Members,

Your Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the 21% (Twenty First) Annual Report on the
business and operations of the Company along with the Audited Annual Financial Statements for
the F inancial Y ear e nded 31 ** March, 2 023 together wi th In dependent A udit Report an d
Comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon.

1. REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:
The summarized financial performance of the Company during the year under review vis-a-vis

previous year are stated as under:
(Rs. in Crore)

For the Financial Year

Particulars

2022-23 2021-22
Profit (+) / Loss (-) before Depreciation, | 59.21 (-) 60.72
Interest & Tax
Depreciation 34.73 36.92
Interest 0.10 0
Profit (+)/Loss (-) before Tax (PBT) 24.38 (-) 97.64
Tax Expenses 0 0
Net Profit (+) / Loss (-) after Tax 24.38 (-) 97.64

During the Financial Year 202 2-23, the Company earned profit before Depreciation, Interest &
Tax (PBDIT) of Rs. 59.21 Crores against the loss before Depreciation, Interest & Tax of Rs. 60.72
Crores in the previous Financial Year. The increase in profit is mainly due to the increase in
production and sales (including trading business) during the Financial Year 2022-23 in
comparison to the previous Financial Year. During the Financial Year 2022-23, the production of
Urea was 223342 Metric Tonnes (MT) (previous Financial Year 170280 MT). During the Financial
Year 2022-23, the quantity of Urea sold was 227873 MT (Previous Financial Year 169922 MT).
Further, during the Financial Year 2 022-23, value of sale of traded p roducts was Rs. 410. 88
crores (previous Financial Year Rs. 68.96 crores).

During the year under review, no dividend was proposed to be declared on account of the
accumulated losses and negative networth of the Company.

2. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

A Report on Management Discussion and Analysis Report covering the operations and future
prospects of the Corporation is enclosed at Annexure —I, forming part of the Directors’ Report.
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3. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

A report on Corporate Governance along with declaration of compliance of code of conduct rules
for Senior Management and Board members, Secretarial Audit Report, Certificate from Practicing
Company Secretaries Firm conforming the compliance of corporate governance guidelines issued
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and the Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) and
the management replies on the observations made in Secretarial Audit Report are enclosed at
Annexure —I1, forming part of the Directors’ Report.

4. CHANGES IN BOARD OF DIRECTORS’:

During the period under review, the following changes took place in the Board of Directors of the
Corporation:

= The Govt. of India, Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers vide Order
dated 19™ July, 2022 ap pointed Shri Harvinder Singh, Director (Movement), DOF, as a part
time Govt. Nominee Director on the Board of BVFCL vice Shri Shyam Sunder Agrawal, Joint
Director FICC, DOF.

= The Govt. of India, Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers vide Order
dated 1.08.2022 ceased the tenure of Shri K Gurumurthy, Joint Secretary, DOF as Govt.
Nominee Director from the Board of the Company w.e.f. 20.07.2022 ;

= Shri Digambar Sah ai, D irector (P roduction), r etired fr om t he s ervices o f t he Co mpany on
attaining his age of superannuation on 31% August, 2022.

= The Govt. of India, Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers vide Order
dated 3™ October, 2022 appointed Shri Niranjan Lal, Director (UPP), DOF, as a part time Govt.
Nominee Director on the Board of BVFCL.

= The Govt. of India, Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers vide Order
dated March 21, 2023 appointed Shri P. K. Banik, DGM, BVFCL, as Directors Production (DP)
w.e.f his date of assumption of charge of the post of DP. Subsequently, Shri P. K. Banik has
assumed the charge of DP w.e.f. March 22, 2023.

= The tenure o f Sh ri B ipina B ihari P adhy, N on O fficial D irector (I ndependent) wh o was
appointed by Ministry of Chemical and Fertilizers dated May 01, 2020 for a p eriod of three
year (03) years commencing from May 09, 2020 has ended on May 08, 2023.

The Board of Directors wishes to place on record its sincere appreciation for the services
rendered by Shyam Sundar Agrawal, Shri K. Gurumurthy, Shri Digambar Sahai and Shri
Bipina Bihari Padhy, the retiring Director during their tenure on the BVFCL Board.

5. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In compliance of the provisions of Section 134 3 (c) read with Section 134 (5) of Companies
Act, 2013, your Directors states that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023, the
applicable accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the
Act, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
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8.

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the Profit and
loss of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2023;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively;

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNING AND OUTGO:

The conservation of energy can be achieved by using the energy more efficiently or by reducing
the u sage o f e nergy. T he Co mpany c ontinuously mak es e ffortst 0 conserve e nergy i ni ts
manufacturing facilities and allied operations and look for avenues to use alternate sources of
energy, to reduce its carbon footprint. The disclosure of information in accordance with the
provisions of Section 134 (3) (m) read with Companies read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign
exchange earnings and outgo are enclosed at Annexure-1 (A) & (B).

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. B. L. Purohit & Co., Chartered Accountants, Guwahati were appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India to audit the accounts of the Company
for the Financial Year 2022-23. The above Auditors have submitted their Independent Audit Report
dated 26.07.2023 on the Annual Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year
ending March 31, 2023. The Statutory Auditors has drawn the attention with due emphasis on
certain key audit matters. The management replies on the above key audit matters are enclosed
at Annexure -I11, forming p art o f t he D irectors’ R eport. The A udit Co mmittee h as i ssued
directions to the executive management to take necessary actions on them during the current
Financial Year 2023-24.

COMMENT OF COMPTROLLER & AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA (C & AG):

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) has undertaken supplementary audit on the
audited annual financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31% March, 2023 under
the provisions of Section 143 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013. C&AG Auditors issued 7 (seven)
nos. o f o bservation on 10. 08.2023 an d M anagement r eply i ncluding c omment o f St atutory
Auditors were sent to the Director, O/o the Principal Director of Audit (Agriculture, Food &
Water Resources) Kolkata on 16.08.2023. The Comments of C & AG dated 26.09.2023 on the
audited an nual fi nancial s tatements of the Company for the y ear e nded 31" March, 2023 is
enclosed as Annexure 1V, forming part of Directors’ Report and do not require for any reply,
as no comments has been reported by C & AG.
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10.

11.

COST AUDITORS: 9

Your Company is maintaining cost accounting records as specified by the Central Government
under the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.
M/s. K. G. Goyal & Associates, Cost Accountants, Jaipur (Firm Registration Number: 000024) were
appointed to conduct the audit of cost accounting records of the Company for the Financial Year
2022-23. The above firm has submitted their Cost Audit Report to the management on
27.09.2023. The filing of Cost Audit Report for the Financial Year 2022-23 is under process. The
Cost A uditR eportfo rt he Financial Year 2021-22 was fi led/uploaded o nt he we bsite
www.mca.gov.in vide SRN F26678888 dated 28.09.2022, after duly approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company on 02.09.2022.

INTERNAL AUDITOR:

M/s. AMAA & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Kolkata, (Firm Registration Number: 013066C)
was appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23. The above firm
has submitted their audit report for the year 2022-23.

The Audit Committee after reviewing the Internal Audit Report and compliances, issued necessary
directions / advisories to the Executive Management of the Company for taking corrective actions,
wherever sought necessary.

The Technical Internal Audit of the Company are being conducted by an in house Technical
Internal Audit Committee consisting the representatives of the Technical Services, Finance and

Material Management Departments of the Company.

IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE POLICY:

Your Company is making all efforts to propagate and implement Official Language Policy of the
Government of India. All Govt. directions for implementation of Official Language Policy of the
Govt. of India are being followed. During the year under review, following activities were taken
place to increase the awareness and motivate the employees for the use of Hindi Raj Bhasha in
the Company:

i) Hindi fortnight was celebrated from 13" September to 27" September, 2022. During the
fortnight, competitions like essay writing, speech, questionnaire, translation etc. were
organized, in which employees and officials participated enthusiastically;

i)  Four (04) Hindi workshops/seminars were organized during the year;

iii) BVFCL participated in Hindi Advisory Committee, Delhi on 23.06.2022 and BVFCL was
awarded first prize for implementation of Hindi in “C" zone.

iv) During the Financial Year 2022-23, BVFCL was awarded the first prize for Hindi
implementation by Narakas Duliajan.

v) Annual and quarterly reports regarding the implementation of the Official Language Section
are being sent regularly to the Department of Official Language, Ministry of Home Affairs,
Government of India, New Delhi, Regional Implementation Office, Department of Official
Language, Ministry of Home Affairs, Guwahati and Oil India Limited, Duliajan (Narakas
Office).

vi) During t he V igilance A wareness W eek o rganized i n t he mo nth o f O ctober 2022, al |
competitions and street plays were organized mainly in Hindi language (Notwithstanding
the condition of being in the C region).
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12.

13.

14.

15.

10

vii) Bilingual song/poetry competition was organized for the students and officers during
Children's Day celebration.

viii) For the awareness of Hindi language, one word Hindi/English is being displayed every day
in the office premises, which will help in use of Hindi language in the Company.

ix) During the year under review, your Company has participated in All India Hindi Conference,
Bhubaneswar.

x) BVFCL Website is in bilingual and regular updates thereon are made from time to time.

xi) Bi-lingual official seals of higher officials of the Company were made for official use;

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES UNDER SECTION 197:

As per the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under,
Government Companies are exempted from inclusion of the statement of particulars of employees
and therefore the said particulars are not included in the Board’s Report.

RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005:

Right t o In formation A ct, 2005 man dates timely r esponse t o citizen’s r equests fo r i nformation
relating to Public Authorities. BVFCL is a wholly owned Government Company under the
administrative control of the Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, D epartment of Fertilizers and
come within the purview of Public Authority. As per the provisions of the said Act, your Company
makes all efforts to follow the directives so issued under the Act. Your Company has nominated
Transparency Officer, Appellate Authority, Public Information Officer and Alternate Public
Information Officer to respond effectively to the requests of the applicants under the Act. The
details of the officers nominated under the Act have been displayed on the Company’s BVFCL
website to facilitate information about the affairs of the Company.

The Co mpany's we bsite ( www.bvfcl.com) i s maintained wi th u pdated i nformation an d al |
provisions of Right to Information Act have been kept uploaded. During the year under review,
total 79 applications were received under RTI. Out of this, 79 nos. of applications were disposed
off. 11 nos. of applications were received at first appeal stage, all of which were disposed off
within stipulated time period.

DETAILS OF LOANS/INVESTMENTS/GUARANTEES:
In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the details of investments made
and loans/guarantees provided as on 31.03.2023 are given in the respective notes to the financial
statements.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 (3) read with Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act,
2013, the Annual Return of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22, has been displayed on
the we bsiteo ft hec ompany at www.bvfcl.com, wh ichi sav ailableat we blink:
https.//bvifcl.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/11/Form_MGT_7_04112022-sign-1.pdf

16. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the Financial Year 2022-23, your Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) duly approved by the
Central Government under the provisions of Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made thereunder.
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17. COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DEPARTMENT

18.

19.

OF PUBLIC ENTERPRISES:

The Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Government of India, has laid down certain
parameters for the purpose of grading the CPSEs on the basis of their compliance with
guidelines on Corporate Governance and this report needs to be submitted to the Government
on quarterly/annual basis. Your Company is regularly complying with the Guidelines on
Corporate Governance for CPSEs laid down by DPE and submits reports to the DOF/DPE.
During the Financial Year 2022-23, Company has submitted self assessment report and
expected ‘Excellent Rating’ to your Company. However, DPE notification in this matter is
awaited.

BOARD MEETINGS:

The detailed disclosures of Board meetings have been made in the annexed Corporate
Governance Report.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION 149 (6) OF
COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Independent Director on the Board has given declaration towards meeting the criteria of
independence as laid down under section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

20. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

21.

22.

23.

The Company has not entered into any contract with the related party as prescribed under
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12)., OTHER THAN
THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT:

There were no frauds reported during the Financial Year 2022-23 by the Statutory Auditors of
the Company.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION / ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016:

During the year under review, neither any application was made nor any proceeding is
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) for the Financial Year
2022-23.

DETAILS OF THE CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES TAKEN
DURING THE YEAR

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company satisfies two threshold criteria as under the
provisions of Section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e. Turnover >/ 1000 Crore and
Net Profit >/5 Crore out of the three criteria. In compliance of the provisions of Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013, the CSR Committee of the Company was constituted by the
Board on 25.07.2023 and the CSR Policy is in process of formulation. Moreover, since there
is no average profit during immediate three preceding Financial Y ears, obligation to spend
2% of average profit as per the provisions of Section 135 (5) doesn’t arise during the
Financial Year 2022-23.

11
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However, your Company undertakes various welfare schemes for its employees and a host
of measures as its Corporate Social Responsibility limited to (the surrounding areas within 8
kms radius), the details of which are mentioned in detailed in Annexure I i.e. Management
Discussion and Analysis Report.

24. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board of Directors acknowledges the valuable guidance and continued support extended by
the various Departments and Ministries of the Govt. of India viz. Ministry of Chemicals &
Fertilizers, Fertilizer Industry Co-ordination Committee (FICC), Ministry of Agriculture, Indian
Council for Agricultural Research, Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas, Ministry of Railways,
Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Home, Department of Public Enterprises, members of MOU task
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ANNEXURE —1

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

PREAMBLE

Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited (BVFCL) incorporated in the year 2002 (CIN
U24123AS2002G0OI006786) is a Schedule ‘B’ category Central Public Sector Enterprise ( CPSU)
under the administrative control of the Department of Fertilizers (DOF), Ministry of Chemicals &
Fertilizers, Govt. of India. BVFCL is engaged in the manufacture of Urea, Bio- fertilizers, Vermi-
Compost manure at Namrup (Assam) and trading of Seeds, Pesticides, Fertilizers (MOP, SSP,
Ammonium Phosphate Sulphate, Ammonium Sulphate, Rock Phosphate), Plant Growth
Regulator, City compost and Micronutrients etc. The Corporation is marketing its products under
the brand name “Mukta”.

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENTS:

The consumption of Urea is highest among all the fertilizers in India and the demand of Urea
is me tt hrough i ndigenous p roduction an di mports. T he U rea i ndustry ¢ omprises o f
manufacturers from p ublic, c o-operative a nd private sector. The import of Urea is carried
out by the entities nominated by the Government of India. The price of Urea is regulated by
the Government of India which pays subsidy on Urea sold for agriculture use.

Urea, as a major source of nitrogen, is also the only controlled fertilizer and has a major share
of consumption compared t o al | o ther fe rtilizers p ut t ogether. Urea is at p resent c overed
under Essential Commodity Act (ECA) and the Government declares statutory price of urea for
sale an d i ssues mo vement o rders u nder ECA t o d ifferent man ufacturers. T he s tatutorily
notified sale price and indicative MRP is less than the cost of production of the respective
manufacturing unit. The difference between the cost of production and the selling price/ MRP
is paid as subsidy/ concession to manufacturers based on approved FICC Energy norm.

Natural Gas is the only raw material for production of Urea fertilizer and accounts for most of
the urea production costs.

BVFCL, being the only urea manufacturing unit in entire north-east and eastern India, bears
primary responsibility of supplying timely urea to farmers across the region.

INDIAN COUNCIL FOR FERTILIZER AND FERTILIZER TECHNOLOGY RESEARCH
(ICFFTR):

Indian Fertilizer industry is predominantly dependent on imports either for the raw material &
intermediaries or for finished products. Further for manufacturing technology also, the country
is completely dependent on big foreign players for the technology license for setting up of
new plants as well as for technological up-gradation of existing plants. Our country is having a
number of research institutions doing research on the subjects focused primarily on
agriculture, h owever, t here i s n o d edicated research i nstitution in t he c ountry which is
exclusively devoted to research in fertilizer sector. There is a growing need for setting up a
National Level Research & Development Centre, exclusively devoted to promotion of research
in fertilizer sector.
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Therefore, in line with the direction of Department of Fertilizers, Indian Council for Fertilizers
and Fertilizer Technology Research was formed as a society jointly by NFL, RCF, FAGMIL,
PDIL, FACT, BVFCL, MFL, FCIL and HFCL on 19" Aug, 2019. As a me mber of ICFFTR, your
Company has contributed Rs.5.00 lacs as a corpus of fund and also Rupees One Lac annual
membership fee in Financial Year 2022-23. Chairman and Managing Director of your
Ccompany is a member in the Governing Council of ICFFTR and Director (Production) of the
Company are Executive Members of ICFFTR.

REVIEW OF PRODUCTION PERFORMANCE:

During the year under review, Urea Production in Namrup-III was 223342 MT compared to
170280 M T achieved in Financial Year 2021-22. T he targeted U rea p roduction in 2 022-23
could not be achieved due to various unforeseen breakdowns of old, unreliable equipments.
Energy consumption per MT of Urea produced in Namrup-III was 12.20 GCal/MT compared to
14.56 GCal/MT in the Financial Year 2021-22.

Productions of Urea, Bio Fertilizer and Vermi Compost during the last five years are given
below:

Urea (MT) Bio-Fertilizers Vermi Compost NPK (MT)*
(MT) (MT)

F.Yr. Prod. Sale Prod. Sale Prod. Sale Prod. Sale
2018-19 | 286315 | 286430 44.24 44.87 94.74 99.60 - -
2019-20 | 155992 | 160186 35.54 29.60 83.86 64.73 - -
2020-21 | 131880 | 137569 14.75 16.484 81.02 80.19 - -
2021-22 | 170280 | 169922 53.81 48.415 107.17 | 110.409 - -

2022-23 | 223342 | 227870 | 152.938 147.84 101.39 60.66 67.525 | 59.94
*NPK Plant has been commissioned in January 2023.

Namrup-II plants suffered two major failures during Financial Year 2019-20, the first one was
on 17.05.2019 and the second was on 06.01.2020. The plant could be re-started after the first
incident after about four months time and the second incident occurred shortly after
resumption of operation of Namrup-II after the first incident. The plants are under continuous
shutdown after the second incident on 06.01.2020. PDIL was engaged for inspection of the
plant an d N DT was carried o uti n t he Sy nthesis Se ction. D epartment o f F ertilizer h ad
constituted a Committee to review the status of safe and economic operability of the Namrup-
IIplantsanda T echnical T eam c omprising N FL an d R CF e xperts v isited t he p lants an d
submitted t heir r eport regarding t he r esumption o f o peration o f N amrup-II plants. The
Committee o bserved t hat i n t he Sy nthesis S ection i tself, a ¢ onsiderable n umbers o f faulty
welding joints were found in radiography and some pipeline joints were found to be defective
in NDT, which may create unsafe condition in case of operation. The committee further
observed that the actual energy consumption in Namrup-II being much higher than the FICC
norm, operation of the plant will not be financially viable, till the FICC SEC norm is revised.
Committee h as o pined that h ealth s tudy o f the e ntire A mmonia P lant o f N amrup-II and
revision of FICC SEC norm is required, to ensure the viability of re-starting the Namrup-II
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plants. So, the committee has not recommended in favour of resumption of operation of
Namrup-II plants. In view of Technical Committee Report and also huge financial losses to the
Company, a detailed proposal for “Permanent de-commissioning of Namrup-II group of plants
and its disposal” was deliberated in the 117th Meeting of Board of Directors of the Company
held on 8th May, 2023. The consent of the Board of Directors of the Company was accorded
on the proposal of the Executive Management o f BVFCL t o p ermanently d e-commission o f
Namrup-II Group of Plants and its disposal on “as is where is” basis, except the Water
Treatment Plant associated with it, after following due process in this regard. After obtaining
approval from Board, proposal for ‘permanent de-commissioning of Namrup-II group of plants
and its disposal’ was sent to Department of Fertilizers on 27th June, 2023 for approval.
Subsequently, DoF directed the Company vide its letter dated 17th July 2023 to forward a
proposal for closure of Namrup-II Unit to DoF in the form of Note for Alternative Mechanism
containing the introduction, background with physical and financial performance, manpower
and land details of Namrup-II unit, justification and financial implication of the proposal under
terms and conditions as stipulated in DPE “Guiding Principles for Closure of Units by the Parent
Public Sector Enterprises” issued vide OM dated October 31, 2022.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, 315 on-stream days could be achieved in Namrup-III Plant
compared to 273 days in Financial Year 2021-22. Some of the major jobs done during the year
(April 2022) are as follows:

i. Auxiliary Boiler: Replacement of FD Fan damaged rotor shaft with the spare shaft.
ii. Turbine washing of NGBC, PAC and SGC.

Some other major jobs done during the year (in December 2022) are as follows:

i. Skimming of LTS Converter top bed catalyst dust.
ii.Dry ice cleaning of Primary Reformer Waste Heat Recovery Section.
iii.Bearing check up of Syn Gas Compressor.
iv.Turbine washing of NGBC, PAC and SGC.
v.Arresting Flange leakage of HCV-1.9 (SGC Discharge).

Production Organic fertilizers: During t he F inancial Y ear 2022-23, al | t ime h ighest
production of Bio Fertilizer was recorded. Bio Fertilizer production achieved was 152.938 MT,
compared t o p revious h ighest o f 53. 805 M T i n Financial Y ear 2021-22. V ermi Co mpost
production achieved was 101.39 MT, compared to previous year’s production of 107.17 MT.
The production of Vermi Compost has been discontinued w.e.f. 09.02.2023 due to high cost
of production.

Neem Coated Urea: As per Government of India’s directive for mandatory 100% production
of Neem Coated Urea considering beneficial effects of Neem coated urea (NCU) on increase in
soil fertility and higher yield, BVFCL has successfully set-up developed in-house Neem coating
plants in Namrup-III and Namrup-II to produce only Neem coated urea. The Company has
been producing only Neem Coated Urea with effect from 20™ August 2015 from both of its
plants. The Gol has allowed sale of NCU at 5% of above MRP of Urea as encouragement for
its production and to recover extra cost of coating.
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Rationalizing the size of urea bag: Government has made it mandatory to resize urea bag
from 50kg to 45kg. The Company is using only 45kg urea filled bags w.e.f. 01.05.2018 by
replacing 50kg bags as directed by Dept. of Fertilizer vide No. 12012/20/2007-FPP dated 4"
September 2017.

Implementation of One Nation One Fertilizer: Government of In dia has madeit
mandatory to implement One Nation One Fertilizer by introducing single brand for fertilizers
and logo under Fertilizer subsidy scheme namely “Pradhanmantri Bhartiya Janurvarak
Pariyojna (PMBIJP)"”. The Company is using new bags w.e.f. December 27, 2022 under this
scheme as directed by Dept. of Fertilizer vide F. No. 20-1/2022-FI, dated: 24™ August 2022.

. MARKETING PERFORMANCE REVIEW:
During the year under review, your Corporation has following marketing activities:
A.Review of Marketing Operations:
a) Own Products:

i.) Mukta Neem Coated Urea: During the Financial Year 2022-23, Company sold —
2,27,870.160 MT Urea (Previous year 169,747.40 MT; excluding export quantity).

ii.)Bio-Fertilizers: 147.84 KL liquid Bio-Fertilizers valued Rs. 221.78 Lakhs were sold
(Previous year 48.415 KL liquid Bio-Fertilizers valued Rs.73.69 lakhs).

iii.)Vermi Compost: 60.66 MT Vermi Compost valued Rs. 8.49 Lakhs were sold (Previous
year 110.409 MT valued Rs.15.49 Lakhs).

iv.)NPK (19:19:19): 59.94 MT of Mukta NPK (19:19:19) valued Rs 89.91 Lakhs were sold
(Previous Year Nil).

v.)Imported Urea: 2 18897.38 MT of Imported Urea valued Rs 11, 725.82 Lakhs were
sold. (Previous year Nil).

b) Traded Products:

Your Corporation has done trading business of various Agri Inputs and performed
following trading activities during 2022-23:

i.) Urea (NFL) : 65705.22 MT valued Rs. 3,516.77 lakhs (Previous year 35,090.10 MT
valued Rs. 1857.20 lakhs;

ii.)SP Fertilizers: 71927.60 MT valued Rs. 7,950.85 lakhs were sold (Previous year
23,781.70 MT valued Rs. 1546.97 lakhs );

iii.)MOP Fertilizers : 6988.60 MT valued Rs. 2,200.25 lakhs were sold (Previous year
6,186.90 MT valued Rs. 1583.76 lakhs);

iv.)DAP Fertilizers : 17566.85 MT valued Rs. 4,404.76 lakhs were sold (Previous year
Nil);

v.)Rock Phosphate : 10115.00 MT , valued Rs. 756.99 lakhs were sold (Previous year
6,890.00 MT , valued Rs. 478.16 lakhs);

vi.)Mukta Power: 3450.22 MT valued Rs 4,416.28 lakhs were sold (Previous year Nil);

16
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vii.)Agro Power : 257.500 MT valued Rs 324.45 lakhs were sold (Previous year 685.76
MT valued Rs 863.99 lakhs);

viii.) Ammonium Sulphate: 16867.51MT valued Rs 2,999.35 lakhs were sold (Previous
year 796.20 MT valued Rs 63.67 lakhs);

ix.)Factamfos: 426.00 MT valued Rs 110.52 lakhs were sold (Previous year 262.00 MT
valued Rs 128.34 lakhs);

X.)APS : 3583.60 MT valued Rs 945.23 lakhs were sold (Previous year Nil);

xi.)NPK (10:26:26): 2742.60 MT valued Rs 746.54 lakhs were sold (Previous year Nil);

xii.)PDM : 4052.95 MT valued Rs 565.77 lakhs were sold (Previous year Nil);

xiii.)Zinc Sulphate: 261.98 MT valued Rs. 152.08 lakhs were sold (previous Year 229.70
MT valued Rs. 101.59 lakhs);

xiv.)Magnesium Sulphate: Nil (Previous year 178.20 MT valued Rs 37.54 lakhs);

xv.)Boron: 9.00 MT valued Rs. 9.02 lakhs were sold (Previous year 6.20 MT valued Rs.
4.52 lakhs);

xvi.)Pesticides: 7.67 MT/KL valued Rs 33.35 lakhs were sold (Previous year 8.51 MT/KL
valued Rs 49.85 lakhs);

xvii.)NPK: ( Water S oluble F ertilizer): 5 3.52 M T v alued R s 8 0.19 | akhs were s old
(Previous year 39.06 MT valued Rs 39.79 lakhs);

xviii.)HIL NET: 7000.00 nos valued Rs 18.76 lakhs were sold (Previous year 15,100 nos
valued Rs 39.72 lakhs)

xix.)City Compost: 397.00 MT valued Rs. 28.96 lakhs were sold (Previous year 1,369.85
MT valued Rs. 92.24 lakhs);

xx.)Seed: 110.00 MT valued Rs. 12.23 lakhs were sold (Previous year Nil);

c) Agricultural Promotion Programme:
Your Corporation is the only urea manufacturing company in Northeast, playing
proactive roles in imparting education/ creating awareness to its customers/farmers for
maintainingt hes oilh ealthan di ncreasei nc rop p roduction. T hed etailso f
farmers/dealers t raining p ogramme undertaken by t he Company ar e mentioned as
below:

i.) Dealers Training Programme: 06 (Six) nos. of Dealers Training Programme were
conducted at during Financial Year 2022-23 in different marketing territories. Since
the dealers are vital link in disseminating the information to the farmers and retailers.
Dealers were educated about the importance of soil testing, benefits of balanced use
of fertilizers based on soil sample report and benefits of Neem Coated Urea, Vermi
Compost & Bio-fertilizers of y our Corporation. Dealers w ere r equested t o f acilitate
supply of fertilizers to the farmers conforming to their soil requirement.

ii.)Farmers Training Programme: 16 (Sixteen) nos. of Farmers Training Programme
were conducted at during Financial Year 2022-23 in different marketing territories.
Valued farmers are the key for sale fertilizer in any area. Though these training
programmes, farmers w ere e ducated an d e ncouraged for using the products fr om
BVFCL product basket and balance use of fertilizer to maintain soil heath.

iii.) Demonstration Programme: 92 (Ninety Two) nos. of Farmers Training Programme
were conducted at during Financial Year 2022-23 in different marketing territories to
establish the benefits of product of BVFCL to the farmers.
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iv.) Pradhan Mantri Kisan Samruddhi Kendra (PMKSK) : PMKSK will caterto a
wide variety of needs of the farmers and provide agri-inputs (fertilizers, seeds,
implements); testing facilities for soil, seeds, fertilizers; generate awareness among
farmers; provide information regarding various government schemes and ensure
regular capacity building of retailers at block/ district level outlets. More than 3.3 lakh
retail fertilizer shops are planned to be converted into PMKSK. BVFCL has opened 114
nos. of PMKSK in district level in North Eastern states during Financial Year 2022-23
and for Financial Year 2023-24, DoF has entrusted us to serve the farmers of the
nation by opening 1249 nos. of PMKSK in North Eastern states.

6. CONSTRAINTS FACED IN MARKETING OF UREA:

During the year under review, company experienced constraints in marketing of urea
due the following reasons:

Railway related issues:

v'"Non-availability of rakes due to Restrictions, Congestions and Quota problem.
Freight Problem:

v'Secondary freight revised are District wise having discrepancies in PTPK rates.
Movement Problem:

v'Distance limitation of 1400 Kms for rake movement.
v'Limitation of 500 Kms road freight reimbursement in case of Ex-factory dispatches.

Other issues:

v'Mktg Dept. is working with very limited manpower.
v'Trading business always depends upon the market conditions and supplies.

Production and Marketing of Organic fertilizers:

Your Company is producing two types of Bio-fertilizers i.e. Azotobacter and
Phosphobactrin ( PSB) s ince 2008 -09 and started p roducing in Liquid form w. e.f. 8™
January 2021. Production of Career based Bio Fertilizer has been stopped due to non-
availability of the career materials and their economic non-viability. Production of Liquid
Bio Fertilizer has been started by using in-house expertise. This is highly beneficial in
achieving higher production on a s teady basis in economically viable way, depending
upon demand and marketability.

Your company has started marketing of City Compost from October 2016. City compost
supplies are arranged from West Bengal as no manufacturer is available in NE states,
which results very high cost of City compost.

Your Company is t he o nly u rea man ufacturing c ompany i n N ortheast an d p laying
proactive roles in imparting education/ creating awareness to its customers/ farmers for
maintaining the soil health and increasing Crop production. BVFCL is having huge
number of PMKSKs across all NE states & serving farming community at large through
these PMKSKSs.
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Some of the major steps adopted to reduce marketing cost are as follows:

v'Rationalization of movement - Rail-Road movement ratio brought down 97:03 against
permissible limit of 80:20 by DoF (Railway freight is 100% reimbursable).

v'Sales in North-Eastern States is given priority.

v'Reduction in inventory carrying cost by maximizing rail- head sales with zero storage.

v'"Minimum Inventory level in silos.

v'Maximum Payment collection is through RTGS/CMS.

Constraints in Marketing of Organic fertilizers:

i. Lack of awareness about uses & benefits of organic fertilizers among farmers.

ii.Organic fertilizer does not show instant and dramatic response like chemical
fertilizers.

iii.The shelf life of bio-fertilizer is limited to 6-12 months in powder form and 12-24
months for liquid form.

iv.Adaptability of bio-fertilizer strains is limited to specific soil & climatic conditions.

v.Organic fertilizers are pushed to the dealers along with Chemical fertilizers and
forced sale is taking place at dealers/retailers level to farmers.

vi.Needs special care during its handling & transportation to avoid leakage/bursting of
packing’s.

Steps taken by BVFCL to overcome the Constraints:

i.Switched over to Liquid bio-fertilizers as they have longer Shelf life to the extent of
12 to 24 months.

ii.Training to farmers on uses and benefits of Organic fertilizers during Fertilizer
Application A wareness Programme (F AAP), M ass Co ntact Programme & F armers
Training Programmes etc.

iii. Training programmes to dealers and retailers on organic fertilizers on mode of action,
benefits so that they can guide farmers in a proper way as they are having day to
day contact with the farmers at larger level.

iv.Involvement and active Support of States’ Agriculture Department/ Agriculture
Universities and Krishi Vigyan Kendra Scientists to promote organic fertilizers.

v.In order to promote the use of Organic fertilizer, BVFCL's organic fertilizers are sold in
North Eastern states i.e. Assam, Manipur, Tripura, Nagaland & Mizoram.

vi.We are also trying our best efforts to promote organic fertilizers in Meghalaya,
Arunachal Pradesh & Sikkim states as well, in close coordination with the State
Administration/Agriculture Department/ KVKs of these states.

Provision for subsidy:

Inclusion of O rganic F ertilizers i .e. B io-fertilizer an d V ermi-compost u nder Su bsidy
scheme like other Chemical fertilizers & City Compost will help these products to get
added into regular package of practices by the farmers.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK AND INITIATIVES FOR THE CURRENT YEAR:

Some major steps have been taken to bring the Company back to the path of growth and
dynamism with all round development which are as follows:

v'To establish a Single Super Phosphate (SSP) manufacturing facility of 400 MTPD capacity
within the existing premises.

v'To establish a Solar Power System of 2.4 MW capacity in BVFCL premises in the vacant
land to promote renewable energy sources.

v'To trade surplus captive power in state grid to have financial benefit for the Company.

v'To establish a Nano Urea Plant within the existing premises.

v'Turnover from trading of agri-inputs is expected to reach more than Rs.2000 Crores in
the current Financial Year 2023-24.

v'BVFCL has been allotted PICT Port, Paradip for handling and marketing of imported Urea
in Govt. of India account for three years commencing from 2022-23 onwards. Marketing
areas have been extended to Chhattisgarh, Jharkhand, Odisha & Madhya Pradesh and
dealers network has been increase in lesser represented areas of Bihar and West Bengal
States. D uring Financial Year 2022-23, BVFCL has s uccessfully completed H andling &
Marketing of 05 (five) numbers of vessels. BVFCL is also planning for further expansion
of marketing areas to Uttar Pradesh, Telangana and Andhra Pradesh with the aim of
achieving a pan India presence.

v'NIT for supply of Imported DAP, MOP, NPKs will be floated again for supply of imported
products during rabi season 2023-24.

v'In addition to the existing MoUs, BVFCL has executed MoUs with new business partners
viz. HURL, IFFCO, Agrophos India Ltd., Jay Agro Industries, Madhav Agrochem Pvt. Ltd.,
to enhance the rage of its product basket during 2023-24.

v'For better supply of BVFCL's own and traded products, 2 Nos. new Rake points added
recently i.e. Jiribam(Manipur) , Bhairabi (Mizoram) based on the logistics availability and
the Company is further exploring the possibilities to add more rake points.

Status Report for Atmanirbhar Bharat pertaining to BVFCL Namrup:

The Company is immensely contributing to Atmanirbhar Bharat by producing indigenous
Urea by running one very old designed plants at a very low production cost. The plant is
using only APM Natural Gas from the near-by wells and thereby ensuring no dependence
on imported LNG/RLNG etc. Moreover, as the plants are very old, so most of the spares
are now procured from indigenous sources by developing local vendors for the same.

Salient points are given below:

a) During the year, the Company has used only cheap Natural Gas available from the
near-by fields and not used any LNG/RLNG or other imported feedstock. In spite of
the plants surpassing their effective life and troubled with frequent failures, saving of
foreign exchange was achieved by producing indigenous cheap urea using local
Natural Gas, which would have to be imported otherwise to meet the shortfall in
Urea.

b) A proposal to replace the existing plants by establishing a new modern project of
bigger capacity is under consideration of DoF to reduce dependence of urea import
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21
by boosting Urea production by more than three times to encourage Atmanirbharta.

¢) Unlike other projects which are dependent on RLNG for about 30% of their feedstock
requirement, the existing plants and the proposed project will be based entirely on
domestic Natural Gas available from the near-by areas from M/s OIL. This will give a
big boost to the scheme of Atmanirbharta.

d) This project has a very high potential to export Urea to the neighbouring countries
like Bangladesh, Nepal, Myanmar etc. because of its close proximity to these
countries and good connectivity, when self sufficiency in Urea production is achieved
in the Country. The Company had already exported more than 2.0 LMT of Urea to
Nepal in the past. This will boost the vision of honourable Prime Minister for ‘Make
for World’, along with ‘Make in India’.

e) Procurement of Goods and Services through GEM Portal and MSE during the
Financial Year 2022-23 is given below:

Sl.

Particulars Unit 2022-23
No.
1 | Total Procurement of Goods & Services
(Irrespective of a vailabilityi nG eM Rs. Cr. 73.46
Portal)
2 | Procuremento fG oods & S ervices
through MSEs Rs. Cr. 38.1
3 | Procuremento fG oods & S ervices Rs. Cr 0
through SC/ST MSEs S
4 | Procuremento fG oods& S ervices
through Women MSEs Rs. Cr. 1.20
5 | Procurement o f Goods & S ervices f rom Rs. Cr. 21.72

GeM portal

ISSUES PENDING WITH DEPARTMENT OF FERTILIZERS:

(i)

(ii)

Allowing changes in the Indicative List of Items for grant in aid of Rs.100
Crore.: Immediate approval of the proposal for changes in the Indicative List of Items
in the GIA of Rs.100 Crore is required to be approved to ensure safe and sustained
operation of Namrup-III plants due to precarious financial condition of the Company.
Special Dispensation: Calculation of Concessional price of urea on 100% pricing
basis for Natural Gas i.e. non-mopped rate, so that additional fund to the tune of 40%
rebated amount is available to BVFCL, which can be effectively used for renewal and
replacement of the equipments and machineries to achieve safety and stability in
operation.

(iii) Financial support for new initiatives: DoF has been requested to extend financial

support in diversification of business of the Company for arranging the project cost for
the following initiatives:
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a) Steps have been initiated for establishment of a new Single Super Phosphate (SSP)
plant, having capacity of 1.20 LMTPA, under the brand name of *Mukta’. DoF has
given in-principal approval for the proposed project. Financial assistance from DoF
will be sought after finalisation of the LSTK contractor for implementation of the
project.

b) To establish a Nano Urea Fertilizer manufacturing unit of estimated project of
Rs.250 Crore, a Letter dated 08.12.2021 was sent to DoF requesting for financial
support of an estimated project cost Rs. 250 Crore for establishing Nano Urea
Fertilizer Plant at BVFCL, Namrup. A reminder letter dated 07.06.2023 was also sent
to Secretary (Fertilizers), DoF for the same.

MOU RATING :

The Company had started signing MoU with Department of Fertilizer w.e.f. 2004-05 and
Ratings obtained during the year 2021-22 was “Poor”.

MoU for the Financial Year 2022-23 was signed between the Secretary (Fertilizers), DOF
and the CMD, BVFCL. MoU parameters are being reviewed at DoF.

COMPLIANCE OF VARIOUS DIRECTIVES OF THE CONTROLLING MINISTRY AND
OTHER GOl _MINISTRIES/AGENCIES ETC.

Govt. of India has set-up many online p ortals v iz. Saman vay, Samad han, Samb andh,
Drishti etc. to monitor various parameters of the CPSEs and the Company is regularly
updating these sites with the latest available information and is fully complying all the
requirements.

Department o f P ublic Enterprises h as r ecently | aunched e -Samiksha p ortal which is an
online Monitoring and Compliance Mechanism, developed to fast track the compliance of
pending action-points/ proposals/ issues/ projects/ schemes/ targets, etc. of various
implementing agencies such as Ministries/ Departments/ Organizations of Government of
India, State Governments, Autonomous Bodies, PSUs, etc.

Once the action-points/ proposals/ issues/ targets, etc. are added in the eSamikSha digital
platform, system automatically pushes it for the regular interval updation to the respective
stakeholder(s), till it get compliance. Monitoring Agency(s) may obtain various exceptional
and compliance status reports on the fly.

This system also facilitates the Monitoring Agencies to further give directions/ remarks and
send email/ SMS to the stakeholder(s) on a p articular action-points/ proposals/ issues/
targets etc. Monitoring Agencies directions/ remarks may be prioritized and displayed in
different colours to act promptly by the stakeholder(s). The Company has duly nhominated
its Nodal Officer and is effectively interacting by using the latest GoI portal.

STATUS REPORT TOWARDS SETTING-UP OF NAMRUP-1V PROJECT:

As the plants are facing ageing problem and they have already surpassed their effective
life, soif the e stablishmentofa new projectis n oti mmediately expedited, s erious
interruption in urea p roduction may be resulted because of major failures of the
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equipments and machineries. Still with the available in-house resources, utmost efforts are
being made to continue to run the plants safely till the new project is commissioned.

As per the Cabinet Approval, RFQ was floated on 28.01.2016 and RFP was floated on
17.06.2016. Two bidders viz. M/s Gujarat Fertilizers & Chemicals Limited and M/s. Adani
Enterprises L td. w ere p re-qualified, b ut none o f t hem s ubmitted t heir financial bids in
response to RFP. As such, the two stage bidding process approved by the Union Cabinet
could not be successful, as there was no response from the Bidders for the Request for
Proposal.

In view of no response received in PPP mode bidding, a meeting was held on 05.09.2016
at DoF and it was inter-alia decided that a proposal should be put up for setting up the
new Ammonia-Urea plant of BVFCL at Namrup (i.e. Namrup-IV) through PSU route. A new
initiative was taken by DoF for setting-up ofa 12.70 LMTPA NG b ased p lant t hrough
nomination route by forming a JV of CPSEs and Govt. of Assam.

However, all these have not yielded any result and presently another effort is being made
to establish the project on PPP mode by allotting 52% equity to a private entity through
bidding.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company had laid down Risk Management Policy for Assessment & Minimization
procedures to be reviewed by the Board of Directors on quarterly basis. The possible risks
have been identified and grouped under s pecific responsibility areas such as Feed/Fuel,
Plant Operation & Maintenance, Utilities, E nvironment Regulatory, Business Co mpetition,
Market, Finance, Human Resources, Information Technology, Legal and Internal Control.

ENVIRONMENT & SAFETY MANAGEMENT:

BVFCL Namrup is committed to work for the protection of environment and it is adhering
to all the relevant and applicable laws/ rules/ standards etc. viz. The Water (Prevention &
Control of Pollution) Act, 1974, The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981, The
Environment Protection Act, 1986, Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991, Batteries
(Management & Handling) Rules, 2001 etc. All the returns/reports etc., which are required
to be submitted as per various laws/ rules/ govt. orders are submitted regularly in time.
Consent to Operate is renewed by the Pollution Control Board, Assam regularly as per
Water Act and Air Act. A policy of Rs.15.00 crores under Public Liability Insurance Act,
1991 has been taken to give insurance coverage to the nearby people, in case of disaster.

All safety norms are strictly followed in BVFCL. Personnel Protective Equipments (PPE) is
periodically issued to e mployees and health check-ups are also carried out. All jobs are
executed as per safety norms. BVFCL is also having a well equipped fire brigade, which is
capable of meeting all regular need. As per Mutual Aid Scheme with the neighbouring
industries in Dibrugarh and Tinsukia district, external assistance is also available in case
any disaster.

Liquid ammonia is stored in two Horton Spheres of 1500 MT capacity each which are
covered by Petroleum Explosives & Safety organization (PESO) licence under Static and
Mobile Pressure (Unfired) Rules 2016.
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Hazop St udy was d one fo r t he fi rst t ime al ong wi th E xternal Safe ty Audit an d Risk
Assessment, by engaging the external Consultant in 2020. External Safety Audit has been
done for 2021-22. Also the On-site Emergency Plan is updated periodically.

15. PLASTIC WASTE MANAGEMENT RULES, 2016:

The Ministry of Environment Forests and Climate Change (MoEF & CC), Government of
India, vide Gazette Notification dated 18.03.2016 has specified rules for Plastic Waste
Management. The Rules fix the responsibility of local bodies, Gram Panchayat and Waste
generators, as we Il as p roducers, i mporters an d b rand o wners fo r ¢ ollection an d
management of plastic waste.

Fertilizer industry falls under the category of brand owners as the fertilizer products are
sold in plastic bags that are multi-layered and composed of HDPE/HDPE lined with
polypropylene. Hence as per rules, all the Brand Owners who introduce the products in the
market have to establish a system or plan for collecting back the plastic waste generated
due to their products.

Since fertilizer bags are sold through a large number of sales points in every nook and
corner of the North Eastern Region, West Bengal, Bihar and are being used multiple times
by the farmers for storage of their produce etc., collection of these bags is difficult. Since
these rules apply to the complete fertilizer industry which is finding difficulty in complying
with the said notification, Fertilizer Association of India (FAI) took up the matter with MoEF
& CC through DoF for exemption of fertilizer industry.

16. KEY OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS :

i) The Opportunities to the Company
eScope for exporting of urea to neighboring states.
eScope for diversification to produce solar power and captive power trading.
eTo produce Single Super Phosphate (SSP) and Nano Urea to expand product basket.
eDiversification into other agricultural products.
eTo arrange for all fertilizers and agro products as per single window concept.
eSetting up new brown field project

ii) The Threats to the company

e Competition fr om o ther u rea man ufacturing ¢ ompanies h aving | ower energy
consumption and lower cost of production.

e Establishment of large modern ammonia urea complexes in the eastern region is
converting the urea market to a surplus market from deficit market; thereby increasing
stiff competition.

e Uncertainty of continuation of supply of Natural Gas at a concessional rate.

e Shortage of capital investment due to paucity in fund generation.

e Closure of the Company due to high cost of production & un-viability.

¢ Acute shortage of manpower to run the plants.
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e Continuous attrition of qualified and experienced manpower to other CP SUs offering
attractive remuneration.
e Delay in establishing a new bigger size project replacing the existing one.

iii) Strength and Weakness

The strengths of the Company:

i.) Entire requirement of feedstock and fuel is being met from APM Natural Gas available
at Gol notified price.

ii.)The unit is using only domestic gas and is located close to the source of Feed/ Fuel
NG.

iii.)Lower absolute cost of production in the units if run without interruption.

iv.)It is the only urea producing Company in the entire Assam, North-Eastern States,
West Bengal and Bihar where still there is shortfall to the extent of 40 Lakh MT exists.

v.)Transportation advantage for supply of Urea compared to other companies situated
outside North-Eastern states of India.

vi.)Lower transportation cost of the natural gas because of location of Namrup plants
near to the gas wells.

vii.)Direct and indirect generation of employment in the States of Assam & other North-
Eastern states, which are predominantly economically backward.

1V.The Weakness of the Company

i.) Not connected to the National Gas Grid.

ii.)Small capacity of the plants compared to modern standard size plant.
iii.)Old energy inefficient technology inherited from FCIL and HFCL.
iv.)Old age of the plants.

v.)Non-availability of spares due to obsolescence.

vi.)Non-availability of skilled & trained manpower.

vii.)Acute shortage of skilled manpower

17. 1T UPGRADATION AND E-GOVERNANCE:

1) IT UPGRADATION

During the year under review, your Company has taken various initiatives such as:

= E-mail service from NIC has been implemented in the domain @bvfcl.com. All officers
have been provided official e-mail ids.

= Visitor Management System has been implemented.

= Online outgoing AVI for employees has been implemented.

» OPD Registration System has been implemented in BVFCL Hospital.

»e-Office, a digital workspace solution developed by NIC has been implemented.

*House allotment application form has been made online.

=Company’s website has been renovated with up to date information.

*New p ortal for ad mission of students h as b een d eveloped for the Co mpany’s higher
Secondary school.

=Bill tracking system has been implemented.
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11)_ E-GOVERNANCE

=Government e Procurement P latform (G ePNIC), d eveloped b y N ational I nformatics
Centre (NIC) has been implemented to publish online tenders and to conduct online
auctions.

*Procurement through Government e-Market place (GeM) is being utilized.

*The Company’s web site is maintained with updated information. Vacancies/ notices are
published in the Company’s website and the portal of National Career Service.

=Official Twitter, Facebook Koo app, YouTube channel and instagram accounts are being
maintained with updated information.

18. INSURANCE:

The properties and insurable assets of your Corporation such as Plant & Machineries, Building
Stocks an d o thers ar e ad equately i nsured. A s r equired u nder t he p rovisions of P ublic
Insurance Act, 1991, your Corporation has taken a policy of Rs. 15 crores to give insurance
coverage to the peoples of adjoining areas, in case of any disaster.

19. SECURITY:

20.

21.

The security of the Namrup Fertilizer Complex is being monitored by the CISF and in
Corporation’s township, the security guarding in public buildings as well as night patrolling are
being monitored by the outsourced private security Agency. Corporation is providing a night
patrolling van to local police authority to keep vigil in and around the Namrup Township for
maintenance of peace and tranquility in entire area/township. In order to review the entire
security system of BVFCL factory premises, Security meeting is organised from time to time
with CISF Unit Commander and the requirement/infirmity if any highlighted by them are
immediately addressed. The management, security staff and the employees of your
corporation are sensitized periodically to the security needs of Corporation.

The sanctioned strength of CISF personnel for deployment in BVFCL factory area is 144 during
the period under review. Moreover, total 31 nos. private security personnel are also deployed
in entire BVFCL township on 24*7 hrs. through outsource security agency.

INTEGRITY PACT:

Your Corporation has implemented Integrity Pact (IP) in all the Procurement of Goods and
Services having threshold value of Rs. 1.00 Crores and above after obtaining approval of Board
of Directors in the year 2019. Further, the Integrity Pact clause is invariably incorporated in all
the Tenders having value more than Rs. One Crore and above. Prescribed periodic review of
Integrity Pact implementation is being done through Independent External Monitor(s).

STATUS OF 1SO 9001 & 14001 CERTIFICATE:

Implementation in Namrup-111 Group of Plants and Common Services Departments
of BVECL:

The Certification for ISO 9001:2015 and 14001:2015 have been obtained w.e.f. 17/01/2022
and v alid till 1 6/01/2025. C ertificates h ave b een o btained aft er s uccessful completion o f
recertification process.
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Re-certifications for I SO 9001:2015 and 14001:2015 are b eing i mplemented i n N amrup-III
group of plants and common services departments of BVFCL.

Recertification Audit was conducted in the month of March 2022. After recertification, first
surveillance audit is due in the current year which will be conducted shortly.

Certification Agency: M/s SWISS CERT PRIVATE LIMITED, New Delhi.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM:

The Co mpany h as ad equate i nternal control s ystem i n t he r espective ar eas o f F inance &
Accounts s upported by Internal A udit and r egular man agement r eviews. I n t he ac counting,
internal control is exercised right from the preparation of vouchers where each voucher is
checked and countersigned by respective senior officers as per delegation of power. The daily
cashbook balance on manual basis is physically counted and checked with the book. Similarly,
all bank accounts are al so reconciled periodically. Internal control is also e xercised for
accounting where vouchers including journal vouchers entered into the system are checked and
validated before those are accounted for. Every proposal for purchase/works contract or others
having monetary involvement are examined as per policy and procedures and reviewed by a
committee before taking ap propriate decision. Internal Control Sy stem includes compliance of
all the applicable laws, safety of assets of the Company and risk management. The System is
reviewed from time to time and necessary actions taken for its improvement. Internal Audit is
conducted by the outside qualified agency supported by the Finance & Accounts Department.
Internal Audit examines documents / records / procedures and submits periodical reports for
compliance. The Internal Audit Reports and follow up actions thereon are regularly placed
before the Audit Committee. Audit Committee regularly reviews the internal audit and adequacy
of internal control. As reported by the Internal Audit Firm and the Statutory Auditors of the
Company that the check and balance of internal control system in the present accounting
software, which is based on the COBOL Programming, needs to be strengthened by replacing
the same with the latest accounting software prevailed in the Industry.

23.HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT:

A. MANPOWER POSITION

The total manpower status in your Corporation as on 31 March, 2023 was 403. Reservation
of SC/ST/OBC/Ex- Serviceman and Physically handicapped categories in the service are
being maintained as per the government directives. The manpower position as on
31.03.2023 was as under: -

Sl. No. Categories Nos. %
1 Scheduled Caste 35 8.68
2 Scheduled Tribe 51 12.65
3 OBC 125 31.02
4 Ex- Servicemen 0 0
5 Physically handicapped | 1 0.25
6 Women 27

(SC-04, ST-03, OBC-07,
GEN-13) 6.7
7 Minority 22 5.46
8 Others 191 47.39
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A report of the Training Records during the Financial Year 2022-23

Continuous effort for improved performance of employees has been made through in-
house training both in the plant and through classroom lectures as per Training Calendar
prepared for Financial Year 2022-23. The Training Department of the Company works out
on training need assessment based on the yearly feedback on performance from the
departments. E xtensive t raining n eed survey is ca rried o ut p eriodically b ased o n t he
analysis of the educational qualification, training imparted during the induction period,

subsequent on the job exposure, summarized feedback on performance and interviews.

The Company is engaging apprentices under Apprenticeship Act. Apart from engaging
apprentices, CMA trainees as well as vocational trainees for exposure to actual industrial

environment are also engaged.

During the year ending 31% March, 2023, 29 (Twenty Nine) nos. of in-house training
programmes, 6 (Six) nos. of external training programmes and 3 (Three) webinars were
conducted by the Training Department of the Company. Brief details of the programme(s)
are stated as below:

In-house programmes

Sl. | Title of the Level & No. of | Date Faculty

No | programme participants

01 | Standing order for Workmen = 09 17/08/2022 HR Department
Workmen

02 | 1-Day joint Education | Officers = 19 18/08/2022 From NBFWED
Programme, NBFWED | Workmen = 04

03 | Fire Fighting and First | Officers = 07 30/08/2022 | Fire & Safe ty
Aid Workmen = 13 Department an d

Medical Department
04 | E-Office Officers = 36 03/09/2022 IT Department
Workmen = 02

05 | Orientation Pogramme | Workmen = 25 21/09/2022 Production Department
for Newly joined
employees on
Ammonia, CPP, WTP
& DM

06 | Orientation Pogramme | Workmen = 27 21/09/2022 Production Department
for Newly joined
employees on Urea &
Bagging
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07 | Orientation Pogramme | Workmen = 28 22/09/2022 HR Department
for Newly joined
employees on HR

08 | Orientation Pogramme | Workmen = 27 22/09/2022 | Safety Department
for Newly joined
employees on Safety

09 | Training Programme Officers = 16 03/11/2022 | IT Department
on “Bill Tracking
System”

10 | Training Programme Officers = 12 19/11/2022 | IT Department
on “Bill Tracking Workmen = 01
System — 2™ Session”

11 | Training Programme Officers = 09 19/11/2022 Instrumentation
on “Continuous on- Department
line Emission and
Effluent System”

12 | Training Programme Officers = 07 26/12/2022 Instrumentation
on “Vibration Workmen = 03 Department
Monitoring System”

13 | Orientation Pogramme | Officers = 15 20/01/2023 | HR Department
for Newly joined Workmen = 10
employees on HR

14 | Orientation Pogramme | Officers = 15 20/01/2023 HR Department
for Newly joined Workmen = 11
employees on
Administration Deptt.

15 | Orientation Pogramme | Officers = 15 21/01/2023 Chemical Department
for Newly joined Workmen = 10
employees on
Production Deptt.

16 | Orientation Pogramme | Officers = 15 21/01/2023 Mechanical
for Newly joined Workmen = 10 Department
employees on
Mechanical Deptt.

17 | Orientation Pogramme | Officers = 15 21/01/2023 Electrical Department
for Newly joined Workmen = 10
employees on
Electrical Deptt.

18 | Orientation Pogramme | Officers = 15 21/01/2023 Instrumentation
for Newly joined Workmen = 10 Department
employees on
Instrumentation
Deptt.

19 | Orientation Pogramme | Officers = 15 23/01/2023 Finance Department
for Newly joined Workmen = 10

employees on Finance
Deptt.

29
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20 | Orientation Pogramme | Officers = 15 23/01/2023 Material Management
for Newly joined Workmen = 10 Department
employees on MM
Deptt.

21 | Orientation Pogramme | Officers = 15 23/01/2023 | Technical Services
for Newly joined Workmen = 10 Department
employees on TS
Deptt.

22 | Orientation Pogramme | Officers = 15 23/01/2023 Fire & Safety
for Newly joined Workmen = 10 Department
employees on Fire &

Safety Deptt.

23 | Orientation Pogramme | Officers = 15 24/01/2023 Legal & HR
for Newly joined Workmen = 10 Department
employees on Legal

24 | Orientation Pogramme | Officers = 15 24/01/2023 Legal & HR
for Newly joined Workmen = 10 Department
employees on Legal

25 | Orientation Pogramme | Officers = 15 24/01/2023 IT Department
for Newly joined Workmen = 10
employees on IT
Deptt.

26 | Orientation Pogramme | Officers = 15 24/01/2023 | Company Secretariat
for Newly joined Workmen = 10
employees on
Company Secretariat

27 | Orientation Pogramme | Officers = 15 24/01/2023 CISF
for Newly joined Workmen = 10
employees on CISF

28 | Motivational Speech Officers = 19 30/01/2023 | Mr Indrajyoti Sengupta
‘The Chosen One’ , Kolkata

29 | Motivational Speech Workmen = 25 30/01/2023 | Mr Indrajyoti Sengupta
‘Hum Honge Kamyab’ , Kolkata

External Training Programmes

SI. | Name(s) Organised | Venue | Title Duration

No by

01 i.Sri BB Padhy DPE VC Two d ays | 14-15 July,

ii.Sri SK Sharma orientation 2022
iii.Sri RR Sen programme fo r
Non- Official Independent
(Independent) Directors
Directors of the
Company

02 | Shri D S Baruah , SCOPE Leh National M eeto n | 14-16

Dy. Manager (Legal) , ladakh | RTI Act September,
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2022
03 | Sri S. K. Sharma DPE New Two d ays | 21-22
Non- Official Delhi orientation September,
(Independent) programme fo r| 2022
Director of the Independent
Company Directors
04 | SriR. K. Gupta, DPE Noida Two d ays t raining | 22-23
DGM - Company programme fo r | September,
Secretary Company 2022
Secretaries
05 | i.Mr Tausif Ahmed, Dy | The Kota, Group Discussion | 1% to4 ™
Manager (Chem) Fertiliser Rajasth | on “Operation and | February,
ii.Mr Pulakesh Saikia, | Association | an Maintenance 2023
Dy. Manager of India Problems of Urea
(Mech) Plants”
06 | i.Mr Jitu Das, National Guwah | Efficient Operation | 15™
Asst. Manager Productivity | ati & Maintenance of | February,
(Chem) Council Boilers 2023
ii.Mr Bitopan Sarma,
Asst. Manager
(Mech)
Webinars
Sl. | Title of the Level & No. | Date Faculty
No | programme of
participants
01 | Masterclass for Officers =02 |9 to 10™ April | Institute o f
Directors’ Programme & 16 to 17" | Directors, Bengaluru
April, 2022
02 | Key Facts of Fertilizer Officers =09 |[25& 2 6 May, | The Fertiliser
Sector 2022 Association of India,
New Delhi
03 | 5™ Edition of one day Officer=02 24™  February, | All I ndia
workshop on Women 2023 Management
Leadership Association (AIMA)

C. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS REPORT

The Industrial Relations Scenario during the year was by and large peaceful.

D.ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY FOR WELFARE AND ADVANCEMENT OF

SCHEDULED CASTES (SCs

SCHEDULED TRIBES (STs
CLASSES (OBCs) AND PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED (PH)

OTHER BACKWARD

Your Corporation is following the presidential directive and guidelines/ orders issued by
the Government of India from time to time in the matter of reservation in services for SCs,
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STs and OBCs. Candidates belonging to SC and ST are fully exempted from payment of
fee while applying for any post in the Company.

Your Corporation is having one SC/ST/OBC Cell under the Liaison Officer, who initiates
necessary action to settle the grievances of the employees belonging to SC/ST community
on priority basis and in consultation with SC/ST Associations.

All the welfare facilities of your Corporation are also extended to the employees of SC/ST
community along with other employees. Our company do not received any allocation of
fund under tribal sub-plan from the Govt. of India.

The Annual statement in the prescribed format showing the representation of SCs, STs
and OBCs as on 1.01.2023 and number of appointments made during the preceding
calendar year i.e. 2022 is enclosed at Annexure — 1(C).

PUBLIC PROCUREMENT POLICY OF MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES (MSES)
ORDER, 2012:

As per this directive of Government of India, Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises, vide order dated 23 March, 2012 (as amended), your Corporation has
achieved an overall procurement of products produced and services rendered by Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises to the extent of 51.26% against set amended parameter of
minimum of 25% of total annual purchases in the Financial Year 2022-23. Moreover,
percentage o f p rocurement o f Goods an d Se rvices o nly fr om MSEs o wned by SC/ ST
entrepreneurs o ut o ft otal p rocurement was .01%. During t he Financial Y ear, y our
Corporation has achieved overall procurement of products and services rendered by MSE
owned by women enterprises only was 3.15%. In all Notice Inviting Tenders (NIT)
necessary p rovision h as b een mad e s tating the G overnment G uidelines for r elaxation
applicable to MSEs. All efforts are being made to procure items specified for procurement
from MSMEs. Your Company is registered with TReDS platform of Receivable Exchange of
India Limited (RXIL), a joint venture by SIDBI and NSE for providing bills discounting
facilities to MSME Parties.

25. VIGILANCE:

Vigilance is considered to be an integral part of the management function. The focal point
of vigilance is to protect the honest & punish the guilty together with the development of
“People” i n B usiness a nd I ndustry an d t o e nable t he man agement fo r culture o f
transparency, efficiency and fairness under the guidance of the Chief Vigilance Officer.

Vigilance Division of the Company is headed by Chief Vigilance Officer (CVO) and the CVO is
assisted by a team of vigilance officers of the Company. Regular and preventive vigilance
activities such as surprise checks, vigilance clearance for administrative decisions,
enforcement of transfer policy and rotation of officers on sensitive posts was carried out by
maintaining c lose ¢ oordination wi th t he M anagement. T he r oles a nd r esponsibilities of
vigilance o fficers ar e b eing mo nitored an d r eviewed t o b ring the fo cus 0 n s ystemic
improvement.
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The challenge b efore the Vigilance Department is to create an environment in which the
honest can work fearlessly and the corrupt are punished promptly.

Due thrust was given to maintain high degree of awareness amongst the employees. In
order to impart proper vigilance training, vigilance functionaries are being sent at different
training i nstitutes fo r u pdating t heir v igilance k nowledge and skilltobringthemin a
requisite level and to develop the quality at par the other PSUs.

eTotal 08 nos. of complaints have been received during Financial Year 2022-23, 02 (Two)
complaints were brought forwarded from Financial Year 2021-22. Out of those, total 07
(Seven) complaints were disposed off during Financial Year 2022-23.

eAgreed list of suspected officer” and List of Doubtful Integrity were prepared in
consultation of Chairman and Managing Director of the Company and CBI, Guwahati
Assam and a close watch is being kept on the listed officers. System of rotation of
officers posted in sensitive posts for more than three years is being followed.

eSurprisean dr egulari nspectionswe rec arriedo utd wuringt hey ear.
Discrepancies/irregularities noticed, if any, during the scrutiny are during brought to the
notice of the Management for corrective action/preventive measures.

eFiles pertaining to High value transactions have been examined by Vigilance Department
on regular basis as per CTE laid down pattern and on the basis of finding of inspections,
recommendation has be given for systemic improvement.

ePrompt and timely submission of Monthly Reports/ Quarterly Performance R eport(QPR)/
CTE Report/ Half yearly report to the Board of Directors for their review/ Annual
Reports/Returns t o Ce ntral V igilance Co mmission (CV C) and D epartment o f F ertilizers
(DoF) is maintained.

eAnother good practice that has been adopted in the Organization is the requirement of
public officials to annually declare their assets. These declarations called “Annual
Property Returns” are scrutinized by the Chief Vigilance Officer to identify individuals who
seem to possess assets disproportionate to their legal source of income so that a proper
watch can be kept on such officials. Therefore, keeping in view the above, regular
scrutiny of property returns of employees are carried out to ensure that employees
submit timely information to the management about moveable/immovable transactions
and to check whether any of the officers, particularly those posted at senior/sensitive
positions, are holding assets which may be termed as disproportionate to their known
source of income.

«On the directives of Central Vigilance Commission, Vigilance Awareness Week (VAW) was
observed by the Company w.e.f. the 31% October, 2022 to 6™ November, 2022 in line with

the theme “HSCHAN HAFd HRd — fA+sf@a #Ra” “Corruption free India for a

developed Nation. In a move towards inculcating the true spirit of participative
vigilance, the Commission instructed a three months campaign period from 16" August,
2022 till 15" November, 2022 in which six different preventive vigilance measures were
taken as focus areas. In house training was also conducted by the Vigilance Officials
among t he e mployees and CI SF Personnel to create aw areness. V arious c ompetitions
were conducted among the employees and school children during the VAW2022.

eGuidelines/instructions issued by the CVC/Administrative Ministry/DoPT/DPE from time to
time are being forwarded for wide circulation to all the HODs/Department at Corporate
Office, Namrup for strict compliance.
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WELFARE MEASURES (CORPORATE SOCIAL RESONSIBILITY):

Your Corporation undertakes various welfare schemes for its employees and a host of
measures as its Corporate Social Responsibility limited to (the surrounding areas within 8
kms radius). Briefly they comprise of the following:

Besides extending housing and medical facilities to its employees and dependents, your
Corporation also provides educational facilities to the children of employees and the wards
of t he T ownship an d the n earby v illages. Y our Corporation i s r unning o ne H igher
Secondary School, one Kendriya Vidyalaya and one Model Higher Secondary School
(English Medium) besides one Primary School and extended its patronage earlier for
establishment o f N amrup Co llege, o ne B .Ed Co llege f or h igher e ducation an d
establishment of a State Dispensary at Namrup. Your Corporation also extends its helping
handt oaJ wuniorC ollegean do neA ssamese Medium School, b yp roviding
accommodations within the colony area at concessional rate.

One hospital with modern equipments is available to extend medical facilities to
employees & their dependents. Nearby people of the localities and contract workers are
also provided treatment at nominal fee.

Your Corporation extends facilities to the public of Namrup and adjoining areas like
drinking water facilities, market, land for religious / cultural and other institutions and
accommodation fo r telephone exchange, post office, employment exchange and civil
defense office.

In order to maintain the total socio-cultural harmony of the locality, time to time financial
assistance ar e e xtendedt ot he n earby e ducational institutions and other social
organizations.

In addition to social security schemes like provident fund, gratuity, pension in the
Corporation, EDLI, group personal accident insurance scheme, group savings linked
insurance scheme, mediclaim policy and reimbursement scheme are implemented for the
welfare of the employees.

Employees are encouraged to acquire higher qualifications, an area of empowerment
which wo uld e nable them to go up the ladder in the Company as well i mprove their
knowledge and confidence levels.

Moreover, without indulging in any gender discrimination, special attention are being paid
in taking the appropriate steps for all round development of the female employees in the
Corporation.

In your Corporation, Corporate Social Responsibility means caring for the society, for the
people around us and contributing in every way possible to add value and improving their
quality of life.
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Despite of adverse financial status, the Company has taken several actions to meet the
ambitious goal of Hon’ble Prime Minister under the Swachh Bharat Mission and Special
Campaign 2.0 by arranging various awareness programmes for the employees of BVFCL
as well as the residents of its locality and cleanliness drive were initiated at all offices,
public buildings, hospital & guest house of the Corporation, daily markets, play grounds
and public road sides in BVFCL township. Webinar on “Curb the use of single-use plastic”
where more than 100+ BVFCL dealers from various locations of Assam, West Bengal,
Bihar Odisha, Jharkhand, Chhattisgarh and BVFCL officials had participated, workshop on
WASH p ractices we re al so b een ar ranged fo r t he d issemination o f i nformation on
Swachhta. Further, beautification of office buildings, gardens and parks were also done by
the Corporation.

27. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

Your Corporation has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee under Sexual
Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 to
look into the matters relating prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women employees at
the work places. During the year 2022-23, no complaint have been reported on sexual
harassment of women employees in work places of BVFCL.

E R =
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ANNEXURE — 1 (A) TO DIRECTORS’REPORT

FORM-A
A) Power & Fuel Consumption
Unit 2022-23 2021-22

(a) Grid Power
1.Namrup-II Kwh 0.00 0
2.Namrup-III Kwh 555150 409950
Total Cost Rs. in Lakhs 210.83 128.46
Rate Rs./ Kwh 37.98 31.34

(b) Own Generation (CPP) Kwh 102993900 98968940
Total Unit Rs. in Lakhs 5857 2845
Total Cost Rs./ Kwh 5.69 2.87
Rate

Natural Gas (Billed

Quantity)

(a) For Captive Power
consumed SCuM 655682 2025128
1.Namrup-II SCuM 29391302 29245609
2.Namrup-III Rs. in Lakhs 4663.26 1657.03
Total Cost Rs./1000 SM? 15519.89 5298.99
Rate

(b) For Boilers (S.B.,W.H.B.)
(incl. Canteen) SCuM 39593 39300
1.Namrup-II SCuM 64510676 63810169
2.Namrup-III Rs. in Lakhs 10018.13 3383.38
Total Cost Rs./1000 SM? 15519.89 5298.99
Rate

(c) For Feed Stock SCuM 0.00 0.00
1.Namrup-II SCuM 111212425 94478155
2.Namrup-III Rs. in Lakhs 17260.05 5006.39
Total Cost Rs./1000 SM? 15519.89 5298.99
Rate

(d) For Reformer Fuel* SCuM 0.00 0.00
1.Namrup-II SCuM 124466755 113417625
2.Namrup-III Rs. in Lakhs 19317.11 6009.99
Total Cost Rate Rs./1000 SM? 15519.89 5298.99
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B.Consumption per MT of production of Urea:

Unit 2022-23 2021-22
(per MT of Urea)
Natural Gas
(i) Feed Stock SM*/MT (Nam-II) 0.00 0.00
(Nam- 497.95 554.84
(i)  Electricity (CPP) I1T) 0.00 0.00
SM?*/MT (Nam-II) 131.59 171.75
(ii)  Boilers etc. (Nam- 0.00 0.00
I11) 288.84 374.74
(iv) Reformer Fuel* SM*/MT (Nam-II) 0.00 0.00
(Nam- 557.29 666.07
I1T)
SM?*/MT (Nam-II)
(Nam-
I1T)
Electricity
(i) Grid Power Kwh/ MT (Nam-II) 0 0
(Nam- 2.48 2.41
(i)  Generated Power I1T) 461.15 581.21
Kwh/MT Urea

* Includes NG consumption in Aux. Boiler & Aux. Steam Super Heater.


Company Secy
Typewriter
37


38
ANNEXURE -1 (B) TO DIRECTORS’REPORT:

FORM B

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

A.ENERGY CONSERVATION MEASURES:

Both Namrup-II and Namrup-III plants have surpassed their effective economic life and it
has been confirmed by process licensors like HTAS and PDIL that no major improvement in
performance is possible in these plants due to inherent deficiencies in these plants like small
capacity compared to present day standard size plant, unproven technology and obsolete
equipments which were long discontinued by the OEMs etc. It was further certified in 2011
that these plants could be run for another 4 — 5 years and establishment of a new standard
size plant based on state-of-the-art technology, after closing the existing units, is the only
alternative for long term s urvival. T his h as b een r eflected in t he U rea P olicy 2015 an d
subsequent amendments. Due to paucity of fund, capital investments are restricted to
extremely unavoidable cases and on the basis of need to run the plants for next 4 — 5 years.

However, to run the existing plants in economical viable manner till the new plant is
commissioned, energy consumption norm fixed by FICC more than 20 years back on adhoc
basis are required to be reworked because of change in circumstances during the
intervening period. As per outcome of QRM meeting at DoF, M/s. PDIL was engaged to
review the FICC energy consumption norm of Namrup-II and Namrup-III plants and the
report submitted by them has recommended 18.12 GCal/MT of urea w.e.f. 01.01.2015 and
13.243 GCal/MT of urea w.e.f. 01.01.2017 for Namrup-II and Namrup-III respectively as the
new energy consumption norm to be adopted by FICC. The Company is experiencing huge
financial c runch d ue t o s mall capacity of the plant, o bsolete technology an d e quipment
leading to frequent breakdowns and dependence of only one product i.e. Urea, which is
completely Govt. controlled for its feedstock and market price.

B.Technology Absorption:

In all the renewal and replacement jobs executed periodically, products with latest available
upgraded technology are procured. Some examples are, procurement of multi hole catalyst
in primary reformer, setting-up of neem coated urea facility by in-house expertise,
implementation of Online Pollution Monitoring System etc.

Due t o d elay/non-availability o f c areer mat erial | ike lignite, half b urnt rice husk etc. for
production of solid Bio Fertilizers causing production loss/delay, decision was taken to start
producing Liquid Bio Fertilizers at the earliest. Accordingly, through in-house expertise, the
existing Bio Fertilizer production facility was converted to Liquid Bio Fertilizer production
facility with considerable capacity enhancement. This has ensured smooth and increased Bio
Fertilizer production which will not require any career material. This is in line with the Gol
initiative to promote organic fertilizers with the aim to reduce Urea consumption, resulting
atmanirbharta in Urea production and soil upgradation. All time highest Bio Fertilizer
production could be achieved in Financial Year 2022-23.
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C. R & D Efforts

39

> Nil

D. Benefit derived as aresult of R & D : Nil

E. Foreign Exchange
Earning and Outgo

: During the year under review, Company has

not earned any foreign exchange but
expend Rs. 362.83 lakhs (previous year Rs.
33.34 lakhs) towards purchase of foreign
goods for capital equipment.

E
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ANNEXURE —h‘

\NNUAL STATEMENT SHOWING THE REPRESENTATION OF SCs, STs and OBCs and PHs AS ON 1°" JANUARY, 2023 AND NUMBER
OF APPOINTMENTS MADE DURING THE PRECEDING CALENDER YEAR. ,
NAME OF THE PUBLIC ENTERPRISES: BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED, NAMRUP.

Groups Representation of SCs / STs / OBCs Number of appointments made during the calendar year 2022
as on 01.01.2023 By Direct Recruitment Method By Promotion By Other Methods
C Total No. of | SCs | STs | OBCs | Total | SCs |STs | OBCs | Total | SCs | STs |OBCs| Total SCs | STs | OBCs
- employees
L
rﬁ 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 | 8 9 10 | 11 |12 ] 13 16 16 | 16 17
|2 Growpa 268 23 | 28 | 8 | 26 | 4 | 0 | 14 | 27 [ 2 | 5] 7 . - - :
/ = GroupB 45 5 11 16 - - - - 1 - 1 - - - - -
| Group C 48 3 6 10 15 0 5 6 14 1 2 6 - - - -
Group D 31 4 5 12 16 2 3 4 - - - - - - - -
(Excluding Safai
Karmachari) »
Group D 1 1 - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
(Safai Karmachari)
Total f 393 36 | 50 | 121 57 6 8 24 42 3 8 | 13 - - - -

The representation of physically handicapped manpower as under (included in the above statement):

 Group Total | SCs STs OBCs

Group B - - - -
GI'OEP C 1 - - 1

 Group D - - 1 - )
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ANNEXURE-I1 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance has been a continuous endeavor in your Corporation that cares for
an overall well-being and welfare of all the constituent of the system and takes into account
the stakeholder’s interest at every business decision. Your Corporation is committed to
pursue growth by adhering to the highest standards of corporate governance. The primary
objective is to create and adhere to a corporate culture of consciousness, transparency and
openness in creating awareness of corporate vision and spark dynamism and
entrepreneurship at all levels. Your Corporation believes that governance must balance
individual interest with corporate goals and operate within the accepted norms of propriety,
equity, fair play and a sense of justice. In your Corporation, accountability and transparency
are key drivers to improve decision making and rationale behind such decisions to create
stakeholders confidence.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
A. CONSTITUTION OF BOARD
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 2 (45) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Corporation is

a “Government Company” holding 100% of its paid up share capital by the President of
India. Members of the Board of Directors are appointed by the President of India.

B. RESPONSIBILITIES AND EVALUATION PROCESS OF BOARD / COMMITTEE

The r esponsibilities of Board is to o versee the Company’s s trategic p olicies, r eview a nd
monitor ¢ orporate p erformance, e nsure r egulatory ¢ ompliance an d reviewing t he r isk
minimizing e fforts o f e xecutive man agement i n t he o peration o f Co mpany. B oard i s
considering appropriate mechanism for evaluating performance of Committees/Board.

C. BOARD / COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES

I. Institutionalize decision making process

With a view to institutionalize all corporate affairs and set up systems and procedures
for ad vance p lanning fo r mat ters r equiring d iscussion/ d ecisions by t he B oard, y our
Corporation has defined guidelines for the meetings of the Board of Directors and
Committee thereof. These guidelines seek to systematize the decision making process at
the me etings o f B oard/ Co mmittees, i n an i nformed an d e fficient manner. Y our
Corporation’s guidelines relating to Board meetings are applicable to Committee
Meetings as far as practicable.

41
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I1. Scheduling and selection of Agenda items for Board/Committee Meetings.
a. The meetings ar e convened by giving ap propriate ad vance n otice aft er o btaining

approval of the Chairman of the Board/ Committee. To address the specific urgent
need, meetings are also being called at a shorter notice. In case of exigencies or
urgency, resolutions are passed in circulation.

b. Detailed a genda ¢ ontainingt he man agement r eports an d o ther e xplanatory
statements are circulated in advance amongst the members of the Board/Committee
for facilitating meaningful informed and focused decisions at the meetings. Wherever
it is not practicable to circulate any document or the agenda is of confidential nature,
the same is tabled with the approval of CMD and majority of members present in the
meeting. I n s pecial an d e xceptional ¢ ircumstances, ad ditional o r s upplementary
agenda are being considered subject to the permission of CMD and majority of
members present in the meeting of Board/ Committee.

c. The memberso f the Board are entitled to access all thei nformationo f the
Corporation and are free to recommend inclusion of any matter in agenda for
discussion. In case of need, the senior officials of the Corporation are invited to
attend t he B oard/Committee me etings t o p rovide ad ditional i nputs r elating t o t he
items being discussed and / or giving presentation to the Board/Committee.

d. The meetings of Board/ Committee are normally held at the registered office of the
Corporation in Namrup or at any other place(s) as may be decided by the Executive
Mangement of the Company from time to time.

e. The agenda papers are prepared by the Sr. executives of concern departments,
sponsored by the functional Directors and approved by the CMD. Duly approved
agenda papers are circulated amongst the members of the Board/ Committee by the
Company Secretary well in advance.

f. Company Secretary follow up with the concern Department for the action taken
reports based on the decisions of earlier Board/ Co mmittee meetings and compiled
the reports in consultation with Functional Directors and CMD before including in the
agenda of the Board/ Committee meetings.

g. Minutes of the proceedings of each Board/ Committee meeting are finalized as per the
provisions o f Secretarial Standard approved b y t he Central Government within
stipulated time. After the finalisation of minutes by the chairman, certified copy of
minutes are circulated to all the members of the Board/Committee by the Company
Secretary. These minutes of Board / Committee are noted in the next Board/
Committee meetings, respectively.

h. The extract of decisions of Board/ Committee are circulated by the Company
Secretary to the HODs of concerned Departments for taking necessary actions
thereon.

i. As pert he Co rporate Governance Guidelines issued b y DPE r egarding training
mechanism o f D irectors, B oard o f D irectors h as ap proved a T raining Policy a nd
undertake t o n ominate e very y ear at | east One G ovt. D irector, O ne n on o fficial
Director and One Functional Director at the convenience of concerned Directors for
such training, seminar, conference, conventions sponsored by the prestigious
institutions.
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111. COMPLIANCE OF LAWS

The Executive Management of the Company is responsible to ensure adherence to all
the applicable provisions of laws, rules and guidelines, etc. A quarterly statutory
compliance report (collected from all the departments) confirming adherence to all the
applicable laws, rules, guidelines, etc. are being reviewed by the Board on quarterly

basis.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year under review, 6 (s ix) meetings of Board of Directors were held,
details of which are as under :

Board Meeting No. Date No. of Directors
attended
111 24.05.2022 6
112 29.07.2022 5
113 02.09.2022 4
114 29.09.2022 6
115 16.12.2022 7
116 13.03.2023 6

COMPOSITION OF BOARD

As on 31% March, 2023, there were eight (08) members in the Board of Directors of
the Co mpany, c omprises Shri Siba P rasad M ohanty, Ch airman & M anaging D irector,
Shri Su bash Ch andra Das, D irector (F inance), Shri P radip K umar B anik, D irector
(Production), Shri Harvinder Singh, Govt. Nominee Director (DOF), Shri Niranjan Lal,
Govt. Nominee Director (DOF), Shri Bipina Bihari Padhy, Non Official Director, Shri
Satish Kumar Sharma, Non Official Director and Shri R abi Ranjan Sen, Non Official
Director.

The details of composition and category of Directors, attendance of each Director at the
Board Meetings and the last AGM, directorship and membership in committees of other
companies for each Director of the Company are given below.

Name Shri Attendance particulars Details of Directorship and
committee members/
chairman

No. o fB oard | Last AGM Details o f | Details of
meetings Held on | Directorships i n | committee
attended 29.09.2022 | other public | memberships
during the year limited and committee
companies Chairmanship
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Functional Directors

Shri Siba Prasad | 6 Yes FAI -
Mohanty, Chairman &
Managing Director and Hindustan
Director Urvarak &
Rasayan
Limited
(Add. Charge of
MD)
Shri D igambar Sah ai, | 2 NA - -
Director (Production) (*)
Shri Subash Chandra Das | 6 Yes - Member i n
Director (Finance) Dispute
Resolution
Committee
Part Time Official Directors
ShriSh  yam Su ndar |1 NA - -Member of
Agarwal, Govt. Nominee Audit
Director (DOF), (**) Committee
Shri K. Gurumurthy, 0 NA - -Member of
Govt. Nominee Director Audit
(***) Committee
-Member in
Remuneration
Committee
Member i n
Dispute
Resolution
Committee
Shri Harvinder Singh 2 Yes - -Member in
Govt. Nominee Director Remuneration
(FF*x) Committee
Shri Niranjan  Lal | 2 No - -Member  of
Nominee Director Audit
(FHHXX) Committee
-Member in
Remuneration
Committee
-Member in
Dispute
Resolution
Committee

Non Official Part Time Director
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Bipina Bihari Padhy, 6 Yes - -Chairman  of
Bhubaneswar Audit
Committee
-Chairman  of
Remuneration
Committee
-Member in
Dispute
Resolution
Committee
Shri Satish Kumar | 3 Yes - -Member of
Sharma, Non O fficial Audit
Director Committee
-Member in
Remuneration
Committee
-Member in
Dispute
Resolution
Committee
Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen, | 6 Yes -Member of
Non Official Director Audit
Committee
-Member in
Remuneration
Committee
-Member in
Dispute
Resolution
Committee

(*) Ceased the Directorship w.e.f. 31.08.2022.
(**) ceased from the Directorship w.e.f.19.07.2022
(****)Ceased from the Directorship w.e.f. 20.07.2022
(****) Assumed the Directorship w.e.f. 19.07.2022

(*¥****) Assumed the Directorship w.e.f. 03.10.2022

No Director of the company is a member in more than 10 (ten) committee or is a Chairman of
more than five (5) committees across all companies in which he is a Director.

F. CODE OF CONDUCT

Your Corporation has adopted a code of conduct and ethics applicable to the Board of
Directors and Senior Management Personnel (DGM and above) of the Company. The code
requires Directors and e mployees to act honestly, fairly, ethically, and with transparency
and integrity. The Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel are required to
affirm compliance with the code of conduct on an annual basis. The code has been
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displayed on the Company’s website at www.bvfcl.com. All members of Board of Directors
(including Chief Vigilance Officer) and Se nior Management P ersonnel have complied with
the code and the compliance has been affirmed by them to that effect. A declaration to this
effect, duly signed by the Chairman and Managing Director is placed at Annexure -11 (A).

INFORMATION PLACED BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Executive Management of your Corporation shall present the following information before
the Board of Directors, either as part of the agenda papers or are tabled/ presented during the
course of Board meeting:

¢ Annual operating plans and budgets and any updates.

e Capital budgets and any updates.

e Quarterly results for the Company and its operating divisions or business segments.

e Minutes of meetings of audit committee and other committees of the Board.

e The information o n r ecruitment an d r emuneration o f s enior officers j ust b elow t he
board | evel, i ncluding appointment o r r emoval o f Chief F inancial Officer an d the
Company Secretary.

e Shows cause, demand, prosecution notices and penalty notices which are materially
important.

e Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or pollution
problems.

e Any material default in financial obligations to and by the Company or substantial non-
payment for goods sold by the Company.

e Any issue, which involves possible public or product liability claims of substantial
nature, including any judgement or order which may have passed strictures on the
conduct of the Company or taken an adverse view regarding another enterprise that
can have negative implications on the Company.

e Details of any joint venture or collaboration agreement.

e Transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity, or
intellectual property.

e Significant labour problems and their proposed solutions. Any significant development
in human resources/industrial relations front like signing of wage agreement,
implementation of Voluntary Retirement Scheme etc.

e Sale of material nature of investments, subsidiaries, assets, which is not in normal
course of business.

e Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by management
to limit the risks of adverse exchange rate movement, if material.

e Non-compliance o f any regulatory, statutory r equirements an d s hareholders s ervice
such as non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc.

2. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Constitution and Composition
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At the end of Financial Year 2022-23, Audit Committee comprises Four (04) members i.e. Shri
Bipina Bihari Padhy, Non Official Director (Chairman); Shri Satish Kumar Sharma, Non Official
Director, Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen, Non Official Director and Shri Niranjan Lal, Govt. Nominee
Director (DOF).

During the year under review, Audit Committee has reviewed the followings business in the
meetings:

i) Quarterly reports of physical verification of Raw Materials, Intermediate, Finished product
and Packing materials ;

i) Quarterly Internal Audit (Technical) Reports;

iii) Review Internal Audit Reports

iv) Review of Annual Accounts of the Company before approval by the Board;

v) Review of Audit observations of Statutory Auditors and management replies thereon;

vi) Review comments of C & AG ;

vii) Review remuneration of Statutory Auditors;

viii) Review Appointment of Cost Auditors;

ix) Review of action taken reports on the decisions of earlier Audit Committee meetings.
X) Management Discussions and Analysis Report;

xi) Review Certification/declaration of financial statements by the Chairman and Managing
Director and Director (Finance) of the Company;

xii) Review appointment of Internal Auditors of the Company

xiii)Review appointment of Cost Auditors;

xiv)Review quarterly/half yearly/Annual cost accounting records;

xVv) Physical verification of weighted packed urea Bags

xvi)Appointment of registered valuer for valuation of assets of the Company

xvii) Review External Safety Audit Report

xviii) Review Risk Management status reports

xix)Appointment of Tax Auditor

xx) Cost Control and Cost Reduction

Board of Directors of the Corporation has constituted Audit Committee initially in their 12"
meeting held on 6.06.2003. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee has been
approved by the Board at the time of constitution and modified in 57" meeting of Board of
Directors held on 3.06.2011 in line with the guidelines of corporate governance issued by the
Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) and further modified in 76" (Adjourned) meeting held
on 10.04.2016 in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR AUDIT COMMITTEE OF BVFCL

The following are terms of reference of Audit Committee :

1. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial

2.

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.
Recommending to the Board the fixation of audit fees.

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the

statutory auditors.

4. R eviewing with the management quarterly, half yearly andt he annual financial

10.

11.
12.
14.

statements before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Directors” Responsibility Statement to be
included in the Board'’s report in terms of section 144 (5) o f the Companies Act,
2013;

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

¢. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit
findings;

e. Compliance with legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions; and

g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.

h. The going concern assumption.

i. Compliance with Accounting Standard.

j. Reviewing the company’s financial and risk management policies.

k. the going concern assumption

I. Compliance of Accounting Standard of ICAL

Reviewing with the management performance of internal auditors and adequacy of the
internal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors and/or auditors any significant findings and follow up

there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal
auditors/auditors/agencies into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity
or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to
the Board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and

scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors,
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of nonpayment of declared dividends) and
creditors.

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism.

To review the follow up action on the audit observations of the C&AG audit.

To review the follow up action taken on the recommendations of Committee on
Public Undertakings (COPU) of the Parliament.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.
21.
22,
23.
24,

49

Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor, internal
auditor and the Board of Directors.

Review all related party transactions in the company. For this purpose, the Audit
Committee may designate a member who shall be responsible for reviewing related
party transactions. A statement in the prescribed format giving details about all
related party transactions taken place in a particular year should be included in the
Board’s report for that year for disclosure to various stakeholders.

Explanation: The term “related party transactions” shall have the same meaning
as contained in the Accounting Standard 18, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Review with the independent auditor the co-ordination of audit efforts to assure
completeness of coverage, reduction of redundant efforts, and the effective use of all
audit resources.
Consider and review the following with the independent auditor and the management:
- The adequacy of internal controls including computerized information system
controls and security, and
- Related findings and recommendations of the independent auditor and internal
auditor, together with the management responses.
Co nsider and r eview t he fo llowing wi th the man agement, i nternal au ditor and t he
independent auditor:
- Significant findings d uring t he y ear, including t he s tatus of previous audit
recommendations
- Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any restrictions on the
scope of activities or access to required information.

Explanation: If the company has set up an Audit Committee pursuant to provision of
the Companies Act, the said Audit Committee shall have such additional
functions/features as contained in these guidelines.

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee.

Reviewing the company’s financial and risk management policies.

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary.
Evaluation of internal financial controls

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related
parties.

POWERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Commensurate with its role, the Audit Co mmittee empowered by the Board of Directors
the following:

(i) To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.
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(i) T o s eek i nformation o n an d fr om an y e mployee an d as sess to i nformation
contained in the records of the Company.

(iii) To obtain outside legal or other professional advice, subject to the approval of the
Board of Directors.

(iv) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

v) To have independent back office support and other resources from the company.

(vi) To protect whistle blowers.

1IV. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the year under review, five (05) Audit Committee Meetings were held.

Audit Committee No. | Date No. of Directors
attended
74 24.05.2022 3
75 29.07.2022 2
76 29.09.2022 3
77 16.12.2022 4
78 13.03.2023 4

Chief Vigilance Officer (CVO) of the Company appointed by the Govt. of India through
Department of Fertilizers is the permanent Special Invitee in the Audit Committee meeting
of the Corporation. Chairman & Managing Director, Director (Finance), Internal Auditors
and Statutory Auditors were attended the meetings as Special Invittee(s).

V. Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

3. Tenure of Directors

The age limit of Chairman & Managing Director and other Whole Time Functional Directors
is sixty years. The Chairman and Managing Director and the Whole Time Functional
Directors of the Company are appointed by the President of India through the Department
of Fertilizers for a p eriod of five years from the date of taking charge or till the date of
superannuation or till further instructions from the Government of India, whichever event
occurs earlier. The Government Directors representing the Department of Fertilizers,
Government of India, retires from the Board on ceasing to be officials of the Department
of Fertilizers or withdrawal of homination by the Department of Fertilizers (Govt. of India).
Independent Directors are appointed by the Government of India for a tenure of three
years at a time.

Remuneration of Directors

Your Company is a wholly owned Central Public Sector Undertaking and being the
Government Company under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there
under, the Functional Directors of the Company are appointed /nominated by President of
India through the Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers, Department of Fertilizers. T he
Functional Directors so appointed, draw remuneration under Industrial Dearness
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Allowance (IDA) p attern of pay scales and as per the terms and conditions issued by
Government o f India from time to time. T he p art-time o fficial (G overnment N ominee)
Directors on the Board of the Company do not draw any remuneration from the Company.
They only draw regular remuneration from the Department of Fertilizers as Government
officials. The Part Time Non Official Directors (Independent) on the Board of the Company
entitled for the payment of sitting fee of Rs. 10,000/- for each meeting of the B oard
and/or Committee and reimbursement of actual travelling, boarding, lodging and other
expenses incurred in connection with the business of the Corporation.

In compliance with the conditions of guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) and Department of Public enterprises (DPE), Corporation has constituted/
re-constituted remuneration committee of Directors from time to time and the last
reconstitution of the Remuneration Committee was done by Resolution by Circulation No.
116.01 dated 02.03.2023 (noted in 116" Board Meeting dated 13.03.2023). As on 31
March, 2023, the Remuneration Committee of the Board of your Corporation comprises
four members i.e. Sh. Bipina Bihari Padhy, Non Official Director (Chairman), Sh. Satish
Kumar Sharma, Non Official Director, Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen, Non Official Director and Shri
Harvinder Singh, Govt. Nominee Director. The existing terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee shall remain unchanged. The above Committee shall meet at
least twice in a financial year and not more than six months shall elapse between two
meetings. The quorum shall be one-third of its total strength or two members, whichever
is higher and at least two Non-Official (Independent) Director must be present.

During the year under review one meeting of Remuneration Committee was held on
16.12.2022.

Dispute Resolution Committee

Initially, as per the directions of Audit Committee in their 66™ meeting held on 30.06.2020,
executive management constituted a Committee namely “Dispute Resolution Committee
vide n otification dated 22.08.2020 u nder t he Chairmanship o f N on O fficial D irector (Shri
Bipina Bihari Padhy) and other members of Sr. Management officials of the company for the
purpose t o r eview al | the | egal d isputes/cases p ending i n d ifferent c ourts, St atutory
Authoriites, Forums, etc. and e xplore t he p ossibility of amicable resolution of the above
disputes/cases through alternate mechanism and submit its report to the Board.

The D ispute R esolution Co mmittee was ¢ onstituted/ fromtimetotimeandt hel ast
reconstitution of the Dispute Resolution Committee during the year under review was done
by Resolution by Circulation No. 116.01 dated 02.03.2023 (noted in 116™ Board Meeting
dated 13.03.2023). As on 31% March, 2023, the Dispute Resolution Committee of the Board
of y our Co rporation c omprises fi ve me mbers i.e. Shri R abi Ranjan Se n (Ch airman), Shri
Bipina Bihari Padhy, Non Official Director, Shri Satish Kumar Sharma, Non Official Director,
Shri Niranjan Lal, Govt. Nominee Director and Shri S. C. Das, Director (Finance). The
existing terms of reference of the Dispute Resolution Committee shall remain unchanged.
The above Committee shall meet at |east twice in a fi nancial year and not more than six
months shall elapse between two meetings. The quorum shall be one-third of its total
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strength or two members, whichever is higher and at least two Non-Official (Independent)
Director must be present.

During the year under review, two meetings of the Dispute resolution committee were held.

Corporate Social Committee :

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company satisfies two threshold criteria as under the
provisions of Section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e. Turnover >/ 1000 Crore and
Net Profit >/5 Crore out of the three criteria. In compliance of the provisions of Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013, the CSR Committee of the Company was constituted by the
Board on July 25, 2023 and the CSR Policy is in process of formulation.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board of the Company comprises four
directors i.e. Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen (Chairman), Non Official Director, Shri Satish Kumar
Sharma, Non Official Director, Shri Niranjan Lal, Govt. Nominee Director and Shri Subhash
Chandra Das, Director (Finance) of the Company.

Secretarial Audit report

Secretarial Audit Report have been obtained from M/s. Pravin Chhajer & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretary, Guwahati regarding compliance of the conditions V of Voluntary Corporate
Governance guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and the management
replies on the observations stated in the report are enclosed at Annexure- 11 (B), (D) to the
Directors’ Report.

6 Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance guidelines

Compliance Certificate have been obtained from M/s. Pravin Chhajer & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretary, Guwahati regarding compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance
in accordance with the guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) is enclosed
at Annexure- 11 (C) to the Directors’ Report and the management replies to the observations
stated in the Compliance Certificate is enclosed at Annexure- 11 (D) to the Directors’ Report.

7. CEQ /CEOQ Certification

In compliance of clause no. 4.5 (vi) of the guidelines on corporate governance for CPSEs, 2010
issued by the D epartment o f P ublic Enterprises (D PE), Ch airman & Managing D irector and
Director (Finance) of the Company give annual certificate on financial reporting and internal
controls to the Board of Directors of the Company. T he certificate given by the Chairman &
Managing Director and Director (Finance) is enclosed at Annexure-11 (E) to the Directors’
Report.
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8. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

Your Company being a Government Company under the administrative control by the Ministry
of Ch emicals an d F ertilizers, D epartment o f F ertilizers i s c overed u nder Ce ntral V igilance
Commission (CVC). Therefore, as per CVC guidelines, a mechanism has been established in
the Company for all its stakeholders to report about any unethical/ corruptible behavior, actual
or suspected fraud to the CVO or the Chairman and Managing Director directly. No employee
has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the BVFCL Board.

DISCLOSURES :

The Company has not entered into any related party transactions with the Directors or
their relatives (Disclosure made by directors individually pursuant to Section 184 of
Companies Act) having potential interest with the Company at large, which were noted
by the Board in its meeting. Transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note
No.30.02 forming part of the Annual Accounts, in line with the Accounting Standard -18
on Related Party Transactions.

The Company has taken adequate steps to comply with the guidelines on Corporate
Governance issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), 2010.

The Company has complied with the Presidential directive received during the financial
year 2017-18.

No items of expenditure debited in the books of accounts, which are not for the purpose
of the business.

No e xpenditure i ncurred which are p ersonal in nature and incurred for the Board of
Directors and top Management.

Details of Administrative and Office expenses as a percentage of total expenses vis — a
vis financial expenses and reasons for increase are as under :

2022-23 2021-22
% of Total| % of Total | % of Total|% of Total | Remarks
Exp. Finance Exp. Finance
Exp.(Int.) Exp.(Int.)
Administrative | 1.32 Nil 1.69 Nil
Office Exp. 0.01 Nil 0.02 Nil
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ANNEXURE —11 (A) TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE OF CODE OF CONDUCT
In compliance with the clause 3.4.2 of guidelines of Corporate Governance for CPSUs issued by
the Department of Public Enterprises, Board has approved the Code of Conduct Rules for all

members of Board of D irectors and Se nior M anagement o f t he Co mpany, which has b een
posted on company’s website www.bvfcl.com.

All the members of Board of Directors and the Senior Management Executives do hereby
affirms the compliance with the above Code of Conduct Rules.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited

Sd/-
Siba Prasad Mohanty
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN : 05336787
Date : 27" September, 2023
Place : Namrup, Assam
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ANNEXURE Il B TO DIRECTORS REPORT 55

PRAVIN CHHAJER & ASSOCIATES ik
COMPANY SECRETARIES et

GEW AN

FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2023
Pursuant to section 204(1} of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,

The Members,

BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U24123AS52002GO0I006786

P.O. Parbatpur, Namrup, Dibrugarh-786623, Assam

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliarice of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER
CORPORATION LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

We report that:-
a. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our Audit.

b. We have followed the Audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. We
believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

¢. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statement of
the Company.

d. The compliance of the provisions of the corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was
limited to the verifications of procedures on test basis.

e. The Secrefarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31st day of March, 2023 (“audit period”), complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporing
made hereinafter: par


Company Secy
Typewriter
ANNEXURE II B TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

Company Secy
Typewriter
55


DRAVIN CHNMHATED & ASCre T - STEATRRHEA L REWY
PRAVIN CHHAJER & ASSOCIATI ke W

COMPANY SECRETARIES

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fited and other records
maintained by BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED. (“The
Company”) for the financial year ended on 31%t March, 2023 according to the provisions of;

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under:
(ii} Other corporate laws specifically applicable to the Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:-

a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

b) Corporate Governance Voluntary Guidelines, 2009 issued by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Government of India.

¢) Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises, 2010 issued by Ministry of
Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of India.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except our observation in
Note-1 subject to observation as under:

We further report that:-

The status of the Company during the financial year 2022-23 has been that of an Unlisted Public
Sector Company and all the shares are held in the name of President of India and officials of
Department of Fertilizers, Govt. of India.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted which is as per guidelines of
Corporate Governancc for Central Public Sector Enterprises, 2010 issued by Ministry of Heavy
Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of [ndia.

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, (except at few board meeting when
consent was received from the directors to hold meeting at shorter notice on urgent matters)
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting,

Board decisions are carried out with unanimous consent and therefore, no dissenting views
were required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes. The Company has also
recorded few comments received from the Board of Directors in the minutes of the Company.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable taws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

o
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We further report that during the audit period, the Company had no specific events / actions
which have a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws,
rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

We further report that during the audit period there were no instances of:

(i) Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares / debentures/sweat equity, etc.

(ii) Redemption / buy-back of securities

(iii) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act,
2013

(iv) Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc.

(v) Foreign technical collaborations.

Date: 22.09.2023 FOR PRAVIN CHHAJER & ASSOCIATES
Place: Guwahati COMPANY SECRETARIES
UDIN: A025787E001057147 AW
e Q, 1
Peer Review Regn. No.: 4436,/2023 (_____4,-) MK 21T
T
(PRAVIN KUMAR CHHAJER)
Proprietor
M. No.: A25787
COP: 9231
Note:1

1) During the course of our audit, it was observed that the Company has held only one
meeting of Remuneration Committee. The meeting of the Board of Directors held on
28/02/2022 decided to hold at least two meetings of the Remuneration Committee in
a financlal year and not more than 6 months shalil elapse between two meetings.
However, the Company in its Board Meeting dated 02/09/2022 has reconstituted
Remuneration Committee of the Board.

2) During the course of our audit, it was observed that the meeting of the Board of
Directors held on 28.02.2022, decided to hold at leust two meetings of the Dispute
Resolution Committee in a financial year and not more than six {6) months shall
elapse between two meetings. However, the Company in its Board Meeting dated
02/09/2022 has reconstituted Dispute Resolution Committee of the Board. Moreover,
the Company has held two meetings of Dispute Resolution Committee in the Jinancial
year dated 16/12/2022 and 13/03/2023 respectively but it was observed that the time
gap between two meetings was not maintained. That being so, the Company has
failed to conduct meeting in the first half of the financial year.
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ANNEXURE Il (C) TO DIRECTORS REPORT

PRAVIN CHHAJER & ASSOCIATE AL H \\-g!lé I\'. ..I;. |

COMPANY SECRETARIES W e

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

Ta,

The Members,

BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER COPORATION LIMITED
CIN: U24123AS2002G01006786

P.0. Parbatpur, Namrup, Dibrugarh -786623, Assam

We have examined the Compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance by BRAHMAPUTRA
VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED (“The Company”) for the year ended on 31st
March, 2023 as stipulated in the guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises, 2010 as amended issued by Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises,
Government of India.

The Compliance of Conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.
Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the Compliance of the Conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, we
certify that the Company has complied with the Conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated
in the above mentioned Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises, 2010 as
amended issued by Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of India, as
applicable except few observations made during the course of our Audit.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the Company.

All mandatory conditions of the said guidelines were complied subject to following
observations:-

Note:1

1} During the course of our audit, it was observed that the Company has held only
one meeting of Remuneration Committee. The meeting of the Board of Directors
held on 28/02/2022 decided to hold at least two meetings of the Remuneration
Committee in a financial year and not more than 6 months shall elapse between
two meetings. However, the Company in its Board Meeting dated 02/09/2022
has reconstituted Remuneration Committee of the Board.
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2) During the course of our audit, it was observed that the meeting of the Board of
Directors held on 28.02.2022, decided to hold at Ileast two meetings of the
Dispute Resolution Committee in a financial year and not more than six {6)
months shall elapse between two meetings. However, the Company in its Board
Meeting dated 02/09/2022 has reconstituted Dispute Resolution Committee of
the Board. Moreover, the Company has held two meetings of Dispute Rescolution
Committee in the financlal year dated 16/12/2022 and 13/03/2023 respectively
but it was observed that the time gap between two meetings was not
maintained. That being so, the Company has falled to conduct meeting in the
Jirst half of the financial year.

Date: 22.09.2023 FOR PRAVIN CHHAJER & ASSOCIATES
Place: Guwahati COMPANY SECRETARIES

UDIN: A025787E001057334 ‘

Peer review Regn. No.: 4436,/2023 Ty - Ll LL\ g

WJER ] \ .-'”"'7 \(; ,

m \\ (PRAVIN KUMAR CHHAJER)
ARRH=T i Proprietor

"y M. No.: A25787
reEcReS COP: 9231
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ANNEXURE —11

D) TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT

MANAGEMENT REPLIES ON THE OBSERVATONS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CERTIFICATE AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF THE COMPANY FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

S.

No.

Observations

Management Replies

1.

During the course of our audit, it was
observed that the Company has held only one
meeting of Remuneration Committee. The
meeting of the Board of Directors held on
28/02/2022 decided to hold at least two
meetings of the Remuneration Committee in a
financial year and not more than 6 months
shall elapse between two meetings. However,
the Company in its Board Meeting dated
02/09/2022 h as r econstituted R emuneration
Committee of the Board.

There are changes in the composition
of Remuneration Committee from time
to time. Now, after the changes in the
composition of Board of Directors, the
Remuneration Co mmittee h as r ecently
been r econstituted b y t he B oard o n
02.09.2022 and 02.03.2023.

The Necessary compliance will be made
in this regard.

During the course of our audit, it was
observed t hat t he meetingoftheBoardof
Directors held on 28.02.2022, decided to hold
at least two meetings of the Dispute
Resolution Committee in a financial year and
not more than six (6) months shall elapse

betweent wo m eetings. However, the
Company in its Board Meeting dated
02/09/2022 has reconstituted Dispute

Resolution Committee of the Board. Moreover,
the Company hash eldt wo meetingso f
Dispute Resolution Committee in the financial
year dated 16/12/2022 and 13/03/2023
respectively but it was observed that the time
gap between two meetings was not
maintained. T hat being so, the Company has
failed to conduct meeting in the first half of
the financial year.

There are changes in the composition
of Dispute Resolution Committee from
time to time. Now, after the changes in
the composition of Board of Directors,
the Remuneration Committee has
recently been reconstituted by the
Board on 02.09.2022 and 02.03.2023.

The Necessary compliance will be made
in this regard.
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ANNEXURE- 11 (E) TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finance Officer in compliance of
Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs, 2010
To,
The Board of Directors
Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited
Namrup

I, Siba Prasad Mohanty , Chairman and M anaging D irector and Shri S ubash Ch andra D as,
Director (Finance) o f t he B rahmaputra V alley F ertilizer C orporation L imited d o h ereby give
certification as per Clause 4.5 (vi) of the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs, 2010,
that:

(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year
ended 31% March, 2023 and that to the best of my knowledge and belief:

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and Regulations.

(b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during
the fi nancial y ear e nded 31 ** March, 2 023 which ar e fr audulent, i llegal o r v iolates the
Company’s code of conduct.

(c) We accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of Internal Control Systems of the Company
pertaining t o fi nancial r eporting an d we h ave d isclosed tot he au ditors an d the A udit
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation or such internal control, if any, of which we
are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee that :

(i) There was no significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the financial
year ended 31% March, 2023;

(i) There was no significant change in accounting policies during the financial year ended 31
March, 2023; and

(iii) We have not come across any instance during the financial year ended 31* March, 2022 of
any significant fraud and the involvement of the management or an employee having a
significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Sd/- Sd/-
(Subash Chandra Das) (Siba Prasad Mohanty)
Director (Finance) Chairman and Managing Director
DIN : 08988297 DIN : 05336787

Date : 26.09.2023
Place: Namrup, Assam
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MANAGEMENT REPLIES ON THE OBSERVATIONS STATED IN INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31°" MARCH,2023

Sl. Key Audit Point Response to Key Audit point
No.
3 The net worth of the Company has been totally eroded, as the net worth of the Company is | The Financial Statements of the

negative at £32454.28 Lakhs.

The company is having accumulated losses to ¥ 69037.52 Lakhs against its Share Capital of
Z36583.24 Lakhs.

Though the management says it has no intention to cease the operation of the company
because of erosion of net worth.

company has been prepared on a going
concern  basis.  Management s
responsibie for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern
and management has not identified any
material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
BVFCL being a CPSU where 100% equity
is held by Gol is engaged in
manufacture of Neem coated urea
which is an essential commodity under
ECA, 1955 & the company is the lead
fertilizer supplier catering to the
requirement of entire North Eastern
States.

Further during the financial year 2022 -
23 the company earn net profit of Rs.
2437.63 lakh and which reduced the
cumulative loss to Rs,69037.52 lakh (
Previous year Rs. 71475.15 lakh)

P


Company Secy
Typewriter
62

Company Secy
Typewriter
ANNEXURE III TO DIRECTORS' REPORT


NOTE 8 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES X21923.41 lakhs
a. Statutory remittance: X301.56 lakhs This includes items listed below which are unpaid for

fong and non-payment may result in penal consequences The amount mentioned are non
_ AJC AT 31.03.23 AT 31.03.22 statutory in nature and kept on hold for
Particulars CODE _ _ non compliance by the contractors /
(T in lakhs) (¥ in lakhs) . o
suppliers. On submission of the proper
Recovery of VAT (Purchase) 145/142 0.21 0.21 supporting / return / challan same will
be paid / adjusted. However, the
Recovery of PF from Contractors Workers 145/182 2.15 1.52 matter is noted and necessary action
will be taken in financial year 2023 — 24,
CGST Transport accounts 145/169 2.32 2.32
SGST Transport accounts 145/170 2320 237
Recovéry of PF from Contractors Workers
Wel. 145/208 0.22 0.22
Recovery of PLI o 145/209 0.26 0.26
Total 7.50 6.86

b. Advance from customers X2682.20 lakhs:
(1) This includes an amount of X33.66 lakhs against Liability for Deposit for Scrap Materials | As per the policy of the company Scrap
sales. We observed that this amount is received from persons who have purchased | / Salvage / Waste Materials are

scrap materials from the company but the amount is booked as liability instead of | accounted for as and when sold. In the
income by sale of scrap and as result the liability is shown excess by ¥33.66 lakhs and | referred case the party has deposited

profit is shown less by the same amount. the value of material after issue of
delivery order by the company. For
lifting of the materials the company
allows free time after depositing the
amount for jobs such as cutting,

=
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dismantling, arranging transportation,
loading etc. At the time of dispatch of
materials final invoice is issued and
revenue is recognized in the books,

List of parties from whom advance received includes %27.24 lakhs shown against
suspense account and X 175.92 against % NO DEALER CODE ** {AS-KAM-0) which shows
the deficiency in the system to record the receipts properly against the actual payer.

The matter is noted. Necessary action
will be taken in financial year 2023 — 24

4.2

NOTE 10. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS: ¥ 16289.02 lakhs
a. As per AS 10 on “Property, Plant & Equipment”, items such as spare parts, stand-by

equipment and servicing equipment are recognized as PPE when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the enterprise and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. Further, any such spares which have been
classified as Inventory as per AS 2 should be capitalized as PPE and should be
depreciated over their remaining useful lives of such assets. The company has shown X
980.69 lakhs as capital items under PPE. However, no depreciation is charged on such
items. Further, as per the stock details maintained by the company, it has been observed
that many items of stores are capital in nature and should have been capitalized and
depreciated in due course of time. However, no such bifurcation has been done and all
the items have been shown as items of inventory, stores and spares. Thus, the overall
inventory has been materially overstated consequently understating the overall PPE as
being reflected in the financial statements, Moreover, non-charging of depreciation on
such assets has also resulted in overstatement of the overall Profits of the company for
the FY 2022-23.

The item of capital stores Rs. 980.69
Lakhs has been purchased over years. At
the time of purchase the Machinery
Spates which can be used only in
connection with an item of fixed assets
and whose use is expected to be
irregular and may qualify as PPE are
categorized as capital stores and shown
as Capital work in Progress (stores)
along with PPE in Note 10. Upon issue
of the same by the stores to the
concerned  depariment  same 1S
capitalized under the respective asset
head and depreciation is charged. As per
significant accounting policy Note No.
29 (5)- iv mention that Depreciation is
provided on the assets after they are
certified to be installed and put to use.

Further, it may be referred that the
Depreciation of an asset begins when 1t

A
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is available for use, i.e., when it 15 in the
location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management.

Based on the requisition received from
the concerned department and stores
issue note for issue of Capital stores to
the concemned department, the capital
stores are capitalized with the respective
asset head and depreciation of the
capitalized item begins.

Further the Inventories of stores and
spares and capital stores segregated and
shown it separately. Capital stores Rs.
980.69 shown in PPE ( Note No, 10)
and Other stores and spares Rs.3975.95
shown in Inventory ( Note No. 12 ) in
the books of accounts as at March 31,
2023.

b. The compa_ny has not identified impaired assets though it has huge number of assets
lying in its books which have outlived their useful lives and are not in active use any
mare. This has resulted in over statement of property plant and equipment.

The Impairment of asset is done based on
the identification of cash generating unit.
The company has two CGU i.e. Namrup = I
and Namrup —IIl.

Namrup — Il - The plant is running at more
than 80% capacity and generating cash. As
at the Balance Sheet date there is no
indication that the asset may be impaired.

Namrup — Il - The plant was commissioned
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in the year 1976 and is more than 46 years
old. Major itemns of the plant and
machinery have surpassed their economic
life and carried at their residual value.
Formal decision on restoration of Namrup —
Il plant is awaited from Government of
India and at the moment there is no
indication that the impairment has
occurred.

c.

Decommissioning of non-functional Namrup Il Group of Plant: The plant has been shut
down since 06.01.2020. The technical committee constituted by the Department of
Fertilizers in its report dated 7.01.2022 recommended against the repairs of the plant as
it is no longer economically viable.

The Board of Directors in the board meeting no 177 held on 8th May 2023 approved in
principle the permanent decommissioning and disposal of the Namrup I Plant Except
water treatment plant.

However, the company has not decommissioned the Namrup |l plant assets and has
charged depreciation on the assets and debited to the profit and loss account which is
not correct and is against the principles laid down in AS 10. AS 10 on Property plant and
equipment states that items of property, plant and equipment retired from active use
and held for disposal should be stated at the lower of their carrying amount and net
realizable value. Any write-down in this regard should be recognized immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

The consent of the Board of Directors of
the Company was accorded on the basis of
the technical sub — committee constituted
by the DoF for further restoration of the

plant.
However, formal decision on restoration /
de commissioning of Namrup — Il plant or

any alternative mechanism for revival of
the plant is still awaited from Government
of India.

In the matter it is clarified that as per AS -
10, depreciation of an asset begins when it
is available for use, i.e. when it is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Depreciation of
an asset ceases at the earlier of the date
that the asset is retired from active use and
is held for disposal and the date that the
asset is derecognized. Therefore,
depreciation does not cease when the asset
becomes idle or is retired from active use
{but not held for disposal) unless the asset
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4.3

is fully depreciated

Further, the depreciation is charged as per
the straight fine method in the books of
accounts,

NOTE 12 INVENTORIES: ¥ 3449.03 Lakhs
As per AS 2 on “Inventory”, estimates of net realizable value of inventory are based on
the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made as to the
amount the inventories are expected to realize. These estimates take into consideration
fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring after the balance sheet
date to the extent that such events confirm the conditions existing at the balance sheet
date.
Moreover, as per AS 5 on “Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and
Changes in Accounting Policies”, an estimate may have to be revised if changes occur
regarding the circumstances on which the estimate was based, or as a result of new
information, more experience or subsequent developments.
It has been observed that provision for stores and spares has been made by the
company for inventory which is outstanding for a period of more than 3 years
amounting to X. 1343.32 lakhs including provision made during the FY 2022-23
amounting to X 41.19 lakhs. However, such provisicning has been done based on
estimates set by the company internally and no actual valuation of the inventory has
been conducted for evaluation of the Fair Market value and obsclescence of the non-
moving inventory. Thus, in our professional opinion, the basis for the estimation of
provisioning against inventary is not justified and the same should be revised. Such
provisioning should be done by the company based on actual valuation and physical
verification of inventory conducted by the company on a periodical basis.
Furthermore, the percentages being used by the company as a basis for provisioning
against non-moving inventory has not been updated or revised and is being used
consistently over the years. For instance, inventory with no movement from 15-20 years
is being provisioned against at 50% whereas inventory with no movement for more than
20 years is being provisioned directly at 95%. However, in our opinion the percentages
being used for provisioning against inventory shall be periodically revised and should be

There is no change in circumstances on
which the estimate was based, or any new
information, more experience or
subsequent development have arisen after
the balance sheet date.

The company has been following the policy
of age wise provision on inventory
consistently over the years and based on
the physical inventory verification shortage
and excess is accounted for on actual basis,
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based on the actual valuation of such inventory being conducted at regular intervals.

4.4

NOTE 13 TRADE RECEIVABLE: X 28558.39

a)

Trade Receivables others includes Sundry debtors sales (Marketing) X 5008.12 lakhs
against which the company has X 1065.08 lakhs as cash security deposits and the
balance %3943.04 lakhs is unsecured. Further, X 4186.10 lakhs is outstanding for
more than six months from the date they were due for payment, however, the
company has not created a provision for doubtful debts. In accrual accounting,
businesses use the provision to recognize an item of expenditure for potential bad
debts. They do this as soon as bills are given to customers instead of waiting to
determine which bills are unrecoverable.

The company has adopied the following
policy :~

Trade receivables, other receivables, loans
and advances are fully provided for as
doubtful upon review on case to case basis
to the extent of such loss considered as
incurred.

Qut of the total trade receivables of Rs.
5008.12 lakhs there is a cash security of Rs.
1065.08 lakhs. Further Rs. 2648.53 lakhs is
lying as advance from customers and
pending netting off with the debtors. The
company is in the process of reconciliation
and matching the same with debtors.
Therefore balance of Rs. 1294.51 lakhs is
the net exposure which is secured by post
dated cheques.

Sundry debtors sales (Marketing) X 5008.12 lakhs includes Kisan Suwidha
Kendra(KSK)~ There are ten KSK managed by the company in Marketing department
since 2016 and there is receivable of Rs. 122.95 lakhs against these. The realization
made from these KSKS was not regularly deposited or properly accounted for and
thus this account is showing as outstanding. Normally there should not have been
any balance outstanding. No provision for doubtful debts has been made through
the balance are more than 3 years old

Trade receivables includes Rs. 122.95 lakhs
on account of receivable from KSK
managed by Marketing Department since
2016. Marketing Department has not sold
any materials from KSK on credit and the
payments were deposited in BVFCL
accounts department. The reconciliation of
the same is under process and expected to
be completed very soon.

Further, age wise break-up of trade receivables for the F.Y. 2022-23 shows 4
805.47 lakhs as outstanding for more than 3 vyears though only %96.73 lakhs

Qutstanding more than three years Rs.
805.47 lakh includes Rs. 741.90 lakhs
receivable from FICC (Dof} for subsidy.

= 5
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Advance against TCS

420/114

5.61

561

This amount is appearing since last year and its TCS therefore should have been booked
under advances and as the company has already filed its return of income tax for the FY
2021-22 and claimed the tax credit this amount should have been nullified. Therefare,
this account balance does not seem correct.

¢) Other Advances includes the below mentioned balances which are appearing since last
few years and are not adjusted and seems to be incorrect.

Account AS AT 31.03.23 | AS AT 31.03.22 |
Particulars code (% in lakhs) (% in lakhs)
Advance to Others (Misc) Revenue 422/107 0.35 0.35
[ Advance to contractors (
Transport} 422/103 2.17 2.17
Adv. to Others Marketing 422/215 1.04 1.04
Deposit with Calcutta Port Trust 425/101 0.94 0.94

The matter is noted and proper
reconciliation will be done in the financial
year 2023 - 24.

d) The company has made certain deposits with third parties for which confirmation has
not been obtained. Prudently confirmation should be obtained once in three years to
confirm the amount advanced as deposits by the company to safeguard its tegal rights to
claim the same. We observed that deposit with Assam state electricity Board (Account
code 425-112) T 65.63 lakhs is booked under Misc Deposit (Estate) however as per
APDCL monthly electricity bill the Security deposit is Z 55.73 lakhs. Thus the company
books have excess amount of Z 9.90 lakhs which need to be reconciled and confirmed.

The matter is noted and necessary action
will be taken in the financial year 2023 — 24
for confirmation of balance.

4.7

OBSERVATION ON STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
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lakhs to the Security deposit A/C Head: 425112 - MISC.DEPQSITS (ESTATE) under
the current assets. Whereas the Assam power Distribution Company Limited has
reduced the amount of X 3.71 lakhs from the monthly electricity bill of the
Company in the month of January 2023. Thus the Company has overstated the
chort term loans and advances under current assets by the amount of X 3.71
lakhs and overstated the profit by the same amount.

5. OTHER OBSERVATIONS:

a. Transaction Audit by C&AG and also the internal auditors have pointed out the
deficiencies in the billing and collection of rent and other charges from the
occupants of the surplus quarters of the company for the last many years. in our
opinion also proper mechanism should be put into place to regularly ¢laim and
collect this source of income which will help in meeting its overheads incurred
for maintaining the township.

audit observation is noted and necessary
reconciliation / adjustment entry will be
passed in the financial year 2023 — 24.

BVFCL has already initiated certain action
points in this regard to stream fine the
rental collections like periodical
reconciliation of rental collections with
guarters / shops occupants, one time
settlement of disputed rentals and counter
signing the lease and license agreement
from concerned Government department
with a clause to deduct HRA at source and
pay directly 1o the company.

b.The main raw material for the company is natural gas and M/s Assam Gas Company
Limited {AGCL), Ouliajan Is doing the transportation, and however, the gas
transportation agreement with AGCL expired on 25.03.2020 and has not been renewed
since due to differences on certain clauses of the agreement. The matter is of high risk
as any problems in gas transportation may result in the stoppage of the operation of the
olant. An early resolution of differences and signing of agreement is must in the best
interest of the Company.

BVECL taking various correspondence with
the AGCL and concerned ministry for
solution of the matter and joint meeting
also held in several times. The matter may
be solved within short time.
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

1. Shri Siba Prasad Mohanty, Chairman & Managing Director [DIN- 05336787]

Shri S. P. Mohanty, Chairman and Managing Director of BVFCL has done his Masters in Business
Management from Berhampur University, Odisha. He completed his Executive Development
Programme from IIM Lucknow and Advanced Management Programme from IIM, Kolkata.

Shri Mohanty carries more than 34 years rich and diverse experience p rimarily in Marketing of
Agri Inputs. He has also worked in M/s Rashtriya Chemical & Fertilizers Ltd (RCF), Mumbai, in
different capacities from 1989 to 2015. Dr. Mohanty is recipient of *MARKETING MAN OF THE
YEAR"” Award during 1995 and “BEST EMPLOYEE" Award during 2012 in RCF.

Shri Mohanty is also in additional charge of Hindustan Urvarak & Rasayan Limited (HURL) as MD.

Shri S. P. Mohanty has been conferred honorary Doctorate Degree (D. Litt) by Dr. Radhakrishnan,
Teacher’s Welfare and R&D Centre affiliated to University of South America. Recently, he has
been awarded with the most Influential 50 Rural Marketing Professional of India Award.

He has been awarded "UDYOG RATTAN AWARD"” and “EXCELLENCE AWARD” by the Institute of
Economic Studies. Shri Mohanty was also awarded “HINDI GAURAV AWARD"” on the occasion of
Hindi Divas 2016 by Sh. Kiran Rijuju, Minister of State for Home Affairs, Government of India in
the p resence of o ther high dignitaries. Shri Mohanty h as b een awar ded wi th B HARAT ] YOTI
AWARD for meritorious services, outstanding performances and remarkable role by the Governor
of Tamil Nadu and Assam. He is also a "FELLOW MEMBER” of Institute of Directors (FIoD), Co-
Chairman of FICCI Crop Protection Committee, Executive Member Governing Body of SCOPE. He
is also a certified trainer for conducting International Trainings and Lead Speaker on Marketing &
Rural Marketing aspects. He has also contributed number of articles and delivered
Radio/Television talks on Agriculture Inputs Marketing. Shri Mohanty has extensively travelled to
number of countries namely Australia, Finland, Norway, Denmark, Netherlands, Germany, France
and South African Countries in his official capacity. He is a regular faculty member for different
Seminars organized by Fertilizer Association of India (Eastern Zone).

2._Shri Subash Chandra Das, Director (Finance) (DIN-08988297)

Shri Subash Chandra Das has assumed charge of Director (Finance), BVFCL w.e.f. 18" December
2020. He has a rich industry experience of more than 26 years in steel and aluminium sector in
premier CPSEs like SAIL & NALCO and private paper industry.

Prior to his p resent as signment as D irector (Finance), BVFCL, Shri D as was wo rking as D GM
(Finance), NALCO w .e.f. 2 2.12.2017. H e was in-charge o f fi nance fu nction fo r wind power
projects, Business Development and R&D division of NALCO and also supervising affairs of CSR
Trust and superannuation funds of NALCO. Prior to joining NALCO, he worked in various
capacities at Steel Authority of India Limited, Rourkela Steel Plant. During a career span of more
than two decades, he garnered experience in the field of Financial Planning and Control, Accounts
& Audit, MIS & Budget, fund management & Investment, Commercial and Tax matters etc.
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Born on 05.07.1971, Shri Das is a F ellow Member of the Institute of Cost Accountants of India
(ICAI) and also an alumnus of Indian Institute of Management Ranchi from where he completed
Executive PG Diploma in Management.

Apart from excelling in professional responsibilities, he has been equally active in social activities
and community development.

3. Shri Pradip Kumar Banik. Director (Production) (DIN :10095724

4.

Shri Pradip Kumar Banik has assumed charge of Director (Production), BVFCL w.e.f. 22™ March
2023. Prior to his present assignment as Director (Production), BVFCL, Shri Banik was working as
DGM (Mechanical), BVFCL

Shri. Harvinder Singh

Shri Harvinder Singh, Director Movement in the Department of Fertilizers did his graduation and
post Graduation in Economics from Punjab U niversity Chandigarh, Passed UPSC Civil services
exam in 2005 and allotted Indian Railways Traffic Service (IRTS).

Allotted South Eastern Railways , Kolkata where he has served for 10years in the core freight
loading areas of Jharkhand and Odisha.

Later on he moved to Railway Board New Delhi in 2017 and worked in Railway Board in
different capacities including planning division till march 2022.

Awarded Minister of Railways (MR) award highest in Railways at the beginning of his career in
2010 fo r his c ontribution t o e nhancing fr eight | oading an d i mproving o perations i n So uth
Eastern Railways Kolkata.

He is having vast experience in administration, logistics and project planning /implementation.

At present working as Director Fertiliser Movement and Deputy Commissioner Shipping, looking
after the Fertiliser movement in the entire country from indigenous and imported sources and
ensuring comfortable availability of Fertiliser in the country so doing service to the farmers of
the country.

Shri Niranjan Lal

Shri Niranjan Lal is an officer of Indian Ordnance Factory Service (IOFS), 1998 batch. His
educational q ualifications ar e M .Sc (A gronomy) & P GDIM (P ost Graduate D iplomai n
Management). He has wide experience of working in Indian Ordnance Factories and Ordnance
Factory Board (OFB) under Ministry of Defence in the field of Administration and Personnel
Management. He had served as Director on the Board of FCIL, HFCL, RFCL, HURL,TFL and
Government Nominee Director on the Board of FAGMIL.
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He is presently working as Director (UPP & FP) in the Department of Fertilizers, Ministry of
Chemical & Fertilizers, Government of India. He is now appointed as Government Nominee
Director on the Board of M/s Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited (BVFCL).

5. Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen, Non Official Director (DIN : 09400040)

Shri Rabi Ranjan Sen is an Associate Professor and Head of the Department of History at Katwa
College, West Bengal. He has done M.A. and M.Phil in History from JNU, New Delhi, and has
been teaching since 2002. He has researched and written on various topics like 18th Century
Maharashtra, renaissance figures of 19" Century Bengal, spread of Yogic culture in the West,
etc. He contributes regularly to periodicals on Indian history, culture, heritage and thought,
especially Vedantic and socio-religious movements.

He has been active in social and educational activities since his student days and is currently
deeply involved with nurturing of educational institutions and facilities in rural areas and among
marginalised communities in West Bengal. He has been a Member of Rashtriya Uchha Shiksha
Ayog (State Higher Education Council), Govt. of Madhya Pradesh, from 2014-2018 and also
Member (Visitor's Nominee), Executive Council, North-Eastern Hill University, Shillong from
2017-2020.

He has been appointed by the Govt. of India as a Non-Official Director on the Board of BVFCL
on 02.11.2021.

6. Shri Satish Kumar Sharma, Non Official Director (DIN -01820665)

Shri Satish Kumar Sharma (DIN — 01820665) aged about 63 years is a graduate in B.A. and
associated wi th A griculture, In dustries, Education an d v arious s ocial activities. H ei st he
Chairman of S.K.S. Group. He is on the Board of various Companies i.e. IPSO Foods Ltd., SKS
Breweries & Distilleries Pvt. Ltd. and MGS Industries Pvt. Ltd. He is also associated with other
Industry bodies such as, i) Vice Chairman of Western Uttar Pradesh Joint Industry Trade Board;
ii) Vice President of National Hindu Personal Law Board and iii) Chairman of Shri Mathura
Vrindavan Hasanand Gochar Land Trust (Regd.), which was established in 1935 by Pandit
Madan Mohan Malviya, from 2012 to June, 2022.

He has been appointed by the Govt. of India as a Non-Official Director on the Board of BVFCL
on 02.11.2021.

7. Shri Bipina Bihari Padhy, Non Official Director (DIN -01859238)

Shri Bipina Bihari Padhy (DIN — 01859238) aged about 65 years is a fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountant of India and presently practicing as Chartered A ccountant
since, 2013. He is a senior partner in very old firm M/s. Anil Mihir & Associates, Chartered
Accountants Bhubaneswar, having offices in different locations of the country and have a vast
experience in Internal, Statutory and Concurrent Audit of Nationalized Banks and PSUs. Earlier
to 2013, he served as Financial Head in various industrial sectors of Odisha Government like
Construction, Metal, Chemicals, Electronics, Real Estate Regulator, etc. During his 38 years


Company Secy
Typewriter
75


76

service career, gained extensive experience in the field of Finance, Audit, Legal, Secretarial
matters, Banking, Urban Development, Electronics, etc.

He possess additional qualifications such as Bachelor of Law from Behrampur University,
Company Secretary (Inter). He is also associated with various social activities.

He has been appointed by the Govt. of India as a Non Official Director (Independent) on the
Board of BVFCL on 1.05.2020 and assumed charge w.e.f. 9.05.2020.
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‘ For and on the behalf of the
Comptraller & Anditor General of India

Place: New Dielli
Date: 26 092023
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(Agriculture, Food & Water Resoures
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited (in short BVFCL)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

1. Opinion:

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Brahmaputra Valley
Fertilizer Corporation Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st
March 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year and Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financial Statements (including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, and its profit and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under
section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of
ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsihilities
in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern
The net worth of the Company has been totally eroded, as the net worth of the Company is
negative at ¥32454.28 Lakhs.

The company is having accumulated losses to ¥ 69037.52 Lakhs against its Share Capital of
£36583.24 Lakhs.

Though the management says it has no intention to cease the operation of the company
because of erosion of net worth.

4. Key audit matters:

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgment were of most
significance in our Audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year.
Reporting of Key Audit Matters as per SA 701, are not applicable to this Company, asitis an
unlisted company.

Pagelof21
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However, we draw attention to read the Audited Statements with due emphasis on under
mentioned Key Matters:

4.1 NOTE 8 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES %21923.41 lakhs
a. Statutory remittance: ¥301.56 lakhs This includes items listed below which are unpaid
for long and non-payment may result in penal consequences

Particilas | AC | AT310323 AT 31.03.22
| CODE | (% in lakhs) (2 in lakhs)
Recovery of VAT (Purchase) | 145/142 | 0.21 0.21
| Recovery of PF from Contractors Workers | 145/182 2.15 1.52
| CGST Transport accounts | 145/169 | 2.32 2.32
SGST Transport accounts 145/170 232 2.32

| Recovery of PF from Contractors Workers
| Wel. 145/208 | 0.22 0.22
Recovery of PLI 145/209 0.26 0.26
Total 7.50 6.86

b. Advance from customers 22682.20 lakhs:
(1) This includes an amount of %33.66 lakhs against Liability for Deposit for Scrap

(2)

Materials sales. We observed that this amount is received from persons who have
purchased scrap materials from the company but the amount is booked as liability
instead of income by sale of scrap and as result the liability is shown excess by
%33.66 lakhs and profit is shown less by the same amount,

List of parties from whom advance received includes 27.24 lakhs shown against
suspense account and X 175.92 against ** NO DEALER CODE ** (AS-KAM-0) which
shows the deficiency in the system to record the receipts properly against the actual
payer.

4.2 NOTE 10. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENTS: ¥ 16289.02 lakhs

As per AS 10 on "Property, Plant & Equipment”, items such as spare parts, stand-by
equipment and servicing equipment are recognized as PPE when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the enterprise and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. Further, any such spares which have been
classified as Inventory as per AS 2 should be capitalized as PPE and should be
depreciated over their remaining useful lives of such assets. The company has shown
2 980.69 lakhs as capital items under PPE. However, no depreciation is charged on
such items. Further, as per the stock details maintained by the company, it has been
observed that many items of stores are capital in nature and should have been
capitalized and depreciated in due course of time. However, no such bifurcation has
been done and all the items have been shown as items of inventory, stores and
spares. Thus, the overall inventory has been materially overstated consequently
understating the overall PPE as being reflected in the financial statements.
Maoreover, non-charging of depreciation on such assets has also resulted in
overstatement of the overall Profits of the company for the FY 2022-23.

P o
-
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b. The company has not identified impaired assets though it has huge number of assets
lying in its books which have outlived their useful lives and are not In active use any
more, This has resulted in over statement of property plant and equipment.

¢. Decommissioning of non-functional Namrup |l Group of Plant: The plant has been
shut down since 06.01.2020. The technical committee constituted by the
Department of Fertilizers in its report dated 7.01.2022 recommended against the
repairs of the plant as it is no longer economically viable.
The Board of Directors in the board meeting no 177 held on 8th May 2023 approved
in principle the permanent decommissioning and disposal of the Namrup || Plant
Except water treatment plant.
However, the company has not decommissioned the Namrup Il plant assets and has
charged depreciation on the assets and debited to the profit and loss account which
is not correct and is against the principles laid down in AS 10. AS 10 on Property
plant and equipment states that Items of property, plant and equipment retired
from active use and held for disposal should be stated at the lower of their carrying
amount and net realizable value. Any write-down in this regard should be recognized
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

4.3 NOTE 12 INVENTORIES: ¥ 3449.03 Lakhs

As per AS 2 on “Inventory”, estimates of net realizable value of inventory are based
on the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made as to the
amount the inventories are expected to realize, These estimates take into
consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occurring after
the balance sheet date to the extent that such events confirm the conditions existing
at the balance sheet date.

Moreover, as per AS 5 an "Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and
Changes in Accounting Policies”, an estimate may have to be revised if changes occur
regarding the circumstances on which the estimate was based, or as a result of new
information, more experience or subsequent developments.

It has been observed that provision for stores and spares has been made by the
company for inventory which is outstanding for a period of more than 3 years
amounting to X, 1343.32 lakhs including provision made during the FY 2022-23
amounting to % 41.19 lakhs. However, such provisioning has been done based on
estimates set by the company internally and no actual valuation of the inventory has
been conducted for evaluation of the Fair Market value and obsolescence of the
non-moving inventory. Thus, in our professional opinion, the basis for the estimation
of provisioning against inventory is not justified and the same should be revised.
Such provisioning should be done by the company based on actual valuation and
physical verification of inventory conducted by the company on a periodical basis.
Furthermore, the percentages being used by the company as a basis for provisioning
against non-moving Inventory has not been updated or revised and is being used
consistently over the years. For instance, inventory with no movement from 15-20
years is being provisioned against at 50% whereas inventory with no movement for
more than 20 years is being provisioned directly at 95%. However, in our opinion the
_percentages being used for provisioning against inventory shall be periodically
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revised and should be based on the actual valuation of such inventory being
conducted at regular intervals.

4 4 NOTE 13 TRADE RECEIVABLE: ¥ 28558.39

a) Trade Receivables others includes Sundry debtors sales (Marketing) £ 5008.12
lakhs against which the company has % 1065.08 lakhs as cash security deposits
and the balance %3943.04 lakhs is unsecured. Further, £ 4186.10 lakhs is
outstanding for more than six months from the date they were due for payment,
however, the company has not created a provision for doubtful debts. In accrual
accounting, businesses use the provision to recognize an item of expenditure for
potential bad debts. They do this as soon as bills are given to customers instead
of waiting to determine which bills are unrecoverable.

b) Sundry debtors sales (Marketing)  5008.12 lakhs includes Kisan Suwidha
Kendra(KSK}- There are ten KSK managed by the company in Marketing
department since 2016 and there is receivable of Rs. 122.95 lakhs against these.
The realization made from these KSKS was not regularly deposited or properly
accounted for and thus this account is showing as outstanding. Normally there
should not have been any balance outstanding. No provision for doubtful debts
has been made through the balance are more than 3 years old

c) Further, age wise break-up of trade receivables for the F.¥, 2022-23 shows
¥ 805.47 lakhs as outstanding for more than 3 years though only £96.73 lakhs
provision for doubtful receivables has been made. Thus, adequate provisioning
for doubtful receivables is not made in the books by the company.

4.5 NOTE 14 CASH AND BANK BALANCES £12506.68 lakhs: There are 5 bank accounts which
are inoperative since long with balance of %3.57 lakhs. If the accounts are no more
required then must be closed so that the ideal fund lying there can be used productively.

4.6 NOTE 15 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES:

a) GST input balance as per G5TIN is X 5756.30 |akhs whereas as per the books of
accounts it is X 5578.77 lakhs, there is a difference of X 177.52 lakhs. Further, the
cash ledger as per GSTIN shows ¥ 4.26 lakhs whereas in books it is % 2,53 lakhs. The
impact of these unreconciled difference on the Profit & Loss or assets/liabilities of
the company is not ascertainable.

b) Advance to Suppliers includes:

| AS AT 31.03.23) AS AT 31.03.22|
Particulars Account code (2 in lakhs) (€ in lakhs),
Advance against TCS 420/114 5.61 5.6

This amount is appearing since last year and its TCS therefore should have been
booked under advances and as the company has already filed its return of income
tax for the FY 2021-22 and claimed the tax credit this amount should have been
nullified. Therefore, this account balance does not seem correct.
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c) Other Advances includes the below mentioned balances which are appearing since
last few years and are not adjusted and seems to be incorrect.

. A AS AT 31.03.23 | AS AT 31.03.22
| Particulars code (% in lakhs) (2 in lakhs)
| Advance to Others (Misc} Revenue |  422/107 0.35 0.35

Advance to contractors | |
| Transport) | 422/103 2.17 217
| Adv. to Others Marketing | a22/215 1.04 1.04
| Deposit with Calcutta Port Trust | 425/101 0.94 0.94

d) The company has made certain deposits with third parties for which confirmation
has not been obtained. Prudently confirmation should be obtained once in three
years to confirm the amount advanced as deposits by the company to safeguard its
legal rights to claim the same. We observed that deposit with Assam state electricity
Board (Account code 425-112) ¥ 65.63 lakhs is booked under Misc Deposit (Estate)
however as per APDCL monthly electricity bill the Security deposit is ¥ 55.73 lakhs.
Thus the company books have excess amount of £ 9.90 |lakhs which need to be
reconciled and confirmed.

4.7 OBSERVATION ON STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
NOTE 17 :Revenue from Operations

a. As per FICC Regulation, the Company is entitled to claim the subsidy only
after clearance of stock from ultimate Point of Sale. We observed that the
pending stock quantity of Namrup |l plant- Neem Coated Urea (45 kg) was
19.184 MT and Neem Coated Urea (50kg) was 0.75 MT. As the Namrup Il
plant stopped production after the blast in 2020 the above stock is pending
with which wholesaler or retailer is not known to the Marketing department
of the Company. Subsidy involved is 1.76 lakhs. Similarly, pending stock of
BVFCL Namrup Il urea (50kg) was 92.250 MT Subsidy involved is ¥ 21.17
lakhs. Out of the 92,250 MT, 83.25MT has also not been reconciled for the
reasons mentioned above. The 50kg packaging was discontinued from April
2018 but still there is un-sold stock In the POS. Non reconciliation of the
inventory is resulting in delay in recovery of the claims and subsidy from DoF.

b. The CAG audit team in its transaction audit report for FY 2021-22 had
observed that the company has incurred losses of ¥162.11 lakhs towards
excess secondary freight paid to H&T contractor in Tripura during the FY
2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22. Further, the company incurred losses of
37.35 lakhs towards excess secondary freight paid to H&T contractor in
Tripura during the FY 2022-23 also. The Company needs to take steps to
recover this 199.46 lakhs from the Tripura Government department.
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NOTE 18 :Other Income

Interest income includes X 4.12 lakh accrued on the security deposit with the
Assam Power Distribution Company Limited. The company has debited the
amount of X 3.71 lakhs after reducing Income tax deducted at source of X0.42
lakhs to the Security deposit A/C Head: 425112 - MISC.DEPOSITS (ESTATE)
under the current assets. Whereas the Assam Power Distribution Company
Limited has reduced the amount of £ 3.71 lakhs from the monthly electricity
bill of the Company in the month of January 2023. Thus the Company has
overstated the short term loans and advances under current assets by the
amount of X 3,71 lakhs and overstated the profit by the same amount.

5. OTHER OBSERVATIONS:

a. Transaction Audit by C&AG and also the internal auditors have pointed out
the deficiencies in the billing and collection of rent and other charges from
the occupants of the surplus quarters of the company for the last many years.
In our opinion also proper mechanism should be put Into place to regularly
claim and collect this source of income which will help in meeting its
overheads incurred for maintaining the township.

b. The main raw material for the company is natural gas and M/s Assam Gas
Company Limited [AGCL), Duliajan is doing the transportation, and however,
the gas transportation agreement with AGCL expired on 25.03.2020 and has
not been renewed since due to differences on certain clauses of the
agreement. The matter s of high risk as any problems in gas transportation
may result in the stoppage of the operation of the plant. An early resolution
of differences and signing of agreement is must in the best interest of the
Company.

6. Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon:

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board's
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report & Business Responsibility Report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report therean.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Page6of 21


Company Secy
Typewriter
84


7. Management's responsibility for the Financial Statements:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Board of Directors Is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

8. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 3 high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
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whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report and we have duly placed our doubt on the
company existence of going concern under. the reporting Head Material Uncertainty
Related to Going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

9. Report on other legal and regulatory requirements:

9.1 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A", a statement on the
matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of "the Order", to the extent applicable.

9.2 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company, so far as it appears from our examination of those books:;
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C.

d.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;
In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, except our observation in para 4;

In pursuance to the Notification No. G.5.R 463 (E) dated 05-06-2015 issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013
pertaining to disqualification of Directors for appointment as Director of
Company, is not applicable being a Government Company.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in "Annexure B". and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us ;

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation in its
financial statement under Note 30.1 as contingent liability;

li. the Company has not made provisions, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable
losses, if any, on long term contracts; and

ili. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a. the management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (
either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented, that to the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to
the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly
or Indirectly, lend or Invest on other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provided any
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guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and
¢. Based on audit procedure which we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub -
clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement,

v} The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year
in contravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies
Act, 2013,

h. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under
section 197 (16) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the limit prescribed by section 197 for
maximum permissible managerial remuneration is dealt with at Head Office
and hence is not applicable at the Circle.

I, Proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining
books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility was applicable to the Company with effect from
April 1, 2022 which was subsequently extended to April 1 2023, and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

9.3 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in terms
of the directions of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) under
Section 143(5) of the Act and on the basis of our examination of the books and
records of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted
auditing practices in India and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we give in the "Annexure C" statements on the matters specified in
the Directions and Sub-directions of Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

FOR & ON BEHALF OF
B.L. PUROHIT & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

SUBH UROHIT, FCA

MEMBERSHIP NO. 059631
UDIN-23059631BGUVB0O5407
Place : Guwahati

Dated: 26-07-2023
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Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year 2022-23
Referred to in paragraph 9.1 of Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the

Company on the Financial Statements.

We report that:

1)

a)

b)

d)

b)

(A) The company has maintained computerized records showing particulars
guantity and value of Property, Plant & Equipment however, the company has
not maintained the specific situations of its Fixed Assets in the Fixed Assets
Register.

(B) The Company has maintained computerized records showing particulars of
intangible assets.

As per information and explanations given to us, Property, Plant & Equipment of
the company were physically verified by a committee specially constituted for
this purpose and the said committee has certified that all Property, Plant &
Equipment of the company are under the control of the respective department
and inspected plants and machinery are in working condition. However, the in-
house committee report of physical verification of Property, Plant & Equipment
did not provide quantitative reconciliation of verified Property, Plant &
Equipment with its Property, Plant & Equipment register. Further the
constituted in-house committee of the Company did not cover the physical
verification of land, building, furniture fixture, data processing and office
equipment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the land holding
records produced for our examination, we report that the company holds 2611
bigha, 2 katha and 13.5 laccha of freehold land in Namrup, Assam where its
plant is located.

According to the information and explanations given to us the Company does
not have immaovable properties of land and building taken on lease.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
revalued its Property, Plants & Equipment’s during the reporting Financial Year.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have
been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any Benami
property under the “Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules
made thereunder.

As per information and explanation given to us, the inventories have been
physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals however, we
observed that the 100% coverage of inventory in physical verification of
inventary is not done. Further, discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventory were not noticed in respect of the materials covered
during the physical verification.

As per information and explanation given to us, during any point of time of the
year the Company has not availed working capital limits from any banks or
financial institution against the security of its currept assets and hence (i) (b) of
CARO 2020, is not applicable on Company.
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iii)

vi)

vii)

Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year 2022-23
Referred to in paragraph 9.1 of Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the

a)

b)

Company on the Financial Statements,

The Company has not has made investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties therefore reporting under Clause (iii) of the CARD 2020 is not applicable
on Company.

As per information and explanation given to us, there are no transactions which
attract the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in
respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security provided by it, therefore
reporting under Clause (iv) of the CARO 2020 is not applicable on Company.

The company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and Provisions of Section 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regards to deposits accepted from the public are not
applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the Cost Records maintained by the Company
pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for maintenance of Cost
Records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and we are of the
opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made
and maintained,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted [/ accrued in
the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service-tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added tax, cess and any other material statutory
dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the
appropriate authorities, According to the information and explanations given to
us no such undisputed arrears of statutory dues were outstanding as at 31%
March,2023, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable except

Recovery of PF from Contractors workers .2.16 lakhs

Recovery of sales tax state . 0.19 lakhs

Recovery of PF from Contractors Workers welfare % 0.22 lakhs

GST .4.64 lakhs

According to the Iinformation and explanations given to us, some disputed dues
against the Company are outstanding as at 31* March,2023, in respect of Assam
Value added tax and central state tax(CST). The details for the aforesaid
mentioned dues has been disclosed below-

(/| Name of the statute | Name _ of | Amount | Period to | Forum where |
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viii)

%)

x)

91

Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report for the Financial Year 2022-23
Referred to in paragraph 9.1 of Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the

(a)

(b)

Company on the Financial Statements.

idues In Z lakhs | which the | the dispute is |
amount pending
| relates |
The Assam value | CST and | 594.07 2013-14 Commissioner
added Tax Rules,2005 | Entry Tax of Taxes,
Assam
| CST  and | 21.10 | 2014-15 Commissioner
Entry Tax ' of Taxes,
Assam
VAT 48.52 2012-13 Superintendent
of taxes
CsT 2.25 2012-13 Superintendent
of taxes
VAT I 3.46 | 2016-2017 Superintendent
of taxes
csT 5.95 2016-2017 | Superintendent
of taxes
E-Tax | 9.02 2013-2014 | Commissioner
of Taxes,
[ Assam

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Comﬁiny has not
surrendered or disclosed as income any transactions not recorded in books of
account during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Based on our audit procedures, and as per the information & explanation given
to us by the management, the company has not defaulted in the repayment of
dues of principal or interest on loan to the bank, financial institution or
debenture holder and hence the clause ix (a) to ix{e ) are not applicable on this
company.

During the reporting Financial Year, the Company has not raised money by way
of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt instruments).
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3 (x) of the Order is not applicable on the
Company.

During the reporting Financial Year, the Company has not any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully,
partially or optionally convertible) during the year and therefore the
requirements of compliance of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Companies Act,
2013 is not applicable on company.
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Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year 2022-23

Referred to in paragraph 9.1 of Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the

%)

i)

xiil)

xiv)

i)

xvi)

xvii)

xviif)

(a)

(b)

a)

b)

Company on the Financial Statements,

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no material fraud has been observed being committed by the
company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported.
To the best of our knowledge, no report under-sub-section (12) of section 143 of
the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
during the year and up to the date of this report.
As auditor, we did not receive any whistle-blower complaint during the year.
This Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence this clause of CARO 2020 is not
applicable.
The Company has not entered into any transactions with the related parties and
hence compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act is not applicable
on the Company.
Internal Audit of the Company is being conducted on quarterly basis by a
Chartered Accountant firm and the scope of audit coverage seems to be
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
We have duly considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period
under audit.
The company has not entered into any non—cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with them, except for payments of salary and other
perquisites as mandated in service rules for directors of a Government company.
The Company is a Central Govt. Undertakings and its managerial remuneration
to the Chairman Cum Whole Time Managing Director is as per the pay fixation
prescribed by the appointing Govt. Departments i.e. Ministry of Chemical and
Fertilizer. Thus the company has paid/ provided managerial remuneration only
as per mandate of the Central Govt., which is itself a sufficient compliance of
provisions of section 192 of Companies Act 2013.
The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.
The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities, and hence this clause of CARO 2020 Is not applicable on Company.
The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined under the
Regulations by the Reserve Bank of India, and hence this clause of CARO 2020 Is
not applicable on Company.
The Company is not being managed by any Group Concerns, and hence this
clause of CARO 2020 is not applicable on Company.
During the current reporting period the Company has not incurred cash loss

however, it incurred ¥ 5722.74 cash loss during the immediately preceding

- financial year.

The'Company is a Govt. Company and its Statutory Auditor is being appointed by
. Page 14 0f 21
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Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year 2022-23
Referred to in paragraph 9.1 of Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the
Company on the Financial Statements.

CA& G of India. None of the appointed Statutory Auditor of the Company has
placed its resignation so far.

Xix) According to the information and explanations given to us the management of
the Company has expressed its capability of meeting its hiabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date though the net worth of the company is negative.

Xx) The Company was incurring losses till immediately preceding financial year and
its net worth is also negative therefore the provisions of the Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable on the company during the year, hence
this clause 3{xx) of CARO 2020 is not applicable on Company.

®xi) The Company is a single entity and has no group concerns and hence this clause
of CARO 2020 is not applicable on Company,

For B. L. PUROHIT & CO ]
Chagptered Accountants : oo .

ICAT Membership No : 059631
L/DIN: 23059631BGUVBO5407
Place : Guwahati

Date : 26/07/2023
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Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited
Annexure -B to the Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 9.2 f of Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the
Company on the Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2022-23

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act,2013 (‘the Act’):

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Brahmaputra Valley
Corporation Limited (the Company’) as of 31* March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls:

The Company management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). The responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit to Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note') and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adeguate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control bases
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

Page 16 of 21
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Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited
Annexure =B to the Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 9.2 f of Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the
Company on the Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2022-23

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting:

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that"

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorization of the Management of the Company; and

3. provide reasonahle assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting:

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or Improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion;

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March,2023 which is based on internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR & ON BEHALF OF
Page 17 of 21
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Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited
Annexure —B to the Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 9.2 f of Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the
Company on the Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2022-23

B.L. PUROHIT & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN 3110p6E e

SUBHASH
PARTNE
MEMBERSHIP NO. 059631
UDIN-23052631BGUVBOS5407
DATED: 26/07/2023
GUWAHATI

JHIT, FCA
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Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited

Annexure C of the Independent Auditor's Report for the Financial Year 2022-23

Referred to in paragraph 9.3 of Independent Auditor's Report to the members of
the Company on the Financial Statement

Directions under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the Financial Year

2022-23

Serial | Directions Auditor Comments

no.

1 Whether the company has system | Based on the details provided by the Management

in place to process all the
accounting transactions through
IT System? If yes, the implication
of processing of accounting
transactions outside IT system on
the integrity of the accounts along
with the financial implications, if
any, may be stated.

and our audit we observed that the Company has a
Computerized Accounting System operated through
COBOL 85 in Unix Operating System. The system is
old, but majority of the accounting transactions are
being done by this Accounting System. This system
Is integrated with different sections of Finance
(Central Accounts, Store, purchase etc), HR (for
Employee Payroll), MM Department (for Inventory
Controi) and for Marketing Department (for Sales &
Dispatch) a different Software is used.

However, quarterly summarized Trial Balance af

Sales Department and remaote located centers (s
being manually merged into Central Accounts by
passing journal vouchers for each center. This may be
one of the reason for delay in updating of Central
Account Trial Balance, further BVFCL Central
Accounts is unable to access data/ details related to
Trial Balance of remote centers on real time basis.
Thus the present Installed system of accounting
software is unable to generate real time accounting
MIS. Mareover, the reports cannot be generated in
MS5-Excel or MS-Word due to which analysis of data
becomes more difficult.

To overcome the limitaten in the current
Computerized System of accounting, the Company
has initiated the implementation of Tally software.
The accounts for FY 2022-23 of marketing accounts
department were prepared in Tally accounting
package. As informed to us by the Company
management the accounting of the Company for the
FY 2023-24 is being done in Tally accounting
software except accounting of manufacturing
process, material management, fixed assets register
and payroll processing which would continue in
COBOL system for the time being,

Whether there is any restructuring
of an existing loan or cases of
waiver / write off of debts / loans/
interest etc made by lender to the
company due to  company's
inability to repay the loans? If ves,
the financial impact may be stated.

Based on the details provided by the Management
and our audit we observed that during the period
under audit there is no restructuring of an existing
loan or waiver/write off of debts /loans/interest etc.
made by a lender to the company due to the
company'’s inability to repay the loan.

Whether funds [grants/subsidy

Based on the details provided by the Management
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ete.) received/receivables for
specific scheme from Central /State
agencies were properly accounted
for/utilized as per its term and
conditions? List the cases of
deviation.

and our audit we observed that during the financial
year 2022-23 no new grants was received by the
Company from Central /State agencies.

State the impact of revision of
subsidies for fertilizer products
in valuation of its Closing Stock
and revenue from operations

i

The Closing Stock of Urea in Factory site and in
transit is generally valued at cost or at Net Realizable
Value whichever is less. Since, the cost of production
ol Namrup-ll & I1II plant is higher than the net
realizable value (Concession Price), the valuation at
the end of the year is done on the concession price
fixed for the year. While valuation of the closing
stock, the annual escalated or de-escalated price
based on the actual input cost (Natural Gas) during
the year is taken Into consideration for valuation
purpose. Such escalation/de-escalation is calculated
based on the guidance and procedure adopted by
FICC, Government of India. The stock so valued is
considered to be maximum realizable value as on
Balance Sheet date.

In the subsequent year, the value of such stock may
be higher or lower based on the input price of the raw
material in the respective year. In case of higher
concession price there will be margin of profit from
the opening stock and vice-verse. Since, this is a
continuous process and the same value of closing
stock booked In the accounts in the previous year is
considered as value of opening stock as at the
beginning of the current year, there reflects no
impact on valuation of Closing Stock as well as in the
financial starements.

Closing Stock with dealers (stock not sold through
PoS) :

As per present subsidy payment procedure, the
subsidy is eligible for those quantities which are sold
through PoS at any point of time during the year, At
the end of the year, the quantities lying with dealers
and not sold through PoS is not eligible for Subsidy
during the current financial year but the same is
eligible for subsidy as and when the quantity sold
through PoS In the subsequent year. While
recognizing income on the not sold quantity at the
Balance Sheet date, the quantity is valued at the
maximum realizable value considering escalation/de-
escalation of the current financial year i.e. existing
concession price plus/minus any escalation/de-
escalation based on the average price of input
material (Natural Gas) for the particular year.

In the subsequent year, as and when the carry
forward quantity is sold through PoS, the subsidy is
claimed at the effective concession price of that
period. The effective concession price of such
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quantity may vary from the rate so recognized during
the previous year due to change of input cost (Natural
Gas). In case of increase in the concession price as on
claim date, the subsidy realization will be more than
the subsidy recognized during the previous financial
year and vice-verse. Since the subsidy has to be
claimed at the existing concession price, such
increase/decrease of concession price has effected in
the revenue from operation during the current
financial year. In such cases, if the value realized
during the wvear is excess/short than the value
recognized during the previous year, the
excess/short differential receipts have been treated
as other operating revenue in the statement of Profit
and loss. The impact of such excess/short valuation
of not sold quantity at the previous Balance Sheet
date has effected in the current financial statements
and accounting effect has been considered during the
current year accordingly in order to nullify the
excess/short receipts.

FOR & ON BEHALF OF

B.L. PUROHIT & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRM311056E

MEMBERSHIP NO. 059631
UDIN- 23059631BGUVBO5407
PLACE: GUWAHATI

DATED: 26/07/2023
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Compliance Certificate

We have conducted the Audit of Accounts of Brahmaputra Valley
Fertilizer Corporation Limited, having its Registered office at Namrup, Assam,
for the Financial Year ended 31" March. 2023 in accordance with the Directions
issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India Under Section 143 (5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and cenify that we have complied with all the Directions /

Sub-directions issued to us,

FOR & ON BEHALF OF

B.L. PUROHIT & CO.,
HARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
N 311056E

GLWWAHATI

SH PUROHIT, FCA &

L

SO ACC

M. NO. 059431
DATED: 26/07/2023
PLACE: GUWAHATI
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORFPORATION LIMITED 101
(CTN U24123A520052( ;Ull.!l]ﬁ?ﬁh]
Ralance Sheet as at 318t March, 2023

1 s oo fakloed

i Minle Aeal 371 As b 31st March
L N Marich, 2023 e 7l
[ TQUITY AND LIABILITIES
4 Shareholders” Funds
(i) Shiare Capital | 30,5834 3o, 58324
(1) Remsrives annid Sorphus 2 (Y137 52 (71.473.15)
B Mon-Curment Liabilities
{a) Long termn Bormosnng i 727500 57 27500
(b1 Othier longtermy liabilibes 3 1.756.16 1, X732
[¢} Levngs-Terma [rovisions 3
2,616.91 3,025.93
¢ Curren! Liabilities
] Short berm Borrowing fr 2,495,580 -
() Trade Payablis o 21,428,602 853482
Total Dutstanding dues of micro enterprises al small enterprises o758 14242
Total Cutstancing dues of ereditors other than oo enlerprises and 21,360.63 839219
small enterprises
(o} Other corrent lHobilities 8 15,777 63 15,751.20
(ul) Short-term provisions 9 663.19 4669
TOTAL [A+B+C) 9,5559.05 52,081.97
Il ASSETS
Mon-Current Assels
[a) Property: Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets
(1) Tapygibbe Assels (Mot Block) 0 15,101.83 18,552.67
{iii] Trilangdhle Assels 10 10.32 710
{il) Capital work-in-progress
a) Tangilile 10 468.20 71568
b} Intamgible 10 25.25 -
{iv) Capital work-in-progness [ Capital stores) 0 08268 585.6{
B Long-term loans and Advinces 1 03449 S00.75
E Current Assets
(2} Inventories 12 3.44%.04 290091
(b} Trade Receivables 13 2940711 2,673,940
(¢} Cash and Bank Balances 14
- Cash & Cash Equivalenis 6,7 10.64 11,619.63
- Oithir Bank Balances 5796003 B471.95
() Showt-Term Loans and Advances 15 651261 574090
(&) Dther Current Assets 16 360,85 36287
TOTAL (D+E) 60,559.05 52,081.97
Signilicant Accounting Policies 29
Additional Notes to Accounts a0
The accompanying note forms an integral part of these Finanaal Statements
W FOR Miz ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
R K. Gupta S.C Das 5.1 Molanty
Company Secrelary Director | Finance) Chatrman & Managing Director
DN - 05938297 DIN 05336787
1.\}\
A7
af  PLUMARY
?.I'. GUWA ST
o, A
A
ES AT
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

(CIN U224 123A 510200100674

Gratement of Profit and ess Bar the vear ended 3150 March, 2023

{ K5 in feikhis

. : As at 31st As at st March
PARTICULARS Mote No. March,2023 222
I Revenue from Operatinns 17 1. 1.6k o) LIS
1 Other Income 15 1.199.57 255341
[l Total Income 1,15,849.17 33,53520
IV  Expenses
Costol Matenals Consumied 19 20,7654 057400
Purchases of Stock-m-Trade . | 3420725 i,647.43
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, p 625.02 {109.06)
Wark in Progress and Stock in Trade 21 (419,20 .24
Employee Benefiks Expenses 22 5,545,949 6,129.05
Finance Cosl 3 .63 -
Depreciation and Amortisalion Expense 11 347270 3,692.27
Other Expenses 24, 20,2627 4867745 18.521.14
Total Expenses 1,12,977.05 41.458.72
Vo Profit before exceptional and extraprdinary jtems and 2,872.12 (7.923.53)
Tax (11-1V)
V1  Exceptional lems (Shortage of Urea)
a) Poior period adjustment 434.49 155717
b} Shortage of Utea - (233.17)
Vil Profit before extracrdinary wtemis and Tax (V-V1) 243763 (9,763.87)
VI Extraordinary ltems - -
IX  Profit before Tax (VI-VIII) 2,437.63 (9,763.87)
X Tax Expenses
(1) Current Tax - -
(2) Defferred Tax - -
Xl Profit / ( Loss) for the period from continuing operations 243763 {49.763.87)
(V-
X1 Profit / {Lass) from discontinuing operations - -
XMl Tax expenses for discontinuing operations - -
XIV Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing operations { after Tax )
(X11- XITE)
XV Profit / Loss {X1=XIV) 2,437,063 (9,763.87)
Eamings per share (of Rs. 10X/ - each): 28
Basic Hammgs per Share (Rupees) B, 63 {266.89)
66,63 (266.89)

Diloted Earnings per Share (Rupees)

Significant Accounting Policies 29
Additional Notes to Accounts 30

The accompanying pote forms an integral part of these Financial Statements

Company Secretary Lirector | Finance) Chalrman & Managing Director
DN - DBI58297 [N - 05336787
As pre aur report of even date annexed
For B L. Porohil & Co

Firm Legni Mo 311056E
LD - 2 50 54 E 3 pmuvnisabd

W BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Gujpita /g Das 5.1 Mohdnty
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY

(CIN L2241 23A52002GO10067H6)

FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

103

{ s i lakhs

| Particulars J 2022 - 23 | 2021 - 22
CASH FLOW TROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Profit/{lLoss) before tax = 2437 63 (D.763.87)
dd Adjustments lor MNon Cash Hems & other than
Ulperating Activities
- Depreciation 347276 3,692.27
- Provision for Qlwalescence of stores & Spares 41.20 35.13
- rovision for Leave Encashument 37541 426.55
- Provision for Gratuity i 46 532 85
- Fixed Assets wrnitten off agamst replaced assels 4210 o s
Provision for Unmoved Capital Stores 8.09 24.5%
Provision no longer required written back - (1.79)
Liability Written back (34.99) {66Y9.64)
Depreciation written back (152.23) (10,83}
Provision for doubtiul Debts / advances 47,58 225
Assets Write of] 442.49
4.514.90 . 4,041.13
Cash flow from Operation Before Working Capital
Changes, Taxes & Extraordinary ltems 6,952.53 (5,722.74)
Adjustments for Working Capital changes -
- (Increase)/ Decrease in T rade and Other Receivable {26,780.79) (1,626.16)
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Inventory (589,33 (4. 89)
- Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payable and 15,870.00 14,145.08
ather payables
- Increase in Advance & other Current Assels {769.68) (2.295.15)
- Increase in Capital stores (105.17) 18.33
- Gratuity and Leave encashment paid (1,443.42) (13,818.40) (1,957.18) 7,920.03
(6,865.87) 2197.28
Extra ordinary items - =
Cash Inflow from Operating Activities (A) (6,865.87) 2,197.28
J“ASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Fixed Assels (357.54) (192.09)
{Increase)/ Decrease in Advances for CWIP {311.51) (486.11)
Cash Qutflow from Investing, Activities (B} (669.05) (678.20)
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BRATMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

(CIN U24125A52002C01006786)

Cash Flow Statement For the Year ended as on 31st March, 2023 (contd..)

{ Rs, inlakhs)

Particulars 2022-23

20121 -22

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

NELINCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS: (A+B+C) (7,534 .92)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR : 20,047.59

CASH AND CASH FQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OITHE YEAR : 12,506.67

Notes:
- Cash and Cash Equivalents include :
Cash & Bank Balances, Short term and other depaosits, which are highly liquid and
encashable as and when needed
= Purchase of ixed assets has been shown net of adjustments.
- Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect method” as set-oul in
Accounting Standard (AS) - 3 on Cash Flow Statement issued by ICAL

to confirm Lo currenl year's presentation.

DIN- DB288297

Forl [B. L. Porohit & Co
Chartered Accountants,

sh Purohit

ICAL Mdmbership No. - 059631
Firm Repn. No ! 311056E

- Previous Year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged, wherever found necessary

W 1-'7( AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
h
R. K. Gupta %%E 2

ompany Secretary Director { Finance) Chairman & Managing Director

1.519.04

18.522.50

20,041.59

DIN- 05336787

As per our report of even date annexed

UDIN: 23054963 Blyuviisat]
Diated. EGXG'TJ"’ML?' Plice: Nammep Enueddazily
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BRANIMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTIHIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
{CIN U241 23A 520026010067 56)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOIR THLE YEAR 20122-23

i Rzt ditkhss

PARTICULARS As at 31st As al 3lst

March, 2023 March, 2022
NOTE1: SHARE CATITAL
Aunthorised Capital :
5,100,000 Equity Shares of s L0/ -each 51,000.00 51, 000, (%)
issued, Subscribed & Faid up Capital :
Promoters' Contribution
100 Equity Shares of Rs. 1,000/~ each [.00 100
Equity received in cash from Gel against Revamp
588000 Equity Sharesof Fs: 1,000/ -each 5,880.00 BEE0.00
Others
3070,224 Equity Shares of B 1,000 /-each issuied agains! 31.702.24 A0,702.24
transfer of Net Assetsas at 05.04.2002 wef 01.04.02 from
Hindustan Pertilizer Carparation Litd.

36,583.24 36,583.24

(i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the

Particulars As at 3st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022 i R In lakh)
Mumber ol Amount | Amourt in
Mumber ¢f Shares | Amount in Rs. |Shares in Ks. Rs.
Equity Shares at the hegining of the
year 3658324 36,58324 3p528324| 36,583.24 36,553.24
Add : Tssued during the year = = 5 - -
Balance at the end of the year 3658324 36553.24 3658324 36553.24
ii) Details of Equity shares held by each share halder holding more than 5% shares :
Name of share holders As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Percentag
Number of Percentage of | Number of e of Percentage
Shares held holding Shares held [holding |of holding
President of India 3658324 100% 3658324 100%
iii) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Promaoters Name

Mo, of shares as on

31.032023

i of tatal shares

President of India

3658324

1004 ul

their shareholding.”

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 1000 per share. Each share holder is
entitied to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
remaining assets of the Company after distribution to creditors and all preferential amounts, in proportion to
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED 106

(CIN U24123A52002GO1006786)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

i Rs. tn fakhs)

NOTE 3 : LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
Interest free unsecured loan from Gol

= As al 31st As at 31st
PARTICUEARS March ,2023 March ,2022
NOTE 2 : RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance (71475.15) (61,711.24)
Add: During the year Profit/{Loss) 2437.63 {9,763.87)
Total (69,037.52) (71,475.15)

57.275.00

727300

Tatal 57,275.00 57,275.00

NOTE 4 : OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Security Deposil 1.756:16 1,337.32

Tatal 1,756.16 1,337.32

NOTE 5 : LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

Provisions for Employee Benefits

Provision for Gratuity 1.756.27 250695

Provision for Leave Encashment 86064 1,121.98

Total 2.616.91 3R25.93

NOTE 6 : SHORT-TERM BORROWING

Bank Overdraft 2.495.80 -
2,495.80 -

Bank overdraft facility from Canara Bank, Noida has been availed againsl fixed deposits.
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HRAPSIAPUTHA VALLEY FERTIVEER CORMCHEATION LIMITID
IS L IS AS TN M ARRTH
MOTES TOTINVAROIAL STATUMENT QR THE YEAN 202327
i Me o dnkhir

A gl Tse Aol Wik

FAITH 1 119
PARTIILAL Marid, 2073 Narciy, 2022

SUE T TRATIE PAYARLES

b Tkl VT slimabiog dies of Ut eprposes amd nree ] siderp ses B 2az
] Danhal st ibiies o8 ciediies o ihan wilcnd eniorrises

S el i e AN BT
Taal e H536Z

NOTES : OTHER CURRENT LIABILTTIES

e Cooernmmansl i - e 13T CRPREI
il Recebviel Dierdng e sy 01 1540

Ak Interest Accraed o Unutdiized Grag) 11372

L - GativL baramnl pecersed i At ol

Pratit de Loss Acoount M52

s Cagvet Larami LIEHxed lor Tayavet o)

ST o Seirvices f Coorude @720

Capital Reserve

alistory remiil et (Cerilmtiens oI VAT Witkboliding

fooes, Exctses Dby, VAT, Servics T, UST wie) LT aa M0
Adlvances from Cuslismen eI =AM 2
Cthers

1 Sunbry Creditors ather than Trids Pavabilind 2w o Tad0d4
it} 1 ity for Experoid B B2 Y27
iil) Cmmirr Linbilitiess HanA1 sI7.14

Tostal 15,777,463 1575130

AT dimmotmit o e 10,000 lakh have e received durng, Ui froaescial gear 2007 - 22 from Gol jor

& Malptance of plants. Intevest acerusd freciiver, durtng e tinuncial pear 200122 &
0027 s Ha. B0 Lkl & Be. 41272 lakks respectively An omouni nf Bs 40747 lakds (B 4321
churged 1o Profil & Loss Afe+ It 5720 lakhs reversl of GEF Credit) during the franeclil year
[Previous year s 96726 lakh bwluding veversal of GST eredil of on amaount of Ra 14904 lakhs)
However Utilization certificate of an ammenl of R, 224500 lakh hus been sumbitled to the ok
o et tade an cash s, (Riker Note Mo 30,10 0f notes (o ccotnls)

it Sunadry Creditors fur ixgienses ol tan Traue Payables include an amoant of B 23060 takhs
(Previous year Bs. 23460 Lakls) on aceount of Miscellanmous sxpenses of morkenng ard ey
unchangsd for List iwer b yesrs. The coapany is in process of tiacing e orign of the Fansaction,
nature of expenditure and reconeiling the same,

@ Liabitiny for Expenses include an amount of Hs, 36500 laichs (Previous year Bs. 263,00 Lakbn) on
aecotnt of Provision for Cadows rent , tramsporiation charges amd prrclse of madhing
department remain unchanged for last over & years, The company i in process of g the
it of the transaction, ratire of wepordituie and péconciling the same

S Liniifities i leide an o of R 49164 lakhs (Provioos pear Rs. 49064 Lalds} on
accoint of Recovery of railway freight of marketing departsent aped remain unchanged for lst
e 6 years. The company s (i process of tastng e urigan of e saisacton, oatuse of
wependiture and roconeiling the same.

INOTE %: SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Carrent duss of Granily 458367 3oz
Current dues of Leave encashment 157 13740
Tetal LENE] 440,64
w « gt ol Trads Payables for e FY, 202373
IR s v Lol
Farticilors Lgss than 6 munrh Less than | 1<l yerre | 2-5 yemrs | Mueee than Tkl

¥ 3 years
i1] MSME RT.9R S . : 2 5108
L} Chibaer 17,0757 13,40 195 EEEE] 14T 17,00 10
(k] Thzpuatesd Diues.- MSME - = - - - e
[iv) Dispied Duet « others (BT 137221 | 68538 : = 4254 54
[ Tl 15,4 1050 1385 67 |GES3Y | Asax 34571 3143962
A wise brealeup of Tradde Pryables for the FY, 209372

(R (i Lagk el
Farticnlnrs Laees Thim b il Lessahan | 1-2 yeurs. | 2-3 yona | Mo tam Tkl

renr 3 vears
{1 MEME 1aza2 = : C - JkE A2
(ii] Chlem B0 AN 1,78 47 WHa 313 1755 FA92 |9
(il § Miepuaed Does - MEWE - ] . - = .
{iv}h Dhspiited Dises - athers - . = =
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ey, Plant & Eguipment and Intapgihie Assets

BRAHM,

JTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORFORATION LIMITED
(CIN U241 mﬁ!mﬂ;ﬂltﬂﬁ?ﬂﬂ
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 20122-23

{ e aiy fkiPrst

s BLOCK

COST DEPRECIATION
ICULARS Asan Additions | Deduction | Deduction for As at Ason Trovided | Adjustment Drep. Total PR SN
01.04.2022 Replacement | Adjustment 31.05.2023 01.04.2022 Durnng orf Last year W/off upto 312023 32022
B the depreciatinn | Replacement 31032023
| . 3 4 5 f 7 a 9 1 11
ASSETS
176,95 - - 176,95 . -
401847 {21.51) 3,996.66 3, hRR.43 1181 169827
iy Kamcrm 25234 837 260,71 23813 152 IRI[K 239,57
hery 104,988 82 218.37 {3014} 1,05,157.06 B7,950.31 3,314.70 BN 9125621
d42,00 {442.04) 0105 15224 : (15224} < ]
- 21.47 2147 - 0412 iz |
ce Equipit 523.00 382 5A1.23 46920 9,63 47883 |
ires 26366 14.31 27797 2153 5,800 3110 |
1HG,22 3455 115.16) {044 198.97 10974 957 {14.59) j6q. 73
27429 2505 29934 249.54 552 25535
s fe Lulverts 225,011 . 1504 236.15 71274 3.70 0 T16.45 :
i 2,264.78 . 2.264.78 1.430.27 91,80 PEIEN WLTT |
7 58334 = 583,44 155,92 15.29 TR 522t |
11419247 351.98 (5.49) (24249 1,14,036.65 95,640.03 347042 [152.25) [23.39] a5, 9. 84 15,141 53 IT'-.E{SI h
THI T ASSETS o
B 39.70 556 - - 45.26 32.60 2.3 - - 3491 10.32 _
| 39.70 5,50 - - 45.26 32.60 234 E e 3494 .32 i
B) 1,14,232.37 357.54 [65.49) (442.49)| 114,081,592 95,672.63 347276 {151.23) (23.39)] 9896978 1511215 | IB5E9TT
: YEAR 1,14,773.51 192.09 {17.52) - 1,14,948.08 91,998.91 3,692.27 (10.83) (7.72)] 95.672.63 19,275.45
L WORK IN PROGRESS
- 3.91 - - EE 301 .
r T15.68 - - {258.51) 457.17 AT
Projet 712 - - 712 FoE
) 71568 11.03 . [258.51) 468.20 TR
hle
= = 24.50 = 5 2450
el - 075 - - .75 ‘,r"?
It' - 2575 . + 2535 - - - 47
T={A+B) 715.68 36.24 - [25A51) 493.45 - - W
AT WORK IN PROGRESS (CAITTAL STORES) i — =
Opening ] Closing Cinsing
5 Balance Furchase Tzsue Provisions iz'::g k::ﬂ o' balance halance
_ 01.04.2021 [ 4032023 | 31032022
ark in progress §73.53 224.09 (118.93) (298.00) 68268 SR = 6RLGR 383,60
' &75.53 224,09 {118.93} {295.00) R82.65 - . 2 T 5 FRLGR | 38360
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{ Rs. fn-lakls)

NOTE 10 : Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Asséts
Audes original cost and Corresponding accunlated depreciation on Fixed Assets liken over from Hindustan Fertilizer Corporation Limited as on 5th ApﬂI. 2002,

prresibion [as been provided ar otherwise charged /writlen-back a4 detailed below -

Year 2022 - 23 201 -22
teimenl o Prolm & Loss 347270 e
il 354'?2.TI‘.1 3EE912?

e eumpaity has written off Rs. 4210 lakhs (netof depreciation) duting the year { Previous year Rs. 9.80 lakhs) towards written down value of replaced fixed assets on the basis of teport dated
3 ihouse beehnteal comimiter as on 3st Maych, 2023 since book value was nol ascertainable, major part of such replaced assets related to earlier years.
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BRAHMAVUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

(TN LIZ4 123A 5200200 MG TS6)

NCFTES 10 FINANCIAL STATEMENT FORTHE YEAR 2022 -23

f R i litkies)

PARTICULAKS

As IS
March, 2023

As al Flst
March, 2022

A.Capital Advances

Sepnned, copstidered good

Unsecured, considered good

B. Oithers

Deposit held as margin nwney npalnst
purantee ssuer

Prepaid expenses

Dloubiful

Less Provision for doubtiul advances
Tutal

NOTE 12 : INVENTORIES
Intermediaries product [ Annmoonia )
{valued at lower of cost ar nel realisable value)

Finished Produocts
{other (lian thase acquired for Trading)

Stock of traded Products

Others
(valued at lower of cosl or net realisable value)
Stock of 1LPG Cylinder
Stores & Sparis under inspection
Stores in Transi
Subtatal (A)

Stores and spares (A1 cost)

Stock of packing materals | at cost)

Less:

) Provision for obsolescence & Impairment
b} Provision for shortage of Bags

&) Prov. For shortage of Finished products
Subtotal (B)

Taotal (A+B)

have been properly dealt with in the accounts

of Stores and spares as stated in MNote- 29.7

[ERRR (L75
1. 00CHER) S IR
48 i
2898 2898
(28.98) (28.98)
1,033.99 500,75
AB2.85 o305
138,60 7048
10386
247 289
0,98 o761
16820 =
0695 1,004.63
3975 332842
203.30 15353
(1343.32) (1,302.12)
(30.67) (30.67)
(253.17) (253.17)
2552.09 1,896.28
3.449.04 2,900.91

Physical verification of Finished Goods, Intermediaries, and Packing Materials (HDPE Bags)
have been carried out during the financial year 2022 - 23 and discrepancies/ damages found

The company has formulated a comprehensive policy lor age wise provisioning for inventories
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BRAHMAFUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
(CIN l'E-llEH-.-'h':-EﬂlEl'_.'llIHI'HiTI'I-[‘]
NOTES TO INANCIAL STATEMEN I FOR THE YEAR 202223
[ W= an firkhes)

" e . = al A= Al 3si
CANTIC UL March, 2023 March, 2022
NOTE 13 : TRADE RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables outstanding for o period muose
than six months from the date ey were due for
payiient
Sulsidy | Coverment of India) 4190 (38633
|Others 4186:10 11390
497500 150023
Trade Receivable less than six months
Subsicly ( Government of India) 23701.63 436,35
Mhers 874.21 7644
24575.84 122282
Provision for deubtul recervables 0673 -49.15
2447911 LI7AGT
Total 2940711 2673.90
Aggregrate of Trade receivables
Unsecured, Considered good 207,11 267390
Unsecured Constdered doubtiul O 7 49,15
Provision [or doubtful receivalbiles 0.7 4915
29407.11 2673.90

111

MNaole 1-Trade recevables include Rs 12295 Lekhs (Previous year Bs 127 95 Lakhs) on account of recevabla from KSK managed by Marketing
Depaniment since 2016 Marketing Depariment has nel sold any materials (rom KSK on credil and the payments were deposited In BVFCL accoun!,

Hewrerver the reconclilation of the same is under process and expecled lo be completed very soan.

Mote 2:- Trage recenabies Include Rs. 1,78 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 1.78 Lakhs) from retall sale of Vermi-under deasler code 1001, Marketing
Depariment has not sold any materials from on credit The accounl represents the transaciions B years earlier and since then there s no change in
ihe accounl balance, The company IS in the process of reconciliation of the same necessary entrias will be passed afier reconcilialion

Age wise break-up of Trade Receiveables for the FY. 207223

(K=, in Lakh)

Particalnrs Less than | Less than | year 1-2 yeurs 2-3 years | More than Toral
G month X years
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables 2457584 89969 177.104 273 BOS.47) 2946083
i) Disputed receiveables 43,02 (3,04 0,00 .00 4302
L Tuotal 24575.84 04271 177.10 273 R05.47 20503.85
Age wise bréak-up of Trade Receiveéables for the I Y. 2021-22
{R=, in Lakly)
Particulars Less than | Less than Lyear 1-2 veary 2-Yyears |Maore than Total
& manih Jvears
(i) Undisputed Tride Receivables 122282 £1.35 20.57 15.08 1443.23 272305
Total 1222.82 1135 20.57 15.08] 144323 2723.05



Company Secy
Typewriter
111


112

BIRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION TIMITED
(UIN U24123AS2002G01006756)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2022-23
(R in lakhs)
Asal 31st As-al 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022

PARTICULARS

NOTE 14 : CASH AND BANK BALANCES

A Cash and Bank Balances 0,710.64 161963
B} Balances with Bank

In Term deposit accounts 5,784, 56 841917
Balances held as margin money or seclily against 6517 278
borrowings, and other commitments,

Total 12,506.67 20,041.59

NOTE 15 : SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Unsecured, considered good

Loans and advances to employees 115.55 4105
Advance {or Insurance Premium 6611 a9 97
Deposit with Excise & Govt. Authorities B5.79 10739
Advance o suppliers 520,35 1,451.29
Oher Advances 5,689,958 397280
Poubtful advances to suppliers 34.78 34.78
Less: Provision for doubtfol advances (34.78) (34.78)
Prepaid expenses 34.82 68.34
Taotal B,512.61 5,740.90

NOTE 16 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Unsecured, considered good

|Other Receivables 27283 280.70
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Other Receivables 19757 197.57
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables [197.57) (197.57)
Interest acerued on deposits B8.02 8217
Total 360.85 36257

Other roceivables include sundry debtors (Estate) amount Rs. 44441 lakhs (PPrevious year Rs. 43948
Lakhs) due against licence fee ete.The management is taking necessary iniliatives to recover the licence fee
receivables elc, by calling on the parties like BSNL, Police Department Authorities, Govt. Health
Department and other individuals,Dues from some of the parties have been received in the process.
Mareover, warniny, letters have also been issuexd to the defaulters,

Further, in order to protect rights under Tenancy Act and rules, rental hills have been raised against the
defaulting tenants. However on the basis of Accounting Standard 9" Revenue Recognition *, Provision
has been kept against arrear licence fee etc. from other than employees Rs. 197.57 lakhs ( Previous Year Rs.
197 57 lakhs),
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BRAHMAPUTREA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
(01N U241 23A S20U2COHINLTEE)
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 202223

113

{ Rs. i hikhis)

I As al 3lst Asal 3%t
BARTHIYLARS March 2023 March 2022
NOTE 17 : REVENUF TROM OPERATIONS
ASale of Manufactured Products
Lirea 12.049.64 9, 130,66
Bies Fertilizon 271,78 73.69
Vermicompos| 549 1549
Tatal of 'A' 1227991 9,21%.83
B.Sale of Trading Goods
Sale of MOP 2.200.25 1,583.76
Sale of Presticides 2335 A5BS
Sale of DAP 4.404.76 -
Sale of S5P 795055 1,546.97
Sale of seeds 1223
Sale ol Rockphosphate 756,90 47816
Sale of Micronubrient 16110 14365
City Composl 2696 45
Sale af NFL Urea 351077 1.857.20
Sale of Agro Power 324.45 B63.99
Sale of Water soluble Fertilizer - 35,79
Sale of FACTUMPHOS 11052 63.67
Sale of Amm. Sulphate 2,999.35 128.34
Sale of HIL Net 18,75 3972
Sale of Imported Urea 11,725.82
Sale of Mukia Power 4410328 -
Sale of MNFL AFS 94523 -
Salie of NI'K 016,64 :
Sale of 'DM 56577 -

Total of 'B' 41,086.08 i, 85554

Total of (A+B) 53,367.99 106,115.37
C. Other Operating, Revenue
i) Manufactured Product { Urea)
a) Price Subsidy for manufactured products 52,245.03 11,9561.40
b) Freight Subsidy for manufactured products 334079 2,144.00
ii. Reimbursment of expenses for imported Urea
a) Purchase cost Reimbursement QL7
b ) Freight 46277
¢ ) Income from laytime 64 88
iii) Past period subsidy 4,176.97 761.02
Total of 'C” 61,281.61 14,866.42
Total of (A+B +C ) 1,14.6449.60 30,9581.79

Subsidy received / receivable of” Rs. 5558582 lakhs (previous vear R5.14105.40 lakhs)is credited to

statement of profit and loss. This Is followed as per AS- 12 Accounting lor Govi. Grants.

Pending notification from Fertilizer Industry Comrdination Conmillee (FICC), the adjustment relating to
escalation / desscalation price subsidy payvable / receivable amounting fo Re 108412 lakhs (previous
year ‘Rs. 1293.03 lakhs) has been accounted for on accrual basis- kiking into account the guidelines,

policies, instructions and clarifications |ssuad by the Govl ol India.

- .-_1".'"

|
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED 114
(CIN U24123A82002GOI006786)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2022-23
{ Rs. fn lakhs)

As at 31st March,  As at 31st March,

PARTICULARS 2023 2022

NOTE 18 : OTHER INCOME

A. Interest income

i} Interest on short term deposit 283.69 509,77
(TDS deducted Rs. 83.98 lacs
Previous vear Rs, 800.24 lacs)

i) Interest received on Income tax refund 6.00 30.21
iii) Interest on others 44 0.39
iv) Interest on savings Accounts 0.01 0.02
Total 290.14 540.38
B. Sale of Scrap & Salvaged materials A 61.87
c Recovery of Licence fee, Electricity & Water
- charges
ete. from employees & others, 202 62 27742
D. Miscellaneous income 199.41 185.87
o REII:ngistinn of Govt. Grant related to repair & 14571 218.22
Maintenance
F Sundry Liabiliy writte back 34.99 669.64
Total 909.43 2,013.03
Grand Total 1199.57 2.553.41

Recovery of licence fee.electricity & water charges includes Rs. 259.06 lakhs from others on account of licence fee,
water & electricity charges (Previous vear Rs. 253.13 lakh).

An amount of Rs 10,000 lakh have been received during the financial year 2021-22 from Gol for repair &
Maintenance of plants. An amount of Rs. 402.41 lakhs (Rs. 345.21 charged to Profit & Loss A/c + Rs. 57.20 lakhs
reversal of GST Credit) during the financial year (Previous vear Rs 967.26 lakh including reversal of GST credit
of an amount of Rs. 149.04 lakhs) have been utilized for repair and maintenance of plant (Refer Note No.- §).

Misc Income includes assets for BVFCL's Hospital and Park of an amount of Rs. 8.01 lakhs and Rs. 6.27 lakhs
respectively received [rom parties (Previous Year - NIL). These assets has been received in kind and recorded at
Market value.

NOTE19: COST OF MATERIALIS CONSUMED

Natural Gas

Opening stock - -
Add: Purchase 17,260.05 5,006,349
Total of Opening Stock and Purchase 17,260.05 5,006.39
Closing Stock = -
Consumption

Plant - 11 - -
Plant - 11T 17.260.05 5.006.39
Total Consumption 17,260.05 5,006.39
Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 1.579.29 £13.99
Consumption of Packing Materials 1,925.80 754.23

Total of Cost of Materials Consumed 20,765.14 6,574.61
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BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED 115
TUIN U212 A SR 0 TG |
SNOTES T FINANCIALSTATTMENT VOR THE YEAR 20232-23%
I R, g firkdisd
As gl 3181 Asal 3lsl
March, 2023 March, 2022

PARTIHOLLARS

NUTE 20 PURCHASES OF STUCK - [N - TRATN

[Puaric s of by Com s 2818 S AR
Purchasieof DAT 4.371.69 -
Purchase of MOF 2194 26 1,56353
Purchpse ol Presucidos 1718 4790
Purchase ol =51 FATEREN] 145457
Purchase o Seeids 1175

Purchase of Rock Pluspliate Tin 8l 461 15
Purchase of Uhpea from NFL 63 LR ) 1 83368
Purchase of Sme 13872 9 o
Purchiase of Boron BAT 424
Purchase of FIL Met 1763 f it
Prirchase of Amany Sulphbane 2493240 1, 7=
Purchase of FACTAMECS 10839 63.15
Purchase of Apro Power 0062 To B8
Prmchase of Magnezivm Sulphate ‘ 5.7
Purchase of MI'K Y21 v ]
Prrcliase of lmporied Liea 5,489 5% -
Purchase of MFL AFS 93577 =
Purchase of Mikta Urea 4.0d44 36 -
Parchase of POM 512.29 =
Total 3429725 b,647 43

NOTE 21 :CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHID GOODS,
WORK IN PROGRESS AND TRADING GOODS

Inventaries at theend of the year

A, Stock of Manufactured goods

Urea [ Manufactured) 130.79 BE3.68
Intermediaries product {Ammonia) / goods 452 85 fi3.65
Stock of Bintfertilizers 7 &7
Srock of Vermicompost . =
Seock of Traded Products (551 - =
Tuatal 821 .45 93413

B Stock of Traded Products
Traded Products 113 By :
103,55 (.00

Invintiries at w beginming of the year:
C. Stock of Manufactured gonds

Ulpena fed 68 Tdi6.50
Intermediaries product {Ammonia) /fgoods G365 52.99
Stock of Biofertilizers b7 jriz
Stock of Vermicompost - 27
Stk of Traded products (S5F} - 395
Total 93413 828,36
D. Stock of T ucts

Traded Froduces k T
Net (Increase) f Decrease in stock 208.82 {105.77)

*Thae Closing stock of Threa e on 31 032023 |s 47976 MT (Previous year 5207 90 MT)

NOTE 22 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries and wapes 368577 386045
lConmritutions ta Provident and other funds 41611 434.51
Slall wellare expensys 7772 874.68
Provision for Gratuity Liability 7446 528G
Provision for Leave Lialdlity A7343 2653

[Total 5,545,594 /129,05
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BRAIMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

(CIN U231 23A520020 010067 86)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT VOR THE YEAR 2022-23

116

{ Rs. fir lakhis)

I As al 3]st As al 315t

PARTICHLARG March, 2023 March, 2022
NOTE23: FINANCE COST
Interesl expenses:
AL Interest on Unsecured loan from Govt of India
i) Normal Interest - -
it) Penal Interest = =
B. Interest on Secured loan from Bank

Interest on bank over draft 9.63 -
Total 9.63 -
NOTE 24 : REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE
Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings 192.87 210.95
Repairs and Maintenance - Plant & Machinery 657.57 578.39
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 58.73 94.98
Total 909.18 BB84.33
NOTE 25 : POWER & FUEL
Power and Fuel 34,545.64 11,550.94
Total 34,545.64 11,550.94
NOTE 26 : FREIGHT & HANDLING EXPLENSE
Freight 6,139.06 2,144.00
Handling charges 2,570.74 42647
Total 8,709.80 2 570.48
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BRATIMAPUTRAVALTLEY TERTILIZER CORPORATION LINITED

(CIN L2123 A52002CG01006786)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 202223

117

{ K=, i lihiis)

PARTICULARS

As al 314t
March, 2023

As at 31sl
March, 2022

MNote : 27 Other Expenses
Rent including Lease Benbils

Insurance

Water & Air pollution Conlral Tax & Coess
Land Revenue

Hates & Taxes

Communication Fxpenses

ravelling and Conveyance

Printing and Stationerios

Business promaotion

Donations and Conltribulions

Legal and professional (ee

Payments to Statutory auditors

Cleaning work inside Factory
Miscellaneous Expenses for factory
Security expenses

Direclor expenses

Provision for doubtful Trebts / Advances
Provision for doubtful Debts FICC
Provision for obsolescence of stores & Spares
Provision lor unmoved capital items
Miscellaneous Casual labour township
Miscellaneous Administralion expenses
Selling & Distribution Expenses

Payment to Retainers

Fixed Assets written off for replaced assels
Total

23,72 17.90
11744 123,12
1041 1005
2107 21.07
0.04 (.11
2317 13:14
B6.54 17.89
1045 U84
19.449 339
268 11.88
2979 14.05
3.00 2.20
435,80 436.29
261.28 175.26
1,675.41 1,613.60
2133 §.80
- 225
47.58
41.20 3513
8.0 24.53
180.72 171.57
70382 454.48
552.68
191.83 309.08
42,10 9.80
451253 3.515.39
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BRAHNMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILEZER CORPORATION LIMITEDR

(CIN U24123A 520020 01006786)

MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

118

( Rs. fit fukhs)

PARTICULARS

As al st
March, 2023

As al 318l
March, 2022

SUB NOTE 27 :: PRIOR _PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
EXPENSES

Malerial Constomizd
Depreiation

Misc. Expenses

Andil expenses

CISF Expenses

Stock Account

Licence [ee elc
Dumerage Exp.

Write off of old assets
De-recognition of Spectal compensation towards Fixed Cost
Freight charges

CWIP for Namrup - IV
Other Expenses (MKktg,.)
Total of Debit

INCOME

Matenal consumed
Reversal of Dep. on frechold land
Misc. Income
Unadjusted Subsidy
CISF Expenses
Insurance Premium
Bank Charges
Productes from PPL
Total of Credit

Nel Debil/(Credit)

0.07 0.00
(.01
0.39 -
222 0.00
25.65
1.4
0.02
6.48
289.81
. 1,562.67
D.00 70.39
258.51
22.09
606.77 1,633.13
0.03 2.94
- 10.83
- 0.25
17215
0.10
- 31.94
172.28 45.96
434.49 1,587.16



Company Secy
Typewriter
118


BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED

(CIN U24123A52002GOI006786)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2(122-23

119

{ Rs. in lakhs)

Asat3lst  Asat3lst March

NOTE 28 : EARNINGS PER SHARE
A) Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 36,58,324 36,58,324
Number of Equity Shares at the end of the vear 36,58,324 36,58,324
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 36,58,324 36,558,324
during the year
Face Value of each Equity Share 1,000 1,000
B) Net Profit tor the year attributable to Equity Share
Holders (after Prior Period Adjustments but before
Exceptional items) (Rs in lacs) 243763 (9.763.87)
Net Profit for the year attributable to Equity Share
Holders (after Prior Period Adjustments and Exceptional items) 243763 (9,763.87)
[ Rs, in lacs)
C) Basic earning per share on profit after tax
before Exceptional items (Rs/share) 66,63 (266.89)
D) Diluted earning per share on profit after tax and
Exceptional items (Rs/share) 66.63 (266.89)
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29, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
1. Corporate information :

Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited (BVFCL) referred to the Company is a
wholly owned Public Sector Undertaking of Govt. of India was incorporated on 5th April 2002
after segregation of Namrup units in Assam from parent company Hindustan Fertilizer
Corporation Ltd (HFCL). The registered office of the Company is located at Namrup, Dibrugarh
which is involved in the production of Urea, Bio-Fertilizer and Vermicompost and Trading of
Fertilizer etc.

2, Basis of preparation and presentation:

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention in
accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India, the provisions of the
Companies Act,2013. The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and
presented in the formal prescribed in the Schedule I11 to the Companies Act,2013("the Act”).The
disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and
Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule Il to the Act, are presented by way of Notes forming part of
accounts along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting
Standards.

All the assets and liabiliies have been classified as ‘current’ or ‘non-current’ as per the
Company’s normal operating cycle of 12 months and other criteria set out in Schedule I to the
Companies Act,2013.The amounts in the financial statements are rounded off to rupees in lakhs
up to two decimal.

3. Use of Estimates:

The presentation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and
the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting periad. Management
believes that the estimates made mn the preparation of financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Any difference between the actual results and estimales are recognized in the
period in which the results are known,/ materialized.

4. Fixed Assels:

L Fixed Assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation,

ii. Cost includes cost of purchase and all expenditure such as installation cost, inward
freight, non-refundable taxes and any other expenses incurred for bringing the asset
in its current location Gl it is ready Lo use
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iii.

vi.

Apatt from cost of Fixed Assets, Revenue Expenditure incurred during construction
and commissioning  period is capitalized LIl commencement of commercial
production. Incidental Income prior to commencement of commercial production is
set-ofl against the cost of the Project

Additions to Plant & Machinery include major repairs as well as renewals and
replacements which will increase life and efficiency of the Plant. In such cases, if the
written down value of the assets replaced is not ascertainable, technical valuation is
made for adjustment in the accounts,

Machinery spares which can be used only in connection with an item of fixed assets
and whose use 1s expected to be irregular are capitalized.

Physical Verification of fixed assets is carried out by the internal commttee
constituted by competent authority each year. And once in every live years the
Physical Verification of fixed assets conducted by an outside professional agency.

5. Depreciation and amortization:

iii.

iv.

Machinery, Equipments and Office Appliances costing up to Rs” 5,000/ are fully
depreciated in the year of addition.

Depreciation is charged on “Straight Line Method”, as per useful life and rate of
depreciation specified in the Schedule - 11 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The cost of Machinery spares referred to in Para A (v) above are amortized over the
useful life of the Original Plant.

Depreciation is provided on the assets after they are certified to be installed and put

Lo use.

6. Borrowing Cost: :

Borrowing costs incurred in relation to the acquisition/construction of qualifying assels are
capitalized as part of the cost of such assets up to the date when such assets are ready for
intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged as an expense in the year in which these are

incurred.

7. Inventories ;

iL

iv,

Inventory includes Raw Material. Packaging Material, Stores and Spares,
Intermediate products/ goods and finished stock
Raw Materals are valued at cost (monthly weighted average).
Packaging Materials and Stores & Spares are valued at Cost (inclusive of expenses
incidental to bring the materials to the present condition and location less duties and
taxes recoverable by company from taxing authoriies) on the basis of monthly
weighted average or technical estimates, whichever is lower.
Loose tools are written-off over a period of three years,
Stocks of -
a  Finished Coods :-
Urea is valued al Tower of cost or net realizable value comprising concessional
price subsidy and freighl subsidy.
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b, Intermediate products/ goods like Ammonia is valued at lower of cost or net
realizable value. _

¢. Bought out finished products — are valued al lower of vost or net realizable value.

d. The company has formulated a comprehensive policy for age wise provisioning
of inventory lor capital stores and other stores & spares on the book value for
determining the lower of cost or net realizable value.

The provision is made on the following basis:

51. Age wise item category Provision %
No.
1 ltems not moved upto 3 years Wil
2 | Items not moved for more than 3 years & upto 5 years 5
3 Items not moved for more than Syears & upto 10 years 110
4 | Items not moved for more than 10 years & uFt-L;r_IE years 25 -
5 Items not moved for more than 15 years & upto EL}_}'EE:'S 50
b ltems not moved for more than 20 years. 95

K. Subsidies:

The subsidy is billed and accounted for on the basis of receipt of fertilizer at the destination and
credit for subsidy in the accounts is taken only for the quantities sold and stated in the Protit
and Loss Statement as revenue [rom operations. However, pending receipt of notification from
FICC for final settlement, the subsidy claim for variabions in input prices is provided for in the
accounts on the estimate basis taking into account the prevailing method, guidelines, pelicies,
instructions and clarifications given by the Government.

9. Revenue recognition:

i Export sale accounted for based on the rate as per Memorandum of Understanding
(Agreement) with MMTC subject to the adjustment as per policy and guidelines
issued by the Govl. of India,

ii. Indigenous Sales is recognized on issue of Delivery Order and proper invoice

i Income/ Expenditure is generally accounted for on accrual basis unless otherwise
specifically stated.

iv. [nlerest on Advances lo Employees is accounted for after the principal is fully
recovered.

v Serap/ Salvage/ Waste Materials are accounted foras and when sold.
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10. Pre-Paid Expenses:

Expenditure up to Rs.” 10,000/~ in each case incurred in advances relating to the following
year(s), is accounted for in the year in which it is incurred.

1L Prior period Adjustments:

Income/ Expenditure relating to prior period(s) is accounted for only in cases of errors or
OITLSsions,

12. Expenditure on Catalyst:

Expenditure incurred towards consumption of calalyst is capitalized and depreciation charged
as per its usetul life given in technical specification provided by supplier.

13. Retirement Benefits:

Provision for gratuity and leave encashment liability is made on the basis of actuarial valuation.
14, Payment under Company’s Family Pension Scheme:

Payment under Company’s Family Pension Scheme is accounted for as and when paid.

15. Grant In Aid -VRS:

Utilization of Grant in Aid against Voluntary Retirement Scheme is accounted for on cash bass.

16. Grant In Aid -For Repair & Maintenance of Plant

i Grants related Lo revenue are presented as a credit in the Profit & Loss statement
under 'Other income’.

ii. All repair & maintenance expense out of grant are charged to P&l account. GST
Input Tax credit are not being availed on such expenses.

iii. Receipt of grants is recognized as deferred grant from the Government of India. The

prant amount, to the extent of expenditure incurred, is being recognized as income
in the Statement of Profit and Loss
iv Unutilized/Unspent amount of Grants are shown as deferred Grant

17, Deferred Taxation:

Deferred tax is recognized, subject to consideration of prudence, on timing differences, being
difference bebween taxable and accounting income/expenditure that originate in one period
and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent period(s). Deferred Tax Assets are not
recognized unless there is “Virtual Certainty” that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such deferred lax assets will be realized.
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18, Foreign Currency Iransaction:

Foreign currency assets and liabilities not covered by forward contracts are stated at rates ruling
at the year end. Exchange differences relating to fixed assets are adjusted in the cost of the
assels. Any other exchange differences are dealt with in the Profit and Loss Account

19. Impairment of Assets:

An asset is lreated impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An
impairment loss is charged to the Profit & Loss Account in the year in which an asset is
identified and declared as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting, period
15 reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount.

20. Investments:

All investments are stated at cost. However, a provision for diminution in value is made to
recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of investment.

21. Earnest Money Deposilts & Security Deposits:

Earnest Money Deposits and Secunty Deposits which has not moved and there 15 no claims
pending against them for more than 5 years are writlen back and transferred to other income

22, Segment Reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is engaged in
providing an individual product or service or a group of related products or services and that is
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments as per
Accounting Standard-17.

Company has Identified two primary reporting segments viz own manufactured fertilizers
(Urea, Bio-fertilizers and vermi compost) and fertilizer trading (Indigenous and Impuorted)

23. Grant In Aid - For Catalysl

In case Catalyst procured out of grant it should be adjusted against grant (after deducting @ Rs.
L0/ - each catalyst, which is nominal value) as per deductive approach.”

24. Provision for Debtors:-

Trade receivables, other receivables, loans and advances are fully provided for as doubtful
upon review on case o case basis, to the extent of such loss considered as incurred.
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NOTE 30:-General Notes to Accounts
30.1 Contingent Liabilities:

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required Lo settle the obligation
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding employee
benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at
each Balance Sheet date and adjusted o rellect the current best estimates. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed in the Notes, Contingent assels are neither recognized nor disclosed
in the financial statements,

The Company’s pending litigations comprise of claims by or against the Company primarily by
the employees/customers/suppliers, etc. and proceedings pending with tax and other government
atthorities. The Company has reviewed its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately
provided for where Provisions are required and disclosed the contingent liabilities where applicable,
in its financial statements. The company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a
materially adverse effect on its financial statement and appropriate disclosure for contingent labilities
is ziven below-

As on 31 March 2023 contingent liability are as under:-

( & in lukhs)
Particulars 2022 - 23 2021 -22
Claims agamst the Company not acknowledged as
uebts:
(i) | Libgation and Other Commitments: 101.73 100.44
(i) | Tax Liabilities against ‘CST", Entry Tax &VAT 684.39 666.86
(iii) | Renewal Purchase Obligation (AFRC Regulation 2010) 747.57 982.78
TOTAL 1533.69 1750.08

30.2 Related Party Disclosures:

Company is under the administrative control of Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers,
Government of India.

Key Management Personnel;

(1) Shri5.P.Mohanty, Chairman & Managing Direclor

{2) Shri5C Das; Rirector (Finance)

(3) Shri P.K. Bantk Director { Production) woe.f 224 Narch - 2023
(4) Shri D. Sahai, Director (Production) Up to 315 August 2022
(3) Shri Bk Gupta, Company Secretary
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Transachon with related Parties

(1) Shri S.P. Mohanly, Chairman & Managing Director

{ & in lakhs)

Particular 2022-23 2021-22
Remuneration | -—
- Salary &Allowances 33.27 16.04
- Other Benefit 0.00 0.00
Total 33.27 16.04
(2) ShriS.C, Das, Director (Finance)
(¥ in lakhs)
Particular 2022-23 2021-22
Remuneration
- Salary & Allowances 31.60 27.02.
= Other Benefit 0.00 (.53
Total 31.60 27.55
(3) Shri P.K. Banik (Production) w.e.£. 220 March 2023
(¥ in lakhs)
Particular 2022-23 2021-22
Remuneration
- Salary & Allowances 0.78 0.00
- Other Benefit 0.00 0.00
Total 0.78 0.00
(4) Shri D. Sahai.Director (Production) Up to 31.08.2022
(& in lakhs)
Particular 2022-23 2021- 22
Femuneration
- Salary & Allowances 12.03 27.79
= Other Benelit D.00 0.00
Total 12,03 27.79
(5) Shri RK. Gupta, Company Secretary
(F in lakhs)
Particular 2022-23 2021-22
Remuneration -
| - Salary & Allowances 24 65 2265
- Other Benefit — 0.06 RS
[ Total N - 2471 22,67
Remuneration does not include the provision made on actuarial valuation of retirement

benelits.
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30.3 Audit Expenses:
(& 1n lakles)

Sr. Particular 2022-23 2021-22
Nuo,
A) | Statutory Auditors
L Audit Fee 240 1.80
Remmbursement of travelling and out of pocket
1. BXPenses 0.60 0.40
B) Tax Audit
i Audit fee &Reimbursement of Other expenses 0.70 0.51
) Internal Auditors I
L Audit Fee &Reimbursement of TA & Other expenses 2.86 221
D) | Cost Auditors
i | Audit fee & Reimbursement of Other expenses 0.49 0.37
E) FICC/TOP Auditors
i Audit fee &Reimbursement of Other expenses (.58 0.99
F) PF Auditors
i Audit fee &Reimbursement of Other expenses 0.18 -
G) | Audit fee Inventory / Physical verification Audit 0 0.30
H) Audit fee & Other expenses for other services 296 5.90
Total 1109 12.48

30.4 Delails of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006:

The details of amounts outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), based on the available
information with the Company are as under:-

B (& ist lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars 31.03.23 31.03.22
. Principal amount due and remaining unpaid 67 98 14242

b. Interest due on (a) above and unpaid interest
. Interest paid on all nlt}iﬂved payments under the MSMED Act - -
d Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year = -
e. Interest due and payable for the period of delay other than (c)
above
f. Interest accrued and remdmmg 1.mpmd B . = :
g Amount of further interést remaining due and payable in
_succerding years

Dues to Miero and small enterprises have been detérmisied 1o the exlent such parties lave been
identificd on e Basis of information given by such parties/avallable with the Company. Interest
amoutit due o MSMED parties during the year is nol duefacerued/patd or payable.
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30.5 Disclosure pursuant to AS 15 (Revised) 2005) - Employee Benefits:

The Company has adopted AS 15 (Revised 2005) for Employee Benefits issued by ICAL
Consequent to the adoption, the following disclosures related to accounting etc. are made as
far as practicable under AS 15 (Revised 2005) requirement.

a) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund for employees and executives is 2.402.06
lakh (previous year 2 434,51 lakh)

b) Defined Benefit plans

The Benefit plans which are in operation are Gratuity Fund and Earned Leave. The present value of
the obligation is determined based on Actuarial Valuation using the Project Unit Credit (PUC)
method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefits
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation for
Earned Leave is recognized in the same manner as Gratuity,

c) Various data as certified by Actiary:-

A. Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of Defined benefits Obligation

(F im lakhs)

Gratuity Earned Leave
Present value of Obligation at the beginning of the year 2826.19 1249.44

Acquisition Adjustment - =
Interest Cost 189.35 5621
Past Service Cost - =
Current Service Cost . : 63.59 51.97
Curtailment Cost - - -

_“E;Elﬂﬁlml:ﬂl_L_U:;[- . - e
Benefits Paid (560.75) (582.67)
Actuarial (gain)/loss of obligations 2152 | 235.26
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 2239.90 1040.21
i) Long term liability 175628 860.64

i) Current liability 483 52 179.57
1040.21

22349.90 |
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B. Statement showing change in fair value of plan assets:-Not Applicable as Scheme is
unfunded.

€. Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan
Assets:-Nol Applicable as Scheme is unfunded.
D. Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit/Loss

{(F in lakhs)

Gratuity Earned Leave
Current Service Cost 63.59 51.97
Past Service Cost = -
[nterest Cost 189.35 86.21
Expected return on Plan Assets B —— - -
| Curtailment Cost - -
| Setilement Cost = S
Actuarial gain/(loss) of obligations 21.52 235.25
Expenses Recognized in Statement of
Profit/ Loss 274.46 37343
E. Actuarial Assumplions
Gratuity Earned Leave
Mortality Table (IALM) 2006 - 08 2006 - 08
Superannuation Age 60 60
Early Retirement & Disablement
(10 Per Thousand P.A)
age above 45 - 6 f
- age between 29 and 45 3 3
age below 29 1 1
Discount Rate 7.20% I, 7.30%,
Inflation Rate B ' 5.00%, 5.00%
Return on Assel ' NSA N/A

3i.6- Disclosure regarding Provident Fund

The Company's Provident Fund Trust was granted relaxation under para 79C of
Employees Provident Fund scheme 1952 vide Notification No. AS/620/ Exempt/ Genl/ 1468
did. 08.082007 However, due to past operational performance of the company and
comphance related issue of EPF trust, EPFO has issued a nohce wvide
No.AS/TSK/EXEMITT / APCL/ 2008/ 287 dud, 20.04.2009 for withdrawal of relaxation order.
Therealter, Namrup Fertilizer Shramik Union filed a writ Petition No, 5310 of 2009 before
the Hon'ble Guwahati High Court for set  aside/quash the withdrawal of relaxation order
by RPPFC, Tinsukia. Subsequently, the Hon'ble Justice Mr. LA Ansari vide judgment dated
Zth April 2000 has ordered and directed that until further order. the respondent shall not
transfer the Provident Fund Account of BVICL to EPFO without obtaining leave of the
Courl. Puring, final hearimg, of the Flon'ble High Courl on 13032018, it was viewed thal
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since power delegated to RPFC for grant / cancel of relaxation under Para 79C of EPF &MP Act
1952 have been withdrawn by Ministry of Labour & Employment, Gol vide letter No. C -
1/ MISC/02/06/EX/ Vol - 1/11854 Date 24.07.2012, The Court has no basis to cause interference
with the impugned decision of the Gol and the instant Writ petition No. 5310 of 2009 stands
closed as having become redundant. However, a representation has been made to Addl. CPF
Commissioner (Exemption), EPFO, New Delhi vide our letter No. A/VI/PF/ EXEMPT/ 18-19/
10042 Date 07.05.2018 for grant of relaxation under Para 17(1) (a) of EPF & MP Act.' 1952 which is
under consideration but final order is vet to come.

Subsequently, the RPFC, TSK, vide letter No. NE/TSK/Exe/ BVFCL/ 1334 dated 13th
September'18 has ordered for transfer of past accumulation of BVFCL EPF Trust to CBT Account
based on the final judgment of Hon'ble High Court on 13.03.2018. In the meantime, series of
communication have been made with CPFC & RPFC for grant of relaxation vide our letter dated
2nd May 2018, 16th July 2018, 8% August 2018, 28th September 2018 and 22nd October 2018, But
no representation has been responded by either CPFC & RPFC.

Later on, The Board of Trustees in its 36th meeting held on 27th September 2018, have decided to
file a Writ Petiion again with Hon'ble High Court and Authorized the Executive Officer /
Secretary of the Trust and any member trustee representing workman / employee on behalf of
the Trust to execute the petifion. Accordingly, a Writ Petition have been filed with Guwahati
High Court on 01.11.2018 vide Case No. WP(C) 7528/2018. The Hon'ble Court has fixed the case
for instruction on 19.11.2018 and ordered to staying the operation of latter dated 13th September
2018 issued by RPFC, Tinsukia. On 19.11.2018, upon hearing the parties have fixed the case for
instruction on 18.12.2018. No counsel on behalf of Union of India & Ors has attended the Court
on 18.12.2018, hence the Hon'ble Court further pleased to direct that the stay Order dated 31st
October 2018 in the meantime shall continue, No turther date has fixed for instruction till date.

Employees Provident fund Trust (BVFCL EPF TRUST), Rep. by its Secretary field writ petition
on 25.10.8 before Guwahati High Court praying inter-alia for setting aside and quash the order
No, NE/TSK/Exe/BVFCL /1334 dated 13.09.2018 issued by respondent No. - 4 (i.e. RCPF -1,
Tinsukia) and letter No. - C - EX/C- 11/14(16)/ 2005/ Ex/ EZ dated 24.09.2018 issued by the
respondent No. 2 (i.e.EPFO, New Delhi) and vide Order dated 31.10,18 Hon'ble High Court
stayed the operation of impugned order dated 13.09.2018 & 24.09.2018. Last date was fixed on
06.03.2019 and Hon'ble Court further ordered that the interim order passed earlier (ie. on
31.10.2018) shall remain in force; Next date has not been fixed till date.

Last date was fixed on 06.03.2019 and honorable Guwahati High Court ordered then the interim
order passed earlier shall continue.
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30.7- Segment Reporting:
Company has ldentified two primary reporting segments viz own manufactured
fertilizers (Urea, Bio-fertilizers and vermi compost) and fertilizer trading (Indigenous
and Imported). Information in respect of said segment as required by AS-17, issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is given hereunder.

131

(Rs, In Lakls)
Trading Manufacturing Consolidated Total
| ¢ urrent | Previous Current Previons Current Previpns
I o . Year Year Year Year Year Year
REVENUE . -
External sales | 42,606.90 | 6,895.54 | 72,042.70 24,086.25 | 1,14.649.60 | 3098179
Other Income - - | 1,199.57 255341 1,199.57 2,553.41
Inter-segment sales - - - - - -
Total Revenue | 42,606.90 | 6,895.54 | 73,242.28 26,639.66 | 1,15,849.17 | 33,535.20
RESULT .
Segment result 1,936.12 | 248.11 501.52 (10,011.97) | 2437.63 (9,763.86)
‘Unallocated corporate
| EXpenses = [ 2! [ d! 58 _— = x
Operating profit 1,936,12 | 248.11 501.52 (10,011.97) | 2,437.63 (9,763.86)
Interest expense - - - - - -
Income taxes - = - = = S
Profit from ordinary activities | 1,936.12 | 24811 501.52 (10,011.97) | 2,437.63 (9,763.86)
Net profit 1,936.12 | 24811 | 501.52 {10,011.97) | 2,437.63 {9,763.86)
OTHER INFORMATION _
Segment assets (9,559,005 52,081.97 |69,559.05 |52,081.97
_Unallocated corporate assets - - - | -
Total assets - - | 69,559.05  52,081.97 | 69,559.05 | 52,081.97
Segment liabilities - - [1,02.013.32  86,973.87 | 1,02,013.32 | 86,973.87
Unallocated corporate i
liabilities = 5 | -l
Total liabilities - - [ 1,02,013.32 | 86,973.87 | 1,02,013.32 B6973.87
Capital expenditure - - | 357,54 192.09 357.54 192.09
Depreciation - - | 347276 3,692.27 347276 3,692.27
Non-cash expenses other
than depreciation - - | 663.19 446.69 6b3.19 446.69
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30.8- Disclosure of Ratios

The disclosure of significant ratios is as under: -

132

Ratio Numerator | Denominator | 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022 | Variance | Reason
Current Current
1 | Current Ratio Assets Liablities 1.32 1.30 1%
Long term Equity &
2 | Debt - Equity Ratio | borrowing Heserve (1.77) i1.64) 8%
Cash profit
after tax
Debt Service before Instaliment
3 | Coverage Ratio interest with Interest NIL NIL -
Equity Share
Return on Equity Capital & Improve in
4 | (ROE): Net Profit reserve -8% -28% 73% | Profitability
Due to Increase in
Inventory Cost of Average volume of
5 | Turnover Ratio Goods Sold | Inventory 1741 4.54 283% | Business.
Due to increase in |
subsidy
receivable &
Average of increase in
apening & trading activity
Trade receivables closing of there is increase
6 | turnover ratio Sales debtors 715 17.13 -58% | in debtors. :
Average of Due to Increase in
opening & Purchase cost of
closing of Matural Gas Price
Trade pavables creditor and increase in
7 | turnover ratio Purchase Purchase 3 135 155% | traded goods
Net capital Net Annual | Working Due ta Increase in
8 | turnover ratio Sales Capital 9.60 .04 139% | Tumover !
Due to Increase in
9 | Net profit ratio Met Profit Turnowver n.02 (0.32) 107% | Profitability
Capital
Emploved
Return on capital (Debt+ Due to Increase in
10 | employed (ROCE) | EBIT Equity) 10 =12% 77% | Profitability
Capital
Emploved
Return on (Debt +
11 | investment EBIT Equity} MNIL NIL | -
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30.09- Recognition of Government Grant-General

Government of India has sanctioned and disbursed of an amount of Rs 10,000 lakhs during the
financial year 2021-22 for Repair & Maintenance of plants to sustain operation of the Urea
Manufacturing Units. Interest of Z 412,71 lakhs during FY 2022-23 (Previous year ¥ 80.66 lakhs)
earned on unutilized government grant have been included in the above Deferred Covernment
Grant.

Utilization Certificate of 2 224503 lakhs (inclusive of GST) has been submitted to Department of
Fertilizers ( Comprising Utilization of ¢ 1277.77 during FY 2022-23 and 2 967.26 lakhs during FY
2021-22).

During the financial year 2022-23, the total amount was incurred of an amount of Rs, 1277.77
and details are as under:-

Particular 2022-23 2021-22
Advance against supplies 141.47
Malerial procured, yet to be consumed 733.89

Material procured and consumed (Recognized under other
income) 245721 | 81822
GST payment on used material (Reversal of GST)

57.2 | 149.04
Total 1277.77 | 967.26

30,10 (A) Capital work in progress:-
(a) For Capital - Work - in - progress ageing schedule:-

(& for lakhis)

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Cwie Less than 1 year 1-2 yoars 2.3 years More than 3 years Tatal
DPR Expenses on 551

PMant im : . . 391
DPR Expenses an Solir
Power Projpct 712 B : - 712
PR Expenses on
Mamrip-Y - - . 45747 45717

(b) For capital - work in progress. whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared
to its original plan.

Tn be comploted in
CWIip | L Hwavm | asii ! 1= 2 vours 2o N vikars Mt !Jl.l]i‘-}_l.'.l!:- I.Ii._|_|_

S5 lanl | ‘B i i1} £ n

Salar Powier [rogect 1] i iy i i

| Mamrugp-1V i ] n i 1]



Company Secy
Typewriter
133


134

(B) Intangible assets under development:-
(a) For Intangible assets under development ageing schedule:-

(& in lakhs)
Amount in CWIT for a period of
LEWIE Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2- 3years Mure than 3 years Tomal
HE Facto Software 7S - - - 0,75
SAF Implementation 450 . - - 2450

(b) For Intangible assets under development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost
compared to its original plan,

To be completed in
CWIFP Less than Tyear | 1-3 years 23 years More than 3 years Total
HE Facto Software Q i o iy i
SAP Implementation ] 1] i i il

Since the Project Namrup-1V is under consideration of DoF and expected completion date and
estimated cost has not been notified by DoF, hence there is no ageing for overdue or exceeded its
cost compared to its original plan.

As per management decision implementation of SAP ERP S/4 Hana has been put on hold
tll final implementation / stabilization of Tally Prime Accounting Software.

HR facto software is under testing, phase.

SSP Project- Department of Fertilizer, Gol has given in principal go ahead approval for the
new SSP Project, Subsequently Board has also given investment approval for the project
based on DPR Study, technical cum financial appraisal. Tender for engagement of LSTK
contractor for establishment of SSP Project is under evaluation process.

Solar Power Project- Recently the consultant has submitted the final DPR for the
proposed 24 MW Solar PV Power Project at Namrup. Developer for Installation of
Rooftop system is yet to be selected.
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30.11-Additional Information
Additional information in regard to vilue of Imports, Expenditure in Foreign Currency, Stores
& Spares consumption, and other related details are furnished as under:-

135

(¥ in lakhs)

Sr No Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

1) Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis

L Raw Materials . - 1l

il Capital Goods 35242 3334

iii. Components & spare parts -

2) Expenditure in Foreign Currency 10.41 0

i Purchase of products -

ii. Know-how -

1il. Professional Consultancy Fees -

iv. | Other Materials(Travelling) -

3) Value of Raw Materials, Stores & Spare parts and Components including
Chemicalsée Catalysts consumed:-

(¥’ in lakhs)
SrNo | Particulars 202223 | % | 202122 Y
i. Imported - 14964 | 0.72% 3297 {0.50%
ii. Indigenous 20615.50 | 99.28% | 6541.63 99.50%
Total 20765.14 100% 6574.60) 100%%,

4) Earning in Foreign Currency - 2

5) Research & Development
(a) Revenue Expenditure - -
(b) Capital Expenditure

&) (Mher Information’s :
4) Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company : All the properties are
held in the nume of company,
b) Details of Benami Property held - There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
company for holding Benami Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988
{ 45 of 1988) and the rules made there under as on 31 March, 2023,

¢) Willul Defaulter — The company las not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender as.on 31 March, 2023,

d) Relationship with Struek off - The company las no transactions with companies struck off
under section 248 of the companies Aet, 2013 or section 360 of Companies Act, 1956 as on 31
March, 2025,

¢} Compliance with pumber of layers of companies - Not Applicable.

i) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency - The company has not traded or invested in
Crypro currency or Virual Coregncy during the finaneial vea
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30.12- Previous year’s comparison

a) Figures have been rounded off to Lthe nearest lakh of rupees except where otherwise stated,
b) Previous year's figures have been shown in brackets unless otherwise stated. Previous
year's figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

95{1&\/ NN

K. K. Gupta / 5.C. Das S5.P. Mohanty
Company Secretary Director ( Finance) Chairman & Managing Director
DIN - 08988297 DIN -05336757

per our report of even dated annexed
r BL Purchit & Co.

artered Accountant

a il
\:_;9,'_3%\%
;R
ash Purchit E‘L -Hjl.'!-ll” i":t_ I_,:r
Parai{er % LU
Membership No.- 059631 A
Firm Regn. No:-311056E AT

UDIN: 2305965 BNy vRDS407
Date- 26/03/261% Place:- Masesp Cwaw el
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	1. Notice of AGM.pdf
	/BRAHMAPUTRA VALLEY FERTILIZER CORPORATION LIMITED
	Notice of 21st AGM
	Notice is hereby given that the 21st  Annual General Meeting of the Members of Brahmaputra Valley Fertilizer Corporation Limited will be held through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other Audio Video means (OAVM) on Friday, 29th day of September, 2023 at 3.30...
	Ordinary Business:
	Date  : 29th September, 2023
	Date  : 29th September, 2023
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